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The photo on the cover is of the first phase of the Cape Fear River Trail. The trail is a 10-
foot wide paved path for walkers, joggers, bicyclists and others utilizing non-motorized
transportation. It winds for nearly four miles from Methodist College to the Clark Park
Nature Center, through a beautiful blend of trees, plants and wildlife with spectacular
views of the river. Engineering and site assessments are currently underway for phase two
of the project which will extend the trail an additional 3.5 miles to the Cape Fear Botanical
Gardens. Construction of phase two of the trail will begin in the Spring of 2010.

The trail is designated as part of the East Coast Greenway. The Greenway is a series of
urban trails and greenways that will eventually connect from Maine to Key West, Florida,
similar to the Appalachian Trail.



Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009

Prepared by the City of Fayetteville Finance Department

Lisa T. Smith, Chief Financial Officer
Elizabeth H. Somerindyke, Internal Auditor

Tracey L. Broyles, Budget and Evaluation Manager
Dena M. Dail, Finance Manager
Donna J. Love, Collections Supervisor
Nancy A. Peters, Accounts Payable Supervisor
Sonja |. Richardson, Cash Manager

Kelly B. Nicot
EunlJin P. Boswell

Dawn Q. Kron
Van T. Nguyen

Brook J. Totten-Lancaster

Linda D. Adams Christine A. Pressley
Shirley A. Broady Pamela B. Staten
Johniece C. Gibson Tina M. Tolliver

Karen C. King



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
TABLE OF CONTENTS
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

INTRODUCTORY SECTION (UNAUDITED):

Letter of Transmittal

GFOA Certificate of Achievement
List of Principal Officials
Organization Chart

FINANCIAL SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Activities

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Net Assets

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances —
Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances —
Budget and Actual — General Fund

Statement of Net Assets — Proprietary Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets —
Proprietary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets — Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds

Notes to Financial Statements

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance — Schedule of
Funding Progress
Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance — Schedule of
Employer Contributions
Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance — Notes to the
Required Schedules

Supplemental Public Works Commission Retirement System — Schedule of Funding

Progress

Supplemental Public Works Commission Retirement System — Schedule of Employer

Contributions

Supplemental Public Works Commission Retirement System — Notes to the Required

Schedules

A-10
A-11
A-12

B-1

D-1
D-2

E-1

E-3
E-4
E-5
E-6

E-8
E-10
E-11

F-1

G-1
G-2

G-2

G-4

G-4



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
TABLE OF CONTENTS
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (continued)

Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan — Schedule of
Funding Progress

Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan — Schedule of
Employer Contributions

Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan — Notes to the
Required Schedules

Public Works Commission Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare
Plan — Schedule of Funding Progress

Public Works Commission Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare
Plan — Schedule of Employer Contributions

Public Works Commission Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare
Plan — Notes to the Required Schedules

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

GENERAL FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets - General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances - Budget and Actual - General Fund

RECREATIONAL AND CULTURAL FUND

Comparative Balance Sheets — Recreational and Cultural Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - Recreational and Cultural Fund

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances — Nonmajor Governmental Funds

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances — Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance - Budget and Actual - Emergency Telephone System Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance - Budget and Actual - Federal and State Financial
Assistance Fund
Schedule of Expenditures By Project - Budget and Actual -
Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance - Budget and Actual - Storm Water Management Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual — City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation Fund

G-5

G-6

G-6

G-7

G-8

G-8

J-4

J-5

J-6

J-7



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
TABLE OF CONTENTS
Comprehensive Annual Financia! Report
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Capital Project Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances — Nonmajor Capital Project Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget and Actual — General Government Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget and Actual - Public Safety Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - Transportation Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget and Actual — Water and Sewer Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - Bond Improvement Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - Economic and Physical Development Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual — Linear Park

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Combining Balance Sheet — Electric Fund

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets —
Electric Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures — Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) —
Electric Fund

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Uptown Revitalization Fund

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Electric Rate Stabilization Fund

Combining Balance Sheet — Water and Wastewater Fund

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets —
Water and Wastewater Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures — Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) —
Water and Wastewater Fund

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation Reserve Fund

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Water and Wastewater Rate
Stabilization Fund

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation Capital Project Fund
Phase V — Project 1

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Fort Bragg Interim
Water Service Project Fund

Schedule of Changes in the Status of 2008 Revenue Bond
Capital Project Fund

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Rim Road Water Main
Capital Project Fund

K4

K-5

K-6

L-18
L-19

L-20



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
TABLE OF CONTENTS
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued}

Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net
Assets — Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Combining Statement of Cash Flows — Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures — Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) —
Transit Fund

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Transit Capital Project Fund

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Transit || Capital Project Fund

Schedule of Expenditures by Project — Transit || Capital Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures — Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) —
Airport Fund

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Airport Capital Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures — Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) —
Solid Waste Recycling Fund

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Combining Balance Sheet — Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets —

Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Cash Flows — Internal Service Funds

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures — Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) —
Warranty Fleet Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures — Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) —
Insurance Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures — Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) —
PWC Fleet Maintenance Fund

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
TRUST FUNDS

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets — Pension Trust Funds
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets —
Pension Trust Funds
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets — Private-purpose Trust Funds
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets — Private-purpose
Trust Funds

OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA

Schedule of Current Tax Levy
Schedule of Taxes Receivable

M-2
M-3

M-4
M-5

M-6



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
TABLE OF CONTENTS
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED): Page

Net Assets by Component P-1
Changes in Net Assets pP-2
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds P-5
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds P-6
Tax Revenue by Source, Governmental Funds P-7
Revenue Base by Customer Class — Charges for Services —

Eiectric Kilowatt Hours Sold P-8
Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property P-9
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates P-10
Principal Property Taxpayers P-11
Property Tax Levies and Collections P-12
Ratios of Qutstanding Debt by Type , P-13
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding P-14
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt P-15
Legal Debt Margin Information P-16
Pledged Revenue Coverage — Utility P-17
Demographic and Economic Statistics P-18
Principal Employers P-19
Full-time City Government Employees by Function P-20
Operating Indicators by Function/Program P-21
Capital Assets Statistics by Function P-24

OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT
COMPLIANCE SECTION

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance

and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed

in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards Q-1
Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Federal

Program and Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with

OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Implementation Act Q-3
Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major State Program

and Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with Applicable Sections

of OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Implementation Act Q-5
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Q-7
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings Q-9
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards Q-10

PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE COMPLIANCE SECTION

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to the Passenger Facility
Charge Program and Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with

the Passenger Facility Charge Program Audit Guide R-1
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs R-3
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings R-4

Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges R-5




@ﬂEwLLE:

m

S S K
&/ 19| e AR A o
o P b
= [elmononLe]
2\ | £l 8
‘%9 E;;?

Introductory Section

- Transmittal Letter
- List of Principal Officials

- Organization Chart

I £ o
ot Lot otista —




CITY MANAGER

October 30, 2009

The Honorable Mayor,

Members of the City Council and Citizens
City of Fayetteville

Fayetteville, North Carclina

-Dear Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Citizens:

It is our pleasure to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, State law
requires that every local government publish a complete set of audited financial
statements within four months of the close of each fiscal year. The financial statements
must be presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of
certified public accountants. This report complies with these requirements.

The CAFR consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the
City. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of the information contained in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for
making these representations, management of the City has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed to protect City assets and to
compile information for the preparation of the City’s financial statements in conformity
with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the
internal controls have been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute
assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement.

Cherry, Bekaert & Holland, LLP, Certified Public Accountants, have issued an
unqualified (“clean”) opinion on the City of Fayetteville’s financial statements for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. The independent auditors’ report is located at the front
of the financial section of this report.

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent
auditors’ report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic
financial statements. MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in
conjunction with it.
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PROFILE OF THE CITY

Fayetteville is a thriving community located in the Sandhills region of southeastern North
Carolina and is the seat of Cumberland County. The City is approximately 60 miles
south of the State capital of Raleigh. Fayetteville is located adjacent to Interstate
Highway 95, a major north-south corridor linking the City to New York to the north and
Miami to the south.

Fayetteville has been recognized twice as an All-America City by the National Civic
League and is known as a community of "History, Heroes and a Hometown Feeling”. In
1762, the town of Campbellton, located on the Cape Fear River, was chartered by the
colonial assembly. In 1778, the neighboring towns of Cross Creek and Campbeliton
were united to become Upper and Lower Campbellton. In 1783, the North Carolina
General Assembly approved the town’s official renaming to Fayetteville in honor of the
Marquis de Lafayette, the French nobleman who served as a Major General in the
Continental Army during the Revolutionary War.

Approximately 10 miles from the City’'s downtown are Fort Bragg Army Base and Pope
Air Force Base, which form one of the largest military complexes in the world. The
bases add significantly to the culture of the community and the local economy. Fort
Bragg is the home of the Army’'s only Airborne Corps and the 82nd Airborne Division as
well as the US Army Special Operations Command. Pope Air Force Base, located
adjacent to Fort Bragg, provides the fixed-wing aviation assets required to support Fort
Bragg's missions. The Airborne and Special Operations Museum in downtown
Fayetteville is just one indicator of the community pride and gratitude for these local
heroes.

Fayetteville is the sixth largest municipality in the State with a population estimated at
207,445 and encompassing 147.5 square miles as of June 30, 2008. The City's
population has increased by 71.4% or 86,430 residents since the last U.S. Census on
April 1, 2000. Much of the population growth has resulted from the City’s statutory
authority to extend its corporate limits through annexation. In September 2005, the City
completed an annexation, referred to as "Phase V”, of approximately 42,000 residents
and 27 square miles. Most recently, the North Carolina General Assembly approved
legislation to annex portions of Fort Bragg into the City effective September 1, 2008.
This annexation added approximately 26,000 residents and 54 square miles to the City.

The City has a council-manager form of government. Nine members of the City Council
are elected from districts and the Mayor is elected at large. Each of the Council
Members and the Mayor serve two-year concurrent terms. The City Council has policy
making and legislative authority. The Council is responsible for the approval of the
budget and appointment of the City Manager, City Attorney, the Public Works
Commission and members of other City boards, committees and commissions. The City
Manager is responsible for implementing Council policies and City ordinances,
managing daily operations and appointing department directors.

The City provides its citizens with a full range of services, including police and fire
protection, solid waste and recycling services, the consfruction and maintenance of
streets, curbs, gutters, sidewalks and other infrastructure, recreation and cultural
activities, fixed-route and demand-response transit service, airport service, and electric,
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water and wastewater utilities. This report includes all of the City’s activities in delivering
and administering these services.

The Council is required to adopt a budget by July 1 of each year. The City is
empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal property located within its
boundaries. The City's budget ordinance creates a legal limit on spending
authorizations, and serves as the foundation for Fayetteville's financial planning and
control. The annual budget is authorized at the department level in the General Fund, in
operating, capital and transfer expenditure categories for the Electric, Water and
Wastewater Funds and at the fund level for all other funds.

LOCAL ECONOMY

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when
it is considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the
City operates.

The economy of Fayetteville is stabilized by the presence of Fort Bragg Army Base and
Pope Air Force Base. Approximately 59,000 military personnel are stationed at Fort
Bragg and Pope, with support from approximately 10,800 additional civilian employees.
The direct impact of payroll alone added over $3.0 billion to the regional economy in
federal fiscal year 2008.

Fort Bragg and Pope Air Force Base are transitioning as a result of the 2005 Base
Realignment and Closure Commission (BRAC) decisions. The most significant changes
affecting Fort Bragg include the relocation of the U.S. Army Forces Command
(FORSCOM) and U.S. Army Reserve Command {(USARC) headquarters from Fort
McPherson, Georgia. Pope Air Force Base will be significantly impacted as real
property, host installation responsibilities and base operations support will transfer to
Fort Bragg as the Base transitions to Pope Army Airfield by September, 2010. The 43"
Airlift Wing will be deactivated and the 43™ Airlift Group will be established to execute en
route operations in support of deployments and training of Fort Bragg personnel. In
June 2007, the 440™ Airlift Wing relocated to Pope Air Force Base from Milwaukee,
Wisconsin and will assume responsibility for airfield and C-130 flight operations. The
23" Fighter Group relocated from Pope Air Force Base to other air force bases in 2007.
Other tenant units such as the 18™ Air Support Operations Group, which directly
supports Army operations, will remain. In total, the changes are projected to have a
positive impact on the local economy. According to a growth plan commissioned by the
Fort Bragg and Pope Air Force Base BRAC Regional Task Force, base realignments are
expected to result in a net increase of 8,704 military personnel, civilian employees and
contractors, and 16,498 family members to the region by 2013.

In addition to Fort Bragg and Pope Air Force Base, substantial employment is also
offered in the government sector through the local health system, school system,
college, university, and county and city governments. Other major employers in the
area include manufacturers such as the Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company, which has
one of the largest tire producing factories in the world, and Purolator Products and M.J.
Soffe which produce auto filters and sports apparel, respectively.

The State of North Carolina enacted legislation in September 2007 authorizing cash
grants up to $60 million to be split between the Fayetteville Goodyear plant and a
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Bridgestone Firestone plant in Wilson. The Goodyear plant must maintain at least 2,000
jobs and invest $20Q million in facility upgrades to be eligible for a grant. In addition, in
February 2009, City Council approved an economic incentive agreement of up to
$1,000,000 with Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company. The incentive agreement provides
up to 10 annual installments of $100,000 per year if Goodyear makes a capital
investment of at least $200 million by December 31, 2012 and retains at least 2,000 full-
time jobs at the Fayetteville plant during the period of the incentive agreement. In
September 2009, Goodyear workers approved a new four-year contract. The plant, with
approximately 2,650 employees, is one of the area’s largest and highest paying private
employers.

During the past five years, Fayetteville's annual unemployment rates have ranged from a
low of 4.3% to a high of 5.9%, according to the North Carolina Employment Security
Commission. In September 2009, the unemployment rates for Fayetteville, North
Carolina and the United States were 7.2%, 10.4% and 9.5%, respectively. Historical
unemployment rates for Fayetteville, North Carolina and United States are provided in
the table below.

Unemployment Rates* - 5 |
Fayetteville North United

Year Carolina States

2008 5.0 6.3 5.8

2007 4.3 4.7 4.6

2006 4.3 4.8 4.6

2005 5.0 5.3 5.1

2004 59 5.5 55
* Source of unemployment data is the North Carolina Employment Security
Commission

During fiscal year 2009, the City approved 1,029 permits for new residential units valued
at $97.4 million and 52 new commercial building permits valued at $64.0 million were
issued for construction compared to 821 permits for new residential units valued at $89.2
million and 60 new commercial building permits valued at $45.9 million issued in fiscal
year 2008. The continued deployment of soldiers from Fort Bragg has iimited demand
for home sales. Fayetteville has also been affected by the tightening of the mortgage
lending standards nationwide. While these conditions have presented challenges for the
local housing market, Zillow.com reported in August 2009 that Fayetteville’s housing
market was ranked first in the nation for appreciating home values for the first two
quarters of 2009. The median value of a home in Fayetteville was up 13.4% over the
second quarter of 2008,

The City is a major regional trade center in eastern North Carolina, with a significant
number and variety of shopping plazas, centers and independent retailers. Evidence of
the strong retail sector is reflected by one of the largest shopping areas of the Carolinas,
a two-square mile area located within the city. Cross Creek Mall, the anchor of the
shopping district, has more than one million square feet of floor space and four major
department stores. Taxable sales in Fayetteville for fiscal year 2009 totaled
approximately $2.35 billion, which is a modest increase over fiscal year 2008. Historical
sales for Fayetteville and Cumberland County are provided in the table below.




: ~_Retail Taxable Sales* P
Fiscal City of % Cumberland %
Year Fayetteville Change County Change
2009 | $2,348,317,596 2.10 $2,844, 376,173 34
2008 | $2,300,524,240 2.10 $2,751,850,877 0.19
2007 | $2,253,207,756 9.30 $2,746,626,602 9.7
2006 2,061,503,480 N/A 2,504,743 152 N/A
2005 2,986 871,674* 11.44 3,683,503,849* 9.9

*Fiscal Year (FY) 2005 sales are not comparable to subsequent fiscal years’ sales data. The
FY2005 sales data represents gross retail sales. The FY2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009 sales data
represents taxable sales.

Overall, Fayetteville's economy is expected to remain stable. While Fayetteville is not
immune from the challenges facing other cities in North Carolina and across the country
as the nation recovers from the recession, the proximity of Fort Bragg and the base
realignments are expected to mitigate the impact of those economic challenges on the
local economy. The City Council adopted a fiscal year 2010 budget based on a modest
rate of growth. Fayetteville’s strong strategic planning process and conservative fiscal
management continue to allow the City to maintain a high priority on both the delivery of
quality services and financial stability.

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING and MAJOR INITIATIVES

The City's long-term vision is evident in Fayetteville's strong commitment to
neighborhoods, enhancing the local economy, revitalization of its historic downtown,
increasing leisure opportunities for its citizens, its diverse culture, rnich heritage, and
partnership with citizens, while maintaining a strong financial position.

The City Council has committed to key goals and an action agenda consistent with
Fayetteville’s vision. These goals and targets for action are discussed in the City's
strategic plan on the City's website at www.ci.fayetteville.nc.us.

A key financial goal of the City for many years has been to maintain a minimum 10%
undesignated fund balance level in the general fund. In addition, the City's practice has
been to appropriate fund balance for one-time expenditures or significant capital needs.
These goals were met in fiscal year 2009 and were used to develop the fiscal year 2010
operating budget. Undesignated fund balance in the genera!l fund was $17.4 million or
13.2% of total general fund expenditures and transfers out at June 30, 2008, which
exceeds the minimum 10 percent goal established by Council.

Consistent with debt management policy, the City also dedicated an amount equivalent
to 6.93 cents of the 53-cent ad valorem tax rate, as well as specifically earmarked
revenues, for the repayment of principal and interest on installment financing
agreements for facilities and general obligation debt in fiscal year 2009. The City
designates any excess dedicated revenues at year-end and accumulated fund balance
resulting from the debt management plan for future debt service and capital
improvement projects consistent with the adopted capital improvement plan. The City’s
commitment to the debt management plan wili generate significant debt capacity in
future fiscal years. In addition, the City received upgrades in its underlying bond ratings
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on general obligation bonds in September 2009 of Aa2 and AA+ with the issuance of its
Series 2009 General Obligation Refunding Bonds. These ratings are consistent with
Council policy. The City also maintained its underlying bond ratings of Aa3 and AA- for
its utility revenue bonds.

Annually, the City adopts a six-year capital improvement program (CIP) for its electric,
water and wastewater utility funds and a five-year CIP for other functions such as public
safety, parks, transportation, storm water system, airport and transit.

The City developed a five-year financial forecast for its General Fund for fiscal years
2010-2014. The purpose of the forecast is to enhance the City’s financial planning
process. The Council adopted strategic plan, five-year capital improvement plan, debt
management plan, and the fiscal year 2009 budget were incorporated in the
development of the financial forecast. The City intends to update the five-year financial
forecast each year.

The City also followed other practices designed to avoid using one-time revenues for
recurring expenditures, to ensure an ongoing mix of pay-as-you-go and long-term debt
funding of capital needs, and to periodically monitor revenues and expenditures to
budget.

The City also accomplished or continued work on several other financial, organizational
and economic development goals including:

 The City continued its efforts to complete its first comprehensive overhaul of its
zoning and subdivision regulations in over 40 years. This effort will result in the
creation of a Unified Development Ordinance that will make development
regulations more user-friendly, streamline the review process, modernize zoning
districts and uses, improve development quality, establish a new downtown
distnct, and incorporate sustainable development practices in the City's
regulations.

e The Fayetteville/Cumberland County Chamber of Commerce, in a partnership
with the City of Fayettevile and Cumberland County, has reviewed sites,
completed a feasibility study and evaluated design concepts to develop a military

- business park. The plan is to develop a 216-acre park adjacent to Fort Bragg.
The current proposal includes developing office and retail space as well as
research and production facilities to serve the needs of the military. The City and
Cumberland County have been awarded several grants totaling $741,000 from
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to fund a portion
of the cost of the sanitary sewer lines to serve the park. In the Spring of 2009,
the City, Cumberland County and a developer executed an agreement regarding
the use of the funds for the planned business park.

e In April 2008, the Fayetteville Metropolitan Housing Authority was awarded a $20
million HOPE VI grant to demclish and replace two public housing projects
comprised of barracks-style buildings built in the 1940s and 1950s. The City, the
City's Public Works Commission (PWC) and the County have committed over
$18 million for land, infrastructure, park development, housing and various fee
waivers. The total project investment is expected to be approximately $119
million, the balance of which will be funded by private investment. Plans include
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a community resource center, senior apartments, single family homes and an
avenue lined with apartment buildings and public housing units scattered among
homes. Most of the development will occur in the City’s downtown area. During
fiscal year 2008, the City initiated the purchase of several properties consistent
with the City's commitment for the project. The HOPE V! project must be
completed by 2013.

The City completed its first year of the new residential recycling program for
items such as glass, aluminum and plastic containers, newsprint and corrugated
cardboard. The program became effective in July 2008 and is funded through an
annual user fee for each single-family household.

In February 2009, City Council committed to the enhancement of public safety
operations by accepting a federal SAFER grant of over $2.1 million and
committing a focal match of more than $2.3 million to add 24 fire fighter positions.
The grant and local match will cover the cost of the additional fire fighters for a
five-year period, after which the City will be responsible for funding 100 percent
of the cost. Several of the fire fighter positions will be used to staff a new fire
station in northern Fayetteville.

The City continued redevelopment work on the 300 Block of Hay Street project,
which is a public-private partnership. The City has expended or committed
approximately $1.85 million to pay permit fees, acquire land, construct a parking
lot and make streetscape improvements. Developers expect to invest
approximately $11 million in the project to buy land from the City and construct a
four-story, 46,000 square-foot retail and office space building, 18 townhouses
and 24 condominiums. The project is approximately 80 percent complete.

During fiscal year 2009, the City, with the assistance of a consultant, made
progress toward the development of a Transportation Development Plan (TDP)
to identify strategies to improve and expand transit services to meet community
needs. The plan was presented to Council in August 2009. The City Council has
committed an additional $675000 annually to fund improvement
recommendations identified in the TDP, to include extended services hours on
major routes and an additional connector route.

City Council lowered the City's tax rate as a result of 2009 real property
revaluation process. Council adopted a 2010 tax rate of 45.6 cents compared to
a 2009 tax rate of 53.0 cents per $100 value due to the increase in property
values resuiting from the revaluation.

The City, with and through its PWC, accomplished or continued work on several
utility system financial and economic development policies and goals including:

o Signed a 20-year power supply agreement with Progress Energy Carolina
(PEC). The agreement, which becomes effective July 1, 2012, extends
the long association with PEC. In a separate agreement, PEC signed a
five-year contract with PWC to lease or dispatch its Butler Warner
Generation plant as needed to meet its system demand.

A-7



o Adoption of an electric gross receipts tax agreement between the City
and its PWC to share a portion of the additional taxes the City will receive
as a result of the new power supply contract beginning in 2012. The
agreement requires that a portion of the taxes be used for street light
charges and toward PWC's share of the Phase V annexation sewer
installation costs.

o Installation of nearly six miles of water mains to connect the PWC
distribution system to the Fort Bragg system continued. The project is the
result of PWC’s 40-year contract with the Department of Defense to
provide water to the Fort Bragg Army installation. PWC is partnering with
Harnett County to provide Fort Bragg a maximum daily demand of 16
million gallons a day. PWC's contract is valued at over $90 million.

o Implemented new water and sewer rates that reflect the cost of service as
well as concern for fixed income customers. PWC established a rate to
reflect a lower charge for customers using 5,000 gallons of water a month
or less. Despite the increase, PWC’s rates remain among the lowest in
the state when compared to the 12 largest cities in the state.

o Extended utility services to over 600 properties as part of the City's
Annexation Phase V utility retrofitting project. Plans call for extending
service to an additional 7,400 properties by 2024.

o Preparing to meet the growth expected as part of the BRAC process,
PWC continued to work toward establishing a water and sewer extension
policy as part of the Municipal Influence Area as well as an out-of-county
water and wastewater sales policy.

During the year, the City continued or completed work on many significant capital
projects including the following:

The North Carolina General Assembly adopted the 2005 Appropriations Act in
August 2005, which included a $2.3 million grant to the City of Fayetteville for the
development of a 15-acre North Carolina State Veterans Park in the downtown
area. Most of the funds have been used to acquire land located near the
Airborne and Special Operations Museum, demolish buildings and develop a
preliminary master plan for the park. The remainder of the grant will be used for
additional site preparation. In addition, the City received an additional grant of
$13.7 million in fiscal year 2009 from the State of North Carolina for design and
construction of the Veterans Park, including a formal garden, visitor's center and
freedom trail. During the fiscal year, the City appointed a committee to provide
input on the types of facilities and exhibits that will be incorporated in the park.
The City also retained an architect and engineering firm to provide plans to
conform to the conceptual design.

The City made significant progress toward two projects for airfield and runway
improvements at the Fayetteville Regional Airport. During fiscal year 2009, the
Airport invested over $6.3 million in the projects which are being funded by
federal grants, passenger facility fees and airport operating revenues. The
projects are expected to cost a total of $9.4 million at completion.

Work continued on drainage system improvement projects funded by the annual
storm water fee dedicated to system improvements. Progress has been made
toward design and construction of some of the projects. The new fee generates
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over $3.3 million annually and is being used to fund drainage system projects
that are estimated to cost in excess of $43 million.

s Progress was made on projects funded by the $8.45 million general obligation
bonds issued in 2005. Those projects include drainage improvements and street
improvements.

¢ The City executed a $2.7 million contract to upgrade the computer éided dispatch
system and records management system for the Police and Fire Departments.
The total project is expected to cost approximately $4 million when complete.

« Construction of PWC’s future Customer Service Center began. The 10,000
square foot building is being built to LEED (Leadership in Energy &
Environmental Design) standards and is scheduled to open in the fall 2009.

s Continued work on the water main rehabilitation and replacement project during
FY2009. The purpose of the project is to replace and reline existing water mains
to increase flow and extend the life of the distribution system. Since the first
project in 2004, over 20 miles of water mains have been completed.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of
Fayetteville, North Carolina for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2008. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive
annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for another certificate.

This report is the work of the efficient and dedicated staff of the Finance Department.
We wish to express our appreciation to all members of the department who assisted and
contributed to the preparation of this report and to the entire City staff for their
cooperation and assistance. Credit is also due to the Mayor and the members of the
City Council for their unfailing support of the highest standards of professionalism in the
management of Fayetteville’s finances.

Respectfully submitted,

e C o

-
. (7C) (YA
Dale E. Iman Lisa Smith

City Manager Chief Financial Officer
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CHERRY
BEKAERT8,

HOLLAND

CERTIFIED FUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS &
CAONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor

and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville
Fayetteville, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, the budgetary comparison of the general fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina (the “City") as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. ‘

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptraller General of the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2008, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows where appropriate, and the respective budgetary
companson of the gensral fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated Qctober 30,
2009 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compllance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Sfandards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.
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The management's discussion and analysis, the schedule of funding progress and the schedule of
employer contributions for the Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance, Public Works
Commission Retirement System, Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan, and Public
Works Commission Other Post Employment Benefit Refiree Healthcare Plan are not required parts of
the basic financial staiements bui are supplementary information reguired by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally
of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the inforrmation and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City's baslc financial statements. The combining and individual fund financlal
statements and schedules, as well as the accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal and State
awards as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, and
schedule of expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges as required by the Passenger Facility Charge
Audit Guide for Publfic Agencies, far the year ended June 30, 2009, and the individual fund comparative
totals for the year ended June 30, 2008, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financlal statements of the City. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financlal statements for the year ended June 30,
2008, and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financlal
statements taken as a whole.

We did not audit the data Included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on such data.

CHERRY, BEKAERT & HOLLAND, L.L.P.

GW@@W(’MQWWW

Fayetteville, North Carolina
October 30, 2009
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Fayetteville (“the City”), we offer readers of the City's financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2009. We encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction
with additional information that we have furnished in the transmittal letter at the front of this report and
the City’s financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the City of Fayetteville exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by
$1.1 billion (net assets). Of this amount, $221.6 million (unrestricted net asseis) may be used to
meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. The government’s total net
assets increased by $41.8 million.

Net assets decreased $1.9 million to $425.9 million in fiscal year 2009 down from $427.7 million
in fiscal year 2008 in the Governmental activities. Key factors in this decrease were primarily
from a $2.8 million increase in public safety expenses primarily attributed to personnel costs,
$0.7 million decrease in other taxes, and a $1.8 million decrease in operating grants and
contributions, offset by a $3.4 million decrease in Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB)
expense.

Net assets increased $43.7 million to $673.9 million in fiscal year 2009 up from $630.2 million in
fiscal year 2008 in the Business type activities. By far, the largest portion of these net assets,
$524.3 million or 77.8 percent, reflects the investment in capital assets less any related debt still
outstanding that was issued to acquire those assets in the Electric, Water and Wastewater,
Transit, Airport and Solid Waste Recycling activities. Capital contributions and operating funds
offset by capital asset depreciation contributed to the $18.3 million increase in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt.

Current and Other Assets increased $10.4 million or 5.5 percent. This increase is primarily due
to a $3.8 million increase in investments held at year end and an increase of $2.5 million in
accounts receivable in the Electric, Water and Wastewater Funds in fiscal year 2008.

As of the close of fiscal year 2009, the City’s governmental funds reported an ending fund
balance of $65 million, a decrease of $0.7 million in comparison to prior year. Approximately
54.8 percent of total fund balance, or $35.6 million is available for spending at the government’s
discretion (unreserved fund balance).

At the end of fiscal year 2009, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $27.9 million
or 21.3 percent of total general fund expenditures and transfers out for the fiscal year. Of this
amount, $10.5 million has been designated for subsequent year expenditures, special purposes,
and debt service, bringing the undesignated general fund balance to $17.4 million or 13.2
percent of general fund expenditures and transfers out.

The City's total debt decreased by $22.7 million during fiscal year 2009.

As of June 30, 2009 the City's most recent general obligation bond issue (governmental
activities) was rated Aa3 (Moody's Investor Services) and AA- (Standard & Poor’s). With the
exception of the utility system revenue bonds issued in 2008, all outstanding utility system
revenue bonds carry bond ratings of Aa3 and AAA from Moody's and Standard and Poor’s,
respectively; based upon municipal bond insurance policies. In fiscal year 2008, both Moody's
and Standard and Poor's raised the underlying bond ratings of the City's utility system to Aa3
and AA- from A1 and A+, respectively.
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Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Fayetteville's basic
financial statements which consist of three components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2)
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements as shown below. The basic financial
statements present two different views of the City through the use of government-wide statements and
fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other
supplemental information that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the financial condition of the
City. This report includes all funds of the City of Fayetteville as well as its component units, which are
described in the following pages. Note 1 in the financial report includes further discussion of the
reporting entity and description of funds.

Required Components of Annual Financial Report
Figure 1
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Analysis Statements
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Financial

Fund
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Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial
Statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the City of Fayetteville's
financia! status.

The next statements are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the
individual parts of the City of Fayetteville’s government. These statements provide more detail than the
government-wide statements. There are four parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the
governmental funds statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; 3) the proprietary fund
statements; and 4) the fiduciary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements
explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental
information is provided to show details about the City's non-major governmental and proprietary funds
and the internal service funds. The governmental and internal service funds are added together in one
column on the basic financial statements. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also
can be found in this part of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of
the City of Fayetteville’s finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business.
The government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the City's financial
status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the City’s net assets and how they have changed. Net
assets are the difference between the City’s total assets and total liabilities. Measuring net assets is
one way to gauge the City's financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into two categories: 1) governmental activities and 2)
business-type activities. The governmental activities include most of the City's basic services such as
general administration, public safety, environmental protection, transportation, economic and physical
development, and recreation and community facilities. Property and other taxes and state and federal
grant funds finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the City
charges customers to provide. These include the electric, water and wastewater, airport, transit and
solid waste recycling services offered by the City of Fayetteville or its Public Works Commission.

The government-wide financial statements are on pages D-1 and D-2 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the City of Fayetteville’s most significant
activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like all other governmental entities
in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance {or non-compliance) with
finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the City's budget ordinance. All of
the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds an
fiduciary funds.
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Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the City of Fayetteville's
basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily
be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available for
spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called
modified accrual accounting which provides a current financial resources focus. As a result, the
governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her
determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the City's programs. The
relationship between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund
financial statements.

The City of Fayetteville adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General
Statutes. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the
City, the management of the City, and the decisions of the City Council about which services to provide
and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the City to obtain funds from identified sources to finance
these current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates
how well the City complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the City succeeded in
providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison
statement on page E-5 of this report uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the
same format, language, and classifications as the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance. The statement shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the City
Council; 2) the final budget as amended by the City Council; 3) the actual resources, charges to
appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between
the final budget and the actual resources and charges.

Proprietary Funds — The City of Fayetteville has two kinds of proprietary funds. Enterprise Funds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its electric, water and wastewater,
mass transit, airport and solid waste recycling operations. These funds are the same as those
functions shown in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities. Internal Service Funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs
internally among the functions of the City. The City uses an internal service fund to account for its fleet
leasing program, fleet maintenance, and risk management activities. All of these services
predominantly benefit governmental functions except for the fleet maintenance fund, which also
provides service to the business type activities. These services have been included within their
respective predominant aciivities in the governmenti-wide financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds — Trust funds are used to account for the activities of funds the City holds in trust
for others. The City has two pension trust funds and two private-purpose trust funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The
notes to the financial statements are on pages F-1 — F-46 of this report.

Other Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report includes certain required supplementary information concerning the City’s progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension and other post-employment benefits fo its employees. Required
supplementary information can be found beginning on page G-1 of this report.
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Government-wide Financial Analysis

Net Assels. The following is a summary of net assets for the City of Fayetteville at June 30, 2009
with comparative data for June 30, 2008. The City's combined net assets increased $41.8 million, or
3.9% from fiscal year 2008 to 2009. Net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a
government's financial condition. The information provided below provides a more detailed view of the
City's net assets.

City of Fayetteville’'s Net Assels (dollars in thousands)
Figure 2

Governmental Buslness-type
Activities Activitles Total

2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Current and other assets 104,066 $ 116,753 188,328 § 198,739 292394 % 315,492
Capitzl assels 395,687 388,385 677,134 699,081 1,072,821 1,087,466

Tolaj assets 499,753 505,138 865,462 897,820 1,365,215 1,402,958

Long-term liabilities outsianding 57,542 51,022 192,877 179,445 250,219 230,487 |
Other liabllities 14,461 28,259 42,557 44,468 57,018 72,727

Total liahilities 72,003 79,281 235,234 223,913 307,237 303,194 ||

Invested in capital assels, net of

related deht 354,483 351,080 505,941 524,263 860424 875,323
Restricted 2,93 1,885 2,087 946 5018 2,831
Unrestricted 70,336 72,912 122,200 148,698 192,536 221,610

Total net as sets 427,750 & 425857 630,228 3 673,907 1057878 § 1,099,764

The assets of the City exceeded liabilities by $1.1 billion as of June 30, 2009. Net assets is reported in
three categories: Invested in capital assets, net of related debt of $875.3 million, Restricted net assets
of $2.8 million and Unrestricted net assets $221.6 million.

The invested in capital assets, net of related debt category is defined as the City’s investment in City
owned capital assets {(e.g. infrastructure, land, buildings, automotive equipment, office and other
eguipment, and electric, water, and wastewater systems), less any related debt still outstanding that
was issued to acquire those items. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its
capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt
must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Another category of net assets is restricted net assets. This represents resources that are subject
to external restrictions on how they may be used.

The final category of net assets is unrestricted net assets. This balance may be used to meet the

government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. At June 30, 2009, $221.6 million, or
20.2% of the total net assets reported of $1.1 billion, is unrestricted.
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City of Fayetteville’s Changes in Net Assets (dollars in thousands)
Figure 3

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities
2008 2009 2008 2009

Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services 12,142 % 12,936 227978 § 241,863 $ 240,120 $ 254,599
QOrperating grants and contributions 11,063 10,857 2,296 2,945 13,349 13,802
Capital grants and contributions 1,321 1,463 17,782 19,619 19,103 21,082
Gengral revenuegs:
Property taxes 54,235 55,407 - 54,295 55,407
QOther taxes 43,193 42525 43,193 42525
Grants and contributions not restricted
to specific programs 801 815 - - 801 815
QOther 4,588 3,317 5,484 4,920 10,072 8,237
Totd revenues 127,393 127,320 253,540 269,147 380,933 396,467 |

Expenses:
Administration 19,091 17,815 - 19,091 17,815
Public safety 63,458 64,355 - - 63,458 64,355
Environmental protecfion 12,126 12,049 - 12,126 12,049
Transportation 20,387 18,966 20,387 18,966
Economic and physical development 4,559 4532 - - 4,559 4532
Recreation and community faciiities 12,114 12,881 - - 12,114 12,881
Interest and fees 2,061 1,981 - - 2,061 1,981
Electric - - 137,562 144,715 137,562 144,715
Water and wastewater - - 52,767 65,163 52,767 65,163
Transit - - 5,584 5,975 5,684 5,875
Airport - - 3,986 4,330 3,986 4,330 |
Solid Waste Recycling - - 1,946 1,919 1,946 1,919
Total expenses 133,796 132,579 201,845 222,102 335,641 354,681

Increase in net assets before transfers (6,403) (5,259) 51,695 47,045 45,292 41,788
and special items

Transfers 3,308 3,366 (3,308) (3,366)

Increase in net assets (3,095) (1,893) 43,387 43,679 45,292 41,786

Net assets, July 1 430,845 427,750 581,841 630,228 1,012,666 1,057,978

Net assets, June 30 427,750 $ 425857 § 630,228 § 673,907 § 1,057,978 § 1,099,764

Govemmental activities: Revenues for the City’s governmental activities were $127.3 million, while
total expenses were $132.6 million in fiscal year 2009. The decrease in net assets for governmental
activities, after transfers in, was $1.9 million. Key elements of this decrease are as follows:
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Ad valorem property tax revenues increase of $1.1 millicn to $55.4 million due to development
within the City and a small increase in the tax collection rate. Property taxes represent 43.5% of

total governmental revenues.

Other taxes of $42.5 million, which accounted for 33.4% of total governmental revenues

decreased $0.7 million from 2008.

Those who directly benefited from
service-fee based programs paid
$12.9 milion in charges for
services and represented a 6.5
percent increase ($0.8 million)

from 2008. This increase can be 19, 2%

primarily attributed to increased
public safety, transportation and
recreation fees.

Other governments and
organizations subsidized certain
programs with operating grants
and contributions totaling $10.9
million, representing a 1.8 percent
decrease from fiscal year 2008.
These grants and contributions

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities
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The City received $5.6 million in
other revenues such as capital
grants and contributions,
interest and unrestricted grants.
The cost of all governmental
activities this year was $132.6
million compared to $133.8
million in fiscal year 2008. This
change resulted primarily from a
$3.4 million decrease in Other
Post Employment Benefit
(OPEB) expense, offset by a
$2.8 million increase in public
safety operations  primarily
attributed to personnel costs.
The City's four largest
governmental programs — public
safety operations (48.5%),
transportation operations
(14.3%), administration (13.4%),

and recreation and community facilities (9.7%), represent 85.9% of the total governmental

activities.
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Business-type activities: Revenues for the City’s business-type activities were $269.1 million, while
total expenses were $222.1 million in fiscal year 2009. The increase in net assets for business-type
activities, after transfers out of $3.4
million, was $43.7 million, resulting in
net assets of $673.9 million. Particularly,
net assets increased in the electric,
water and wastewater activities by $36.4
million, resulting in net assets of $630.6 jor %
million in fiscal year 2009, compared to
$594.2 million in fiscal year 2008. By
far, the largest portion of these net
assets, $490.5 million or 77.8 percent,
reflects the investment in capital assets
less any related debt still outstanding
that was issued to acquire those assets.
Capital. contributions and operating
funds offset by capital asset
depreciation contributed to the $12.8 90%
million increase in Capital Assets, Net of
Related Debt in the electric, water and
wastewater activities.

Revenues by Source - Business Activities

2%

®m Charges for Services

®» Operating grants and
contributons

¥ Capital grants and
contributions

& Interest Earned on
Investments

Current and Other Assets in the electric, water and wastewater activities increased $6.1 million or 3.4
percent. The increase is a result of a $3.8 million increase in investments held at year end and an
increase of $2.5 million in accounts receivable during fiscal year 2009.
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Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City’s financial requirements. Specifically, unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of fiscal year 2009, unreserved fund
balance of the General Fund was $27.9 million, while total fund balance reached $45.9 million. As a
measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and
total fund balance to total fund expenditures and transfers out. Unreserved fund balance represents
21.3 percent of total General Fund expenditures and transfers, while total fund balance represents 34.9
percent of that same amount.

The North Carolina Local Government Commission strongly recommends that local governments
maintain an available fund balance of at least 8 percent of annual general fund expenditures. The
City’s goal is to maintain an undesignated fund balance of at least 10 percent of the succeeding year's
expenditure budget. Undesignated fund balance is the component of unreserved fund balance after
consideration for management's policy designations. The City’s unreserved fund balance totals $27.9
million. Of this amount, $3.6 million is designated for fiscal year 2009 appropriations and $6.9 million is
designated for specific purposes. The remaining unreserved fund balance of $17.4 million is
undesignated.

The fund balance of the City’s genera! fund decreased by $7.1 million during the current fiscal year.
Key factors in this decrease can be attributed to lower than anticipated sales tax revenues and planned
nonrecurring uses of fund balance as follows:

e A transfer of $3.9 million to the Economic and Physical Development Capital Project Fund for
the HOPE VI Project.

» A transfer of $0.7 million to the Transportation Capital Project Fund for a soil streets paving
project.

¢ A transfer of $0.5 million to the Transit Capital Project Fund for the purchase of land for a
multimodal center.

¢ Atransfer of $1.1 million to the Public Works Commission for the City's remaining contribution
for an annexation water/wastewater project.

The Recreational and Cultural Fund is a major capital project fund used to account for resources used
for the acquisition and construction of facilities such as parks, recreation centers and museums.
Resources are provided through intergovernmental revenues, facility financing proceeds and transfers
from other funds. At the end of fiscal year 2009, total fund balance of the Recreational and Cultural
Fund was $1.4 miliion, of which $1.3 million was reserved for contract encumbrances.

At the end of fiscal year 2009, the Recreational and Cultural Fund reflected a $13.0 million increase in
restricted cash and a $13.1 million increase in deferred revenue. This increase can be attributed to a
grant that was awarded and funded during fiscal year 2009 in the amount of $13.7 million to the City to
assist with constructing the NC State Veterans Park including a formal garden, visitor's center an
freedom trail.
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At June 30, 2009, the governmental funds of the City reported a combined fund balance
of $65.0 million, a 1.0 percent decrease from the previous year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City Council originally approved a $134.8 million general fund budget for fiscal year 2009, which
represented a $5.9 million or 4.6% increase from the original budget for fiscal year 2008. The tax rate
remained the same at 53 cents per $100 value. Consistent with City Council strategic priorities,
significant fiscal year 2009 budget appropriation increases included a $3.7 million increase in employee
compensation to maintain market competitive pay levels for public safety and general employees, $2.25
million for fand acquisition and park development for the Hope VI project, a $1.2 million general fund
contribution for water and sewer infrastructure for the Phase V annexation area, and a $1.4 million
increase in vehicle and equipment replacement funding. These increased appropriations were offset by
a $1.6 million reduction in street light expenditures consistent with a new agreement between the City
Council and the Public Works Commission, a $500,000 reduction in street resurfacing funding, and a
$375,000 reduced transfer to the City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation as compared to the original
fiscal year 2008 budget.

Natural growth was expected to generate an additional $2.0 million in ad valorem taxes compared to
the fiscal year 2008 original budget, offset by a reduction of $334,000 in prior year tax collections
primarily due to less outstanding 2006 taxes for the Phase V annexation area. Other revenue sources
combined were expected to increase by $513,000. Transfers to the general fund were projected to be
$627,000 'ess than the original fiscal year 2008 budget primarily due to a $1.1 million reduction in the
transfer from the Electric fund (due to the $1.6 million reduction for street lights and $521,000 increase
in the regular transfer) and a $504,000 transfer from the Recycling fund to begin the repayment of start-
up funding provided by the general fund for the new recycling program. The $9.7 million fund balance
appropriation for one-time expenditures and use of debt management plan reserves for fiscal year 2009
exceeded the $3.6 million fund balance appropriation originally budgeted in fiscal year 2008. No capital
lease proceeds were budgeted for fiscal year 2009 as compared to the $1.8 million budgeted in the
original fiscal year 2008 budget.

During the fiscal year, the City Council approved budget increases of $8.6 million or 6.4% bringing the
general fund budget for fiscal year 2009 to $143.5 million. The budget increase was primarily due to
$6.2 million appropriated by Council for expenditures encumbered, designated or reserved for
donations at June 30, 2008, $500,000 appropriated for the purchase of a site for a future multi-modal
transportation facility, $350,915 appropriated to fund a required debt service reserve, and $280,442 for
additional fire suppression personnel and operating expenses for a new fire station. The increased
budget appropriations were primarily funded by additional fund balance appropriations of $8.0 million,
increased utility franchise tax proceeds of $543,400 that were largely related to the annexation of Fort
Bragg and an additional $122,580 in projected Federal grant revenues.

Actual revenues and other financing sources for the general fund totaled $124.3 million, or $19.1 million
less than the final amended budget. The shortfall primarily related to a budgeted fund balance
appropriation of $17.7 million, which is an other financing source that is not reflected as current year
revenue. Other revenue and financing sources that did not reach budgeted levels included: $750,000
for anticipated Section 108 HUD loan proceeds that will not be received until fiscal year 2010; a
$627,000 shortfall in intergovernmental revenues related to sales tax distributions that were $1.5 million
less than budget, offset primarily by utility tax distributions and County recreation funding that exceeded
budgeted levels by $524,000 and $191,000, respectively; and ad valorem tax proceeds that fell
$319,000 short of budget primarily due to taxes on motor vehicles. Remaining revenue and
financing sources combined exceeded the budgeted total by $219,000.
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Actual expenditures and other financing uses were $131.4 million, or $12.1 million less than the final
amended budget.  There were approximately $7.1 million in expenditures budgeted for fiscal year
2009 which were encumbered, designated or reserved for donations at June 30, 2009 to be
reappropriated in fiscal year 2010. In addition, positive personnel budget variances across all
departmental budgets totaled $1.2 million, reimbursements to other governments related to sales tax
and utility franchise taxes were $487,000 less than budgeted, actual rent expenditures for the Festival
Park Plaza master lease were $467,000 less than the required budget amount, and actual transfers to
the Transit Fund were $276,000 less than projected. The balance of the variance results from a variety
of departmental operating expenditures being under budget.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of June 30, 2009, totals $1.1 billion (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets
include infrastructure; buildings; improvements; automotive equipment; office and other equipment; and
electric, water, and wastewater utility systems.

Major capital asset investments and contributions during the fiscal year included the following:

$6.3 million for airport runway and airfield improvements

$5.5 million for water and wastewater rehabilitation of mains and laterals

$4.6 million for public safety (police and fire) vehicles and equipment

$4.4 million in street, sidewalk and drainage infrastructure projects

$3.3 million for installation of wastewater utility systems in annexed areas

$3.3 million for electric NCDOT projects

$3.0 million for installation and replacement of underground cable

$2.4 million for solid waste and street maintenance vehicles and equipment

$2.8 million for customer service center

$2.5 million for purchase and installation of water meters

$2.3 million for vehicles and equipment for the electric, water and wastewater funds

$1.9 million for water system additions and improvement to Ft. Bragg and the Spring

Lake area

¢ $1.6 million for upgrade of fuel nozzles and water injection system at the generation
plant

o $1.5 million for electric distribution system transformers

e $1.2 million for water and wastewater NCDOT projects

¢ $0.6 million for transit vehicles and equipment
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City of Fayelteville’s Capital Assets (dollars in thousands)
(net of accumulated depreciation)
Figure 4

Land

Infrastructure

Electric utility system
Wastewatsr system
Water systam
Equipmentand machinery

Buildings and improvements

Equipment, furniture and
fixtures
Computer programs

| Vehicles

| Construction in progress

Governmental
Activities

Business -type
Activities

Total

2008 2009

2008 2009

2008

2009

36,112 § 36,297
291,034 283,086

48,698 46,562

3,725 4,545

14,609
3,286

13,010
3,109

$ 15772 8 16,136
169,014 168,198
256,511 256,118
149,882 153,797

9,774 9,411

44,577 46,002

8s0 799

3,223 2,330
7,150 8,611
20,341 37,678

51,884 %
291,034
169,014
256,511
149,882

9,774

93,275

4615

3,223
20,160
23,450

52,433
283,086
168,198
256,118
153,797

9,411

92,564

5,244

2,330
23,220
40,964

$ 395688 § 388,385

$ 677,134 $ 699,080

$ 1,072,822 § 1,087,465

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 3 of the Basic Financial

Statements.
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Long-term Debi. As of June 30, 2009, The City had total bonded debt outstanding of $191.4 million
(before loss on defeasance, see Note 5 in the financial statements), of which $26.6 million is debt
backed by the full faith and credit of the City. In addition, the City has a number of capital leases and
several installment notes outstanding. A summary of total long-term debt is shown in Figure 5.

Bonded Debt, Capital Leases and Installment Notes Payable (dollars in thousands)

Figure 5

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 I

Bonded debt 32812 & 28,459 % 167885 % 154,877 § 200,697 183,336
Obligations under capital leases 14,344 10,268 - - 14,344 10,268 |
installment nate payable - - 20,487 19,219 20,487 19,218
Total long-term debt 47,156 $ 38,727 & 188,372 § 174,006 § 235,528 212,823

The City’s totai long-term debt decreased by $22.7 million, or 9.6%, during the past fiscal year. This
decrease is primarily due to principal payments of $22.7 million during the fisca! year 2009.

The City's other long-term obligations include a liability for the estimated amount of vacation and
compensatory leave to ultimately be paid (compensated absences) of $8.1 million and a $9.6 million
liability for Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB).

As of June 30, 2009, the City’s most recent underlying General Obligation bond rating received in
connection with the Series 2005 General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds, are shown below:

City (governmental activities):
Moody's Investor Services  Aa3
Standard & Poor's AA-

In September, 2009, Standard & Poor’s upgraded the underlying bond rating on all cutstanding General
Obligation bonds from “AA-" to “AA+” and Moody’s Investor Services, upgraded the underlying bond
rating con all cutstanding General Obligation bonds from “"Aa3” to “Aa2”.

With the exception of the Series 2008 Revenue Bonds, all other outstanding utility system revenue
bonds carry an Aa3 and AAA rating from Moody's and Standard & Poor's, respectively, based on
municipal bond insurance policies. In fiscal year 2008, the City received underlying bond ratings for its
utility system revenue bonds as shown below. These underlying ratings were assigned to the Series
2008 Revenue Bonds and were one of the determinants that allowed the City to issue these bonds
without insurance. The Cilty continues to meet all debt covenants and continuing disclosure
requirements.

Public Works Commission (business-type activities):
Moody's Investor Services  Aa3
Standard & Poor's AA-
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The State of North Carolina limits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can
issue to 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government’s
boundaries. The legal debt margin for the City is approximately $768.7 million. The City has no bonds
authorized but unissued at June 30, 2009.

Additional information regarding the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 5 on pages
F-20 — F-29 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates
Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2010

The City Council approved a $137.1 million general fund budget for fiscal year 2010, which represented
a $2.3 million or 1.7% increase from the original budget for fiscal year 2009. The tax rate was
established at 45.6 cents per $100 value, reflecting the projected revenue-neutral tax rate following the
2009 property revaluation process. Significant appropriation increases for the fiscal year 2010 budget
included $2.4 million for 30 additional positions with equipment and support costs to enhance police
services, $835,000 for law enforcement officer pay increases, $955,000 for 24 additional fire
suppression personnel, $455,000 in additional funding for transit service improvements, a $675,000
increase in funding dedicated for the debt management plan, and an additional $2.9 million for
reimbursement agreements with other local governments and Fort Bragg, primarily due to the impact of
the annexation of a portion of Fort Bragg in September, 2008. These appropriation increases were
offset by a $1.3 million reduction in one-time funding for capital improvements, $1.3 million less for
vehicle and equipment replacements, a reduction of $1.2 million in equipment financing debt service
requirements and other personnel and operating expenditure reductions.

An additional $1.6 million in current ad valorem taxes from real and personal property is expected to be
generated compared to the fiscal year 2009 original budget, following the 2009 property revaluation
process. An additional $1.3 million in revenues from sales taxes and $1.9 million from utility taxes are
expected to be received in fiscal year 2010 compared to the fiscal year 2009 original budget, primarily
reflecting the impact of the additional population and area from the September, 2008 annexation of Fort
Bragg, offset by declining per capita sales taxes due to general economic conditions. The original
budget for fiscal year 2010 included a projected increase of $2.2 million in federal funding for public
safety, including $1.5 million in anticipated grants for police personnel and related expenses, and
$727,000 in grant proceeds for fire suppression personnel. Transfers to the general fund are projected
to be $670,000 more than the original fiscal year 2009 budget primarily due to an increase in the
transfer from the Electric fund. The $4.1 million fund balance appropriation for one-time expenditures
and use of debt management plan reserves for fiscal year 2010 represents a $5.6 million reduction
compared to the original $9.7 million fund balance appropriation originally budgeted in fiscal year 2009.

The City Council has since approved budget increases of $12.3 million or 9.0%, bringing the general
fund budget for fiscal year 2010 to $149.4 milion. The budget increase is primarily due to
appropriations of $8.8 million to refund General Obligation bonds and $5.3 million for expenditures
encumbered, designated or reserved for donations at June 30, 2009. These appropriation increases
were offset by a $1.8 million appropriation reduction related to grant-funded expenditures for the Police
department that were appropriated in the Federal and State Assistance Special Revenue Fund ($1.1
million) or not funded as anticipated. The funding sources for the increased appropriations are $8.8
million in refunding bond proceeds and a $5.0 million fund balance appropriation increase, offset by a
$1.5 million reduction in Federal grant proceeds.
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Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the City’s finances for those with an interest in this
area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional
information should be directed to the Chief Financial Officer, City of Fayetteville, 433 Hay Street,
Fayetteville, NC 28301.
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Basic Financial Statements

These basic financial statements provide a summary of the financial position of
all governmental and business activities and the major and nonmaijor funds. They
also serve as an introduction to the more detailed scheddles that follow in

subsequent sections.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2009

Business Total
Governmenta! Type Primary
Activities Activities Government
Assets
Cash and investments $ 74607575 $§ 54,787,489 $ 129,395,064
Taxes receivable 3,411,801 - 3,411,801
Accounts receivable 5,446,971 38,668,235 44,115,206
Internal balances (1,976,561) 1,876,561 -
Assessment receivable 489,373 - 489,373
Due from other governments 8,258,348 5,647,460 13,905,808
Inventories 79,900 13,750,250 13,830,150
Prepaid expenses 568,555 395,806 964,361
Noncurrent portion of note receivable 7,939,794 - 7,939,794
Restricted asset - cash and investments 17,624,246 75,702,902 93,327,148
Restricted asset - accounts receivable - 516,601 516,601
Restricted asset - collateral pledged - 274,501 274,501
Other assets 303,260 7,019,281 7,322,541
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 39,583,751 53,814,083 93,397,834
Other capital assets,
net of depreciation 348,801,521 645,266,417 994,067 938
Total assets 505,138,534 897,819,586 1,402,958,120
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 12,585,218 30,523,122 43,108,340
Resftricted liabilities - accounts payable - 9,041,805 9,041,805
Unearned revenues 14,960,725 20,855 14,981,580
Unearned deposits 171,108 3,179,444 3,350,552
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 10,045,262 14,278,369 24,323,631
Due in more than one year 40,976,565 165,166,312 206,142 877
Other liabilities 542,421 1,703,073 2,245,494
Total liabilities 79,281,299 223,912,980 303,194,279
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 351,059,848 524,262,726 875,322,574
Restricted for:
Capital projects - 943,364 943,364
Debt service - 2,743 2,743
Grant compliance 1,885,171 - 1,885,171
Unrestricted 72912216 148,697,773 221,609,989
Total net assets $ 425,857,235 $ 673,906,606 $ 1,099,763,841

The notes fo the financial statements are an integral part of this staternenL
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Balance Sheet
Govermmental Funds
June 30, 2009

Recreational - Other Total
and Cultural Governmental Gowvernmental
General Fund Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and investments $ 41653341 % 1,439809 § 16,381,033 § 59,474,183
Taxes receivable 3,150,513 - 60,520 3,211,033
Accounts receivable 12,764,126 30,437 7,811,762 20,606,325
Interfund receivable 249,542 - - 249,542
Assessments recetvable 489,373 - - 489,373
inventories 79,900 - - 79,900
Restricted asset - cash and investments - 13,712,898 3,911,348 17,624,246
Total assets $ 58,386,795 $ 15,183,144 § 28,164,663 § 101,734,602
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 6994124 % 101,779 & 2538528 $ 9,634,431
Uneamed deposits 131,418 - 39,690 171,108
Deferred revenues 5,342,238 13,665,507 7,900,803 26,908,548
Total liabilities 12,467,780 13,767,286 10,479,021 36,714,087
Fund balances:
Reserved
By State statute 11,960,494 30,437 1,331,691 13,322,622
For encumbrances 4,167,814 1,297,621 5,482,870 10,948,305
For inventories 79,900 - - 79,900
For downtown 124,882 - - 124,882
For county recreation 1,598,321 - - 1,588,321
For streets - Powell Bill - - 1,145,874 1,145,874
For JP Riddle Stadium 26,523 - - 26,523
For donations 27,000 - - 27,000
For grant compliance - - 739,297 739,297
For debt service - - 1,401,061 1,401,061
Unreserved
Designated
For subsequent year's expenditures 3,643,174 - - 3,643,174
For spegial purpose 3,562,081 - - 3,562,081
For debt service 3,339,367 - - 3,339,367
For capital projects - 87,800 - 87,800
Undesignated 17,389,459 - - 17,389,459
Unreserved, reported in nonmajor:
Designated for subsequent year's expenditures
Special revenue - - 297,500 297,500
Capital projecis - - 5,127,594 5,127,594
Designated for special purpose
Special revenue - - 1,424,996 1,424,996
Undesignated
Special revenue - - 1,171,198 1,171,198
Capital projects - - (436,439) (436,439)
Total fund balances 45,919,015 1,415,858 17,685,642 65,020,515
Total liakilities and fund balances $ 58,386,795 § 15,183,144 § 28,164,663 § 101,734,602

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds fo the

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2009

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reporied in the funds. Those liabilities consist of:

General obligation bonds $ (18,728,918)
Revenue bonds {8,730,000)
Obligations under capital leases (10,267,567)
Net OPEB obligation (7,212,279}
Compensated absences (4,717,156)

$ (50,655,920)

Net assets of governmental activities $ 425,857,235
E-2

The notes to the financial statemant are an
integral part of this statement.

Ending fund balance - governmental funds $ 65,020,515
Capital assets used in govemmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of: 386,159,077
Land L3 36,297,377
Construction in progress 3,286,374
Infrastructure 449 166,806
Buildings and improvements 69,873,025
Furniture and equipment 23,481,646
Vehicles 36,721,798
Accumulated depreciation (232 ,667,949)
3 386,158,077
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the funds. 11,955,120
Costs of bond issuance are current-period expenditures in the funds, but will be
deferred in the statement of net assets and amortized over the life of the outstanding
debt. (239,161)
Prepaid expenses are current-period expenditures in the funds, but are assets not
available to pay current-period expenditures and, therefore, are capitalized. 487 171
Accrued tax penalties receivable are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are not recorded in the funds. 200,770
internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of Warranty fleet
expenses, fleet maintenance expenses and insurance expenses to individual funds.
The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental
activities. 13,250,457
Accrued interest payable on Jong-term debt is not a current expenditure and therefore
not recorded in the funds. (320,794)

(60,655,920)




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Recreational Other Total
and Cultural Governmental Governmentatl
General Fund Funds Funds
Revenues
Ad valorem taxes $ 55553012 § - % - $ 55553012
Other taxes and fees 2,466,319 - 6,851,490 9,317,809
Unrestricted intergovernmental 40,367,061 - - 40,367,061
Restricted intergovernmental 8,578,232 546,068 2,703,929 11,828,229
Permits and fees 1,889,966 - - 1,889,966
Sales and services 3,263,932 - - 3,263,832
Miscellaneous 2,092,179 36,246 980,487 3,108,912
Interest earned on investments 1,340,965 210,111 167,088 1,748,164
Total revenues 115,551,666 792,425 10,732,994 127,077,085
Expenditures
Current:
Administration 17,795,157 - 303,105 18,098,262
Public safety 61,928,862 - 2,773,771 64,702,633
Environmental protection 8,237,297 - 4,950,427 13,196,724
Transportation 7,143,632 - 3,084,245 10,227,877
Economic and physlcal development 1,407,349 - 3,295,290 4,702,639
Recreation and community facilities 11,238,186 946,324 84,365 12,278,875
Debt service:
Principal 6,603,028 - 1,828,557 8,521,585
Interest and fees 1,406,077 - 549,767 1,955,844
Total expenditures 115,849,588 946,324 16,888,527 133,684,439
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures (297,922) {153,899} (6,155,533) (6,607,354)
Other flnancing sources {(uses)
Transfers in 8,516,480 205,500 13,973,485 22,695,465
Transfers out {15,555,256) - (1,451,896) (17,007,152)
Sale of capital assets 246,872 - - 246,972
Total other financing sources (uses} (6,791,804) 205,500 12,521,589 5,935,285
Net change in fund balances (7,089,726) 51,601 6,366,056 (672,069)
Fund balance - beginning 53,008,741 1,364,257 11,319,586 65,692,584
Fund balance - ending $ 45919015 § 1415858 § 17685642 _§ 65020515

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (672,069)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

staternent of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated

useful lives and reporied as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which

depreciation ($19,733,797) exceeded capital outiay ($13,030,238) in the current

penod. (6,703,558)

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e.
sales, trade-ins, and donations} is to decrease net assets (448,115)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. (33,857)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, government funds report
the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-

term debt and related accounts. 6,615,863
Principal repayments 3 8,521,585
Net OPEB Obligation (1,907,863)
Change in compensated absences 94,140
Other miscellaneous {91,999)
3 6,615,863

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 39,628
governmental funds.

The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with
governmental activities. (690,404)

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ (1,892,512)

The notes to the financial staiements are an
integral part of this statement. E-4




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - General Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Varance
With Final
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes $ 55872095 $ 55872095 §$ 55553012 % (319,083)
Other taxes and fees 2,464,700 2,464,700 2,466,319 1,619
Unrestricted intergovemmental 40,767 567 41,310,967 40,367,061 (943,906}
Restricted intergovernmental 8,138,751 8,261,331 8,578,232 316,901
Permits and fees 2,049,970 2,049,970 1,889,966 (160,004}
Sales and services 3,454,949 3,454,949 3,263,932 (191,017
Miscellaneous 1,795,236 1,795,236 2,002179 296,943
Interest sarned on investments 1,194,000 1,194,000 1,340,965 146,965
Total revenues 115,737,268 116,403,248 115,551,666 (851,582)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Administration 21,630,648 20,380,204 17,795,157 2,585,047
Public safety 62,765,035 64,934,488 61,928,862 3,005,626
Environmental protection 7,700,281 9,337,916 8,237,297 1,100,619
Transportation 7,068,104 9,910,322 7,143,632 2,766,690
Economic and physical development 2,100,193 2,144,229 1,407,349 736,880
Recreation and community facilities 11,968,850 12,592,587 11,238,186 1,354 401
Debt service:
Principal 7,068,770 6,693,100 6,693,028 72
Interest and fees 1,748,075 1,406,086 1,406,077 9
Total expenditures 122,049,956 127,398,932 115,849,588 11,549,344
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (6,312,688) (10,995,684} (297,922) 10,697,762
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)
Capital leases, bonds and other debt 750,000 750,000 - (750,000}
Transfers in 8,502,718 8,479,318 8,516,480 37,162
Transfers out (12,789,093) (16,063,032) (15,555,256} 507,776
Appropriated fund balance 9,689,063 17,669,398 - {17,669,398)
Sale of capital assets 160,000 160,000 246,972 86,972
Total other financing sources (uses) 6,312,688 10,995,684 (6,791,804} (17,787,488)
Net change in fund balances $ - 3% - (7.089,726) _% {7,089,726)
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 53,008,741
FUND BALANGCE - ENDING ' § 45919.015

The notes to the financial statements are an
integral part of this staterment E-5



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2009

Enterprise Funds

Watser and Other Intermnal
Elactric Wastewater Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
Assets
Current assets
Cash and investments $ 38,062,010 $ 10,571,716 & 6,153,763 § 54,787,489 § 15,133,392
Accounts receivable 23,047 017 14,958,400 6,309,278 44,315,695 1,038,788
Intarfund receivable 238,169 88,057 - 337,226 -
Inventorias 12,216,757 1,385,045 148,448 13,750,250 -
Prepaid expensas 209,339 182,720 3747 395,808 81,384
Total unrestricted cument assets 73,773,292 27 197,938 12,615,236 113,588,466 16.253 584
Restricted current assets
Resfrictad cash and Invastments 33,665,361 41,378,591 660,950 75,702,902 -
Accounis recelivable 10,635 505,966 - 516,601 -
Collateral pledged in lleu of deposits 274,501 - - 274,501 -
Total restricted current essets 33,850,497 41,682 557 680,950 76,494,004 -
Totsl current assets 107,723,789 69,080,495 13,276,188 190,080,470 16,253,564
Noncurrent assets
Other assets 1,914,954 5,104,227 - 7,019,281 -
Capltal assets 225767163 439,486,261 33,807,076 689,080,500 2,226,196
Total noncurrant assets 227,702,117 444,590,588 33,807,076 706,099,781 2,226,196
Total assets 335,425,906 513,671,083 47,063,262 886,180,251 18,479,760
Liabllitles and net assets
Current iablites to be paid from
unrestricted assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 13,726,287 11,990,713 4,806,122 30,523,122 2.629,993
Currant portion of long term debt 2,563,626 11,714,743 - 14,276,360 109,351
Interfund payebkes - - 249,542 249,542 337,226
Accrued vacation - - 164,395 164,395 12,922
Uneamed deposits - - 675 875 -
Total current labiities to ba paid '
from unrestricted assets 16,288.913 23,705,456 5,220,734 45.216,103 3,089,492
Currant fiabilities to ba pald from
restricted assets
Accounts payablke and accrued expenses 5,633,677 3,408,128 -~ 9,041,605 -
Total current llablities to be pald
from resircted assets 5633677 3,408,128 - 9,041,805 -
Totel current labilities 21,923 590 27,113,584 5,220,734 54,257,908 3,089,492
Noncumrent liabllities
Uneamed deposits 16,199 3,162,570 - 3,178,769 -
Net OPEB Obigation 842,072 965,560 354,261 2,161,893 179,929
Deferred revenues - - 20,855 20,855 7,300
Long-term debl 22,243,604 140,596,420 - 162,840,024 63,705
Other llabilities - 1,703,073 - 1,703,073 -
Total noncurrent llabilities 23,101,875 146,427,623 375,116 169.904.614 250,934
Total iabilties 45,025 465 173,641,207 5,595,850 224,162,522 3,340,426
Net agsets
Investad in capital assets, net of reiated debt 202,507,367 267,948,283 33,507,076 524,262,726 2,226,196
Resfricied net assets
Capital projects 10,635 271,779 860,850 943,364 -
Debt service 2,743 - - 2,743 -
Unrestrictad 87.879 696 51,508,814 7,015,386 146,808,896 12,913,138
Total net assets $ 290400441 & 340,128,876 § 41487412 672,017,729 § 15!139.334
Soma amounis reported for business-type activitles in the statement of net assets are different
because certain intemal service fund assets and Jiabillies are included with business-type activities. 1,888,877
Net assets of businsss-typa activiles $ 673.906!606

The nobes to the financlal siatements sre an integra! part af this statement. E-6



CiTY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Qther revenue from operations
Interfund charges and employee contributions
Miscellaneous operating revenue - water
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses

General and administrative
Power supply and generation
Water purification and distrlbution
Sewer collection and treatment
Personnel
Maintenance and operations
Depreciation

Totai operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenue (expense)
Interest eamed (expensed) on investments
Federal and State grants
Miscellansous revenue
Gain {loss) on disposal of capital assels
County revenusg
Vehicle fee revenue
Interest expense
Amortization
Miscellaneous expense
Issue costs
Total nonoperating ravenue {expansa)

Income (loss) before transfers
Transfers in
Transfers out
Capilal contributlons

Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of activities are different

Enterprise Funds

Water and Other Intarnal

Electric Wastewater Enterprise Service

Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
$ 169,451,426 $ 57,525599 § 6,945,351 § 233922376 § -
- - 152,656 152,656 325,317
- - - - 20,965,209
- 7,420,147 - 7,420,147 -
169.451,426 64,945 746 7.098,007 241,495,179 21,290,526
11,807,436 12,297,341 - 24,104,777 -
146,111,217 - - 116,111,217 -
- 18,793,893 - 18,793,893 -
- 11,027,309 - 11,027,309 -
- - 4,157,927 4,157,927 424,142
- - 5,702,260 5,702,260 19,302,168
14,340,796 14,619,909 2,069,298 31.030,003 320,733
142,258,449 56,738,452 14,920,485 210,927,386 20,047,043
27,191,877 8,207,294 (4,831,478) 30,567,793 1,243,483
2,378,592 2,274,735 156,907 4,810,234 364,545
- - 2,426,798 2,426,798 -
- - 89,555 89,555 2
(337,229} 172,642 16,476 (148,111) 23,666
- - 251,296 251,296 -
- - 432,465 432,465 -
(1.391,834) (7,334,834} (16,073} (8,742,741) -
(644,010} {892,260) {22,000) (1,558,270} -
- - (250,320) (250,320) -
{82,192) {370,333) - (452,525) -
(76,673} (6,150,050} 3,085,104 (3,141,619) 388,213
27,115,304 2,057,244 (1,746,374) 27,426,174 1,631,696
31,065 2,549,500 2,594,702 5,175,267 -
(7.991,049) {63,186) (487,245) (8,541,480) (2,322,100)
1,044,143 11,598,860 6,975,630 19,618,633 -
20,199,463 16,142,418 7,336,713 43,678,594 {690,404}
270,200,978 323,987,458 34,150,699 15,629,738
$§ 290,400,441 § 340129876 § 41,487,412 $ 15139334

becauss the net revenue [expense) of certain intemal service funds is reported with business-type activities.

Change in net assets of business-type adlivities

The netes to the finandial stalements &re an Imegral part of this statemant. E-7

$ 43,678,594



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Enterprise Funds

Water and Other Internal
Electric Wastowater Evterprise Sarvice
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
Operating activities
Cash recelved from customers 165,437,038 § 66,494,480 § 3,431,465 § 235362903 § 20,826,915
Cash receiveg for insurance reimbursemants - - - - 323,022
Cash paid o or on benalf of employees for services {14,164,104) {17.098,530) (4,049,503) (35,312,137) (2,217,283)
Cash paid for goods and services (10,259,131) (24,035,726) (3,577,828 {37,872,785) (17,358,717}
Cash pald for power supply and generation (104,881,282} - - (104,981,262) -
Net cash provided by (used In}
operating activities 36,032,542 25,380,233 (4,195,966} 57,196,800 1,673,937
Noncapltal financing activities
Transfers in 3,048,521 9,025,919 2,594,702 14,667,142 -
Federal and State grants - - 2,426,798 2,426,798 -
Miscellaneous - - 340,851 340,851 2
Transfers out (11,006,505) {6,538,605) (487,245) (18,033,355) (2,322,100)
Vehicle revenue fees - - 432,465 432,465 -
Net cash provided {used) tiy noncapital
financing activities (7.859,984) 2,486,314 5,307.571 {166,099) (2,322,098)
Capltal and releted financing activities
Proceeds from sale of assets (337,229) 172,642 16,476 (146,111} 23,666
Contributed capltal received 1,042,648 5,167,552 6,975,630 13,188,030 -
Acquisltion and construction of capital asssts (19,590,313) (19,338,738} (7,684,911} (46,613,862) {170,075)
Principal paid on debt maturities (7,886,635) (7,700,978) (33,555) (15,621,168) -
Interest paid on debt maturilles (1,474,026) (7,705,167) (16,073} (9,195 266) -
Net cash provided {used) by capital and
ralated financing activities (28,245,355} (29.404,689) {742433) {58.392,477) {146,409}
Investing activities
Interest and dividends 2,378,592 2,274,735 156,907 4,810,234 364,545
Net change in investments (7,252,571} 3,459,463 - (3,793,108) -
Net cash provided {used) tiy Investing actlvities (4,873.879) 5,734,198 158,907 1,017,126 364,545
Net Increase (decraase) In cash and cash
equivalents/investments (5,046,776} 4,176,058 526,079 (344.641) (430,025)
Cash and cash equivelents/investments
Beglnning of year 57,497,296 30,816,941 6,288,634 94,602,871 15,563,417
End of year 52,450,520 3 34,992,997 § 6,814,713 § 94258230 3 15,133,382
Cash and cash equivalents 52,450,520 3 34902997 6,814,713 § 94258230 § 15,133,392
Investments 19,276,851 16,955,310 - 36,232,161 -
Total cash and cash equivalentsfinvestments 71,727,371 $ 51,948,307 $ 6,814,713 $ 130,490,391 $ 15,133,392
Unrestricted cash and equivalentsfinvestments 38.062,010 § 10571716 % 6,153,783 § 54787489 3§ 15,133,392
Restricted cash and equivalents/investments 33.665.361 41,376,591 680,950 75,702,002 -
Total cash and cash equivelents/investments 71,727,371 $ 51,948,307 % 8,814,713 § 130,490,391 3 15,133,392
The notes 1o the financia! statemants are an integral par of this statement. E8



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Reconclliation of opersting income {loss)
to net cash provided by
(used In) operating activities
Qperating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating Income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating

activities:
Dapreciation

Nonoperaling paymants for goeds and services

Allewance for uncollectible accounts

Change In assets and liabllities

Enterprise Funds

{Increase) decrease In accounts receivable

(Increase) decrease in Inventory

(increasa) decrease In prepald items

(increase} decrease in Intemal balances

(lncrease) decreasa in olher current assetis

(increase) decrease in other assais

{Increase) decraase in uneamed deposits

Increase {dacrease) in accounts payable
and accruad liabilllies

Increase (decrease) In accrued compensated
absences

Increase (decrease) In deferred revenues

Increase (decreasa) in Net OFEDB QObligation

Total ad)ustrents

Net cash provided by (used In} operating activities $

MNoncash Investing, caplital, and financing activitles:

Contributed caplial assets
FIF Credits Awarded
FIF Credits Applied

Water and Other Internal
Electric Wastewater Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
E 27,191,977  § B.207,284 § (4,831.478) § 30,567,793 % 1,243,483
14,340,796 14,619,909 2,069,298 31,030,003 320,733
- - (250,320} {250,320} -
106,496 (17,193) - 89,303 -
{4,115,795) 1,565,936 {3,712,764) (6,262,623) (35,889)
227,279 100,688 33,853 361,830 -
- - (3.747) (3,747) 83,280
(47.551) 49,233 - 1,682 {1,882)
(108.967) © (116,699) - (225,666) -
98,410 (1,010,361 - {911,951} -
1,248 (6,515) - (5,267} -
(1,706.527) 2,044,925 2,396,255 2,736,653 60,147
45,176 (76.994) 13,050 (18,768) 17,881
- - (B,262) (8,262} {4,700)
- - 95,374 95,374 10,884
8,640,585 17,152,839 635,512 28,628,016 430,454
36,032,542 $ 25360233 & {4,195966) §$ 57196809 § 1,673,937
] 1,295 & 6457520 _§ - 3 6458824 § -
p! - 3 {127,070} § - 3 [127,070) _$ -
b 3 100.848 3 - 5 100,849 § -

The nctes to the financial statements are an integra par of this statement. E9




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2009

Pansion Private-purpose
Trust Fund Trusts
Assats
Cash and investments
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2142482 & 1,360,367
Money market funds 3,947,048 -
Total cash and investments 6,089,530 1,360,367
Accounts receivable 7,214 5,843
Total assets 6,096,744 1,366,210
Liabllities
Accounts payabie 38,461 -
Total liabilities 38,461 _
Neat assets
Held in Trust for pension benefits and other
purposes 6,058,283 1,366,210
Total net assets $ 6058283 §% 1,366,210

The noles to the financial statements are an integral par of this statement. E-10




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Pension Private-purpose
Trust Fund Trusts
Additions

Other revenue from operations $ - 8 41,901
Employer contributions 444,528 -
Other contributions - 97,596
Investment earnings {80,215) 33,731
Total addifions 354,313 173,228

Deductions
Benefit payments and premiums 591,293 157,249
Total deductions 591,293 157,249
Change in net assets (236,980) 15,979
Total net assets - beginning 6,295,263 1,350,231
Total net assets - ending $ 6,058,283 § 1,366,210

The notes to the financial statements are an
inlegral part of this statement. E-11



Notes to Financial Statements

These notes are infended to communicate information necessary for a fair
presentation of financial position and results of operations that are not readily
apparent from, or cannot be included in, the financial statements themselves. The
notes supplement the financial statements, are an integral part thereof, and are

intended to be read together with the financial statements.
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Fayetteville, North Carolina (the “City”) was established in 1783. The City operates under a
council-manager form of government and provides the following services: administration, public safety,
environmental protection, transportation, economic and physical development, recreation and
community facilities, electric, water and wastewater utility, transit, airport services, and solid waste
recycling. The City receives substantial revenues from Federal and State sources. Ad valorem taxes
on the City of Fayetteville's citizens represent a significant portion of the general government revenues.

The financial statements of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more
significant accounting policies of the City are described below.

A - Reporting Entity

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial
statements present the City and its component units. GASB. Statements number 14 and 39 define
component units as legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary
government are financially accountable. The primary government is financially accountable if it
appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and a) it is able to impose its will on that
organization or b) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or
impose specific financial burdens upon, the primary government.

These statements provide two methods for reporting component units in the financial statements of the
primary government: discrete presentation and blending. Discrete presentation means that data will be
presented in one or more separate columns to the right of the primary government data columns.
Blending means that the component unit's financial data is reported as though the unit is part of the
primary government. |f the units provide services or benefits exclusively, or almost exclusively, to the
primary government, or if the component units and the primary government have "substantively
identical boards," the legally separate component units should be incorporated by blending. If the units
do not meet these criteria, their data should be incorporated by discrete presentation.

Based on evaluating these characteristics, the following is a brief review of the component units in the
City's reporting entity:

City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation

The City of Fayefteville Finance Corporation is a non-profit corporation formed for the purpose of
issuing bonds to build City facilities and park improvements, as well as for the defeasance and
refunding of 1989 certificates of participation. The City leases the City Hall, police administration
building, Festival Park and Westover Recreation Center from the Corporation with rental revenues
being used by the Corporation to retire the bonds. The Corporation is shown in a blended presentation
as the Corporation provides services exclusively to the City. The operating fund of the Corporation is
presented in the accompanying financial statements as a nonmajor special revenue fund.

F-1



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
City of Fayetteville Linear Park, Inc.

The City of Fayetteville Linear Park, Inc. is a non-profit corporation formed for the purpose of assisting
in the development of the Linear Park downtown. Linear Park, Inc. is shown in a blended presentation
as it provides services exclusively to the City. Its operating fund is presented in the accompanying
financial statements as a nonmajor capital project fund.

B - Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display
information about the primary government (the City) and its component units. These statements include
the financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double
counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the govemmental and business-
type activities of the City. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
the different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City’s governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and,
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been
made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a)
fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b} grants
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Reveriues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as
general revenues. '

The Government-wide Statements are presented on the full accrua! basis in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Fiduciary funds are not
included in these statements.

Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide information about the City’'s funds,
including its fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category
— governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements
is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and
investment earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. [t accounts for all financial
resources of the general government except those that are required to be accounted for in another
fund. The primary revenue sources are ad valorem taxes, state grants, and various other taxes and
licenses. The primary expenditures are for public safety, parks and recreation, street maintenance, and
solid waste.

Recreational and Cultural. The Recreational and Cultural Fund is a capital project fund used to
account for resources used for the acquisition and construction of facilities such as parks, recreation
centers and museums. Resources are provided through intergovernmental revenues, facility financing
proceeds and transfers from other funds.

The City reports the following nonmajor governmental funds:

Special Revenue Funds. Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. The Emergency Telephone System Fund
accounts for the fees charged to telephone customers to fund the 911 system. The Federal and State
Financial Assistance Fund accounts for federal and state grants. The Storm Water Management Fund
accounts for specified fees and maintenance of the storm water system. The City of Fayetteville
Finance Corporation Fund accounts for debt service on certain municipal buildings and park
improvements.

Capital Project Funds. Capital Project Funds account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of governmental capital assets. The General Government Fund accounts for
information technology and other projects supporting the entire government. The Public Safety Fund
accounts for projects supporting the public safety services provided by the City. The Transportation
Fund accounts for projects to improve transportation and related services throughout the City. The
Water and Sewer Fund accounts for Lumbee River Electric Membership Corporation Territory
Agreement revenues and associated activities. The City closed this fund in fiscal year ending June 30,
2008. The Bond Improvement Fund accounts for bond proceeds and their use. The Economic and
Physical Development Fund accounts for construction and improvement of various public facilities. The
Linear Park Fund accounts for projects associated with development of the Linear Park Downtown.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:
Electric Fund. This fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the Butier-Warner Generation
Plant and the transmission and distribution of electricity to the City of Fayetteville and surrounding

areas.

Water and Wastewater Fund. This fund accounts for the operations of the water and wastewater
facilities for the customers within the City of Fayetteville and surrounding areas.

The Electric Fund and the Water and Wastewater Fund are operated under the Public Works
Commission (PWC) of the City of Fayetteville.

The City reports the following nonmajor enterprise funds: The Transit Fund accounts for operation of
the municipal transit system. The Airport Fund accounts for the operation and capital asset acquisition
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued}

and construction of the Fayetteville Regional Airport. The Solid Waste Recycling Fund accounts
construction for specified fees and residential recycling services.

The City reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Fund. Internal Service Funds account for the financing of services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, on a cost reimbursement basis.
The Warranty Fleet Fund is used to account for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated
with internally leasing vebicles. The Insurance Fund is used to account for the accumulation and
allocation of costs associated with health, workers compensation, and liability claims. The PWC Fleet
Maintenance Fund accounts for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated with the City's and
PWC's fleet maintenance activities. ‘

Pension Trust Fund. These funds accumulate contributions in order to pay retirement benefits to
eligible participants. The Special Separation Allowance Pension Trust Fund accounts for the Law
Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance, a single-employer, and public employee
retirement system. The PWC Supplemental Pension Trust Fund accounts for the PWC Supplemental
Employees’ Retirement Plan, a single-employer defined benefit pension plan.

Private-Purpose Trust Fund. These funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for
use by others. The Police Benefit and Fireman’s Benefit Trust Funds account for resources held in
trust for these two groups of individuals. All resources of the funds, including any earnings on invested
resources, may be used to support the organizations’ activities. There is no requirement that any
portion of these resources be preserved as capital.

C - Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the City are maintained during the year
using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide,
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus. The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are
reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.
Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives {or receives) value without directly receiving {or
giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, and donations. On an accrual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue
from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The City’s proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with the funds’ principal cngoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the City's utility funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating
expenses for the City's utility funds include the costs of sales and services, general and administrative
services and depreciation of capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related
fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and
judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have
matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other
financing sources.

The City considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, except for
property taxes. Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as a revenue because the amount is not
susceptible to accrual at June 30, since taxes receivable are materially past due and are not
considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year.

Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of
property taxes on all registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law,
Cumberland County is responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on registered motor
vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in the County, including the City of
Fayetteville. For motor vehicles registered under the staggered system, property taxes are due the first
day of the fourth month after the vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal
year in which they become due. Therefore, the City's vehicle taxes for vehicles registered in
Cumberland County from March 2008 through February 2009 apply to the fiscal year ended June 30,
2009. Uncollected taxes, which were billed during this period, are shown as a receivable in these
financial statements and are offset by deferred revenues.

All GASB Statements and all Financial Accounting Standards Board (‘FASB”) Statements issued on or
before November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with the GASB are applied in both the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.

Intergovernmental revenues and sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of
the City are recognized as revenue. Sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because
generally they are not measurable until received in cash. Grant revenues, which are unearned at year-
end, are recorded as unearned revenues.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes where the amounts are
reasonably equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and other charges between the
government'’s electric, water and wastewater functions and various other functions of the government.
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the
various functions concemed. .

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use
restricted resources first then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

D — Budgetary Data

Budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget is adopted
for the general, selected special revenue, and enterprise funds. All annual appropriations lapse at
fiscal year end. Project and grant ordinances are adopted for the Federal and State Financial
Assistance special revenue fund and capital project funds. Enterprise capital project funds are
consolidated with the operating funds for reporting purposes. The City's internal service funds are
intra-governmental service funds, which operate under financial plans that were adopted by the
goveming board at the time the City's budget ordinance was approved, as is required by the General
Statutes. All budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may
not legally exceed appropriations at the departmental level for the general, selected special revenue,
and proprietary funds and at the project level for selected special revenue and capital project funds.
Any revisions that alter total appropriations at the department or project level, as appropriate, of any
fund must be approved by the City Council. During the year, several amendments to the original
budget were necessary. The budget ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the fiscal year or the
governing board must adopt an interim budget that covers that time until the annual ordinance can be
adopted.

E - Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity
Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the City are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as required
by State law (G.S. 159-31). The City may designate, as an official depository, any bank or savings
association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the City may establish time
deposit accounts such as NOW and Super NOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of
deposit.

State law (G.S. 159-30(c)) authorizes the City to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations
fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of North
Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority (including the
North Carolina Educational Assistance Authority); obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal
agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances; and the North
Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT).



City of Fayetteville, North Caroclina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The City's investments with maturity of more than one year at acqguisition and non-money market
investments are reported at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. The securities of the
NCCMT Cash Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund, are valued at fair value,
which is the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio’s securities are valued at fair value.
Money market investments that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less
and non-participating interest earnings and investment contracts are reported at amortized cost.

In accordance with State law, the City has invested in securities which are callable and which provide
for periodic interest rate increases in specific increments until maturity. These investments are reported
at fair value as determined by quoted market prices.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize
investment income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are
considered cash and cash equivalents. The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds consider
demand deposits and investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash and cash equivalents.

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

In accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-136(a)}], the City levies ad valorem taxes on
property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on
September 1 (lien date); however, interest does not accrue until the following January 6. The taxes are
based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2008.

Receivables

The receivables in the utility funds consist primarily of customer receivables for utility services. The
City provides allowances for uncollectible receivables equal to the estimated collection losses to be
incurred. The estimated losses are computed using the experience method. The City grants credit to
residential, business and industrial customers, substantially all of whom are local to the City of
Fayetteville area.

Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables
The City recorded a receivable in the special revenue fund for $2,158,583 related to loans issued
associated with grants or other financial assistance that has been awarded. Many of these awarded

loans are not expected to be collected and are scheduled to be forgiven based upon note compliance;
therefore, they are included in the allowance for uncollectible receivables.
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

The City operates enterprise funds that provide credit in the normal course of business to customers
primarily located in Fayetteville, North Carolina. The City performs on-going credit evaluations of its
customers and maintains allowances for doubtful accounts by using the experience method to estimate
collection losses to be incurred. Credit losses, when realized, have been within the range of the City's
estimations and historically have not been significant. Other receivables that historically experience
uncoliectible accounts are also shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. This amount is
estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written off in prior years.

The receivables shown on the Statement of Net Assets are presented net of the following allowances
for doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2009:

Fund
General Fund:

Taxes receivable $ 803,409

Accounts receivable 25127

Assessments receivable 144,893
Special Revenue Fund:

Taxes receivable 7,569

Accounts receivable 2,158,858
Transit Operating:

Accounts receivable 3,461
Airport Operating:

Accounts receivable 273
Electric Fund:

Accounts receivable 306,702
Water and Wastewater Fund:

Accounts receivable 47 676

Total $ 3,498,068

Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as “Interfund receivable”
or “Interfund payable” on the balance sheet in the fund financial statements and as “internal balances”
on the statement of net assets in the government-wide financial statements.

Inventories

Governmental inventories of supplies are valued at cost. Other inventories are valued at the lower of
average cost or market. The costs of governmental fund-type inventories, which consist of materials
and supplies, are recorded as expenditures when they are consumed rather than when they are
purchased. The costs of enterprise fund-type inventories, which consist of generation fuel, materials
and spare parts, are expensed when used rather than when purchased.
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Prepaid Expenses

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2009, are recorded as
prepaid items.

Restricted Assets and Liabilities

In the special revenue, capital project and enterprise funds the City has classified as restricted the
assets representing deposits, reserves, capital project appropriations, advance grant funding, debt
service reserve and unexpended bond proceeds because their use is completely restricted to the
purpose for which the bonds were issued or the purpose for which the funds were set aside. Liabilities
due to be repaid from restricted assets are classified as restricted liabilities.

Interest Rate Swaps

The City enters into interest rate swap agreements to modify interest rates on outstanding debt.
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Capital Assets

The City defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 ($2,500 in
the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds) and an estimated usefu! life in excess of one year.
Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated
capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. General infrastructure
assets acquired prior to July 1, 2001 and storm water network assets acquired prior to July 1, 2004 are
reported at estimated historical cost using deflated current cost. Utility (electric, water, and wastewater)
capital assets purchased or constructed since 1958 are recorded at cost. Contributed utility assets are
recorded at estimated value at the date of acquisition. Utility assets acquired prior to 1958 are carried
on an estimated cost basis. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of
the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as applicable. Gains and
losses on dispositions of capital assets are credited or charged to operations.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated

Useful Lives
Asset Class (Years)
Infrastructure 15-50
Buildings 40
Utility plant systems 20-45
Improvements 5-15
Vehicles 5-20
Furniture and equipment 5—-10
Computer equipment 3

Interest expense that relates to the cost of acquiring or constructing capital assets in enterprise funds is
capitalized. Interest expense incurred in connection with construction of capital assets is reduced by
interest earned on the investment of funds borrowed for construction in accordance with FASB 62
"Capitalization of Interest Cost in Situations Involving Certain Tax Exempt Borrowings and Certain Gifts
and Grants."

Unearned Deposits

Facility investment fees credit is given on a dollar per dollar basis for off-site water and wastewater
approach mains necessary to serve City approved projects. The facility investment fees credit, if not
utilized in the initial development, will be available to the developer for use in other City approved
projects for a period not to exceed 5 years from the original contract date, unless otherwise stated in
contract or through extension approved by the City.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued}
Compensated Absences

The vacation policy of the City provides for the accumulation of up to seven (7) weeks earned vacation
leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the City’s government-wide and proprietary
funds, an expense and a liability for compensated absences, including compensatory time and holiday
pay, and the salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is earned.

The City's sick leave policy provides for unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave does
not vest but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retrement may be used in the
determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since the City has no obligation for
the accumulated sick leave “until it is actually taken, no accrual for that sick leave has been made.
However, the City’s sick leave policy for Electric and Water and Wastewater Fund employees allows
25% of accumulated sick leave to be paid at the time of retirement. A liability for the estimated amount
of this sick leave to ultimately be paid is included in the financial statements.

Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments with an
original maturity date of three months or less to be cash equivalent.

Long-Term Obligations

in the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds using the straight-line method that approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable
are reported net of the applicable bond premiums or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

At June 30, 2009, the City recorded as other liabilities in the government-wide financial statements,
$542,421 for bond premiums and discounts and $1,703,073 for North Carolina Department of
Transportation projects.

In fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Net Assets/Fund Balances

Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested in
capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent
constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws
or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through state statute.




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued})

In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations of fund balance represent amounts that are
not appropriable or are legally segregated for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance
represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

State law (G.S. 159-13(b) (16)) restricts appropriation of fund balance for the subsequent year's budget
to an amount not to exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabifities,
encumbrances, and deferred revenues arising from cash receipts as those amounts stand at the close
of the fiscal year preceding the budget year.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:
Reserved

Reserved by State statute - portion of fund balance, in addition to reserves for encumbrances and
reserves for inventories, which is not available for appropriation under State law [G.S. 159-8(a)]. This
amount is usually comprised of accounts receivable and interfund receivables, which have not been
offset by deferred revenues.

Reserved for encumbrances - portion of fund balance available to pay for commitments related to
purchase orders or contracts which remain unperformed at year-end.

Reserved for inventories - portion of fund balance that is not available for appropriation because it
represents the year-end fund balance of ending inventories, which are not expendable, available
resources.

Reserved for downtown - portion of fund balance available for appropriation for projects in the Central
Business District.

Reserved for county recreation — portion of fund balance available to pay for the recreational activities
of Cumberland County.

Reserved for Streets - Powell Bill — portion of fund balance available for appropriation but legally
segregated for street expenditures. It represents the balance of the total unexpended Powell Biil funds
which is an annual grant received by the City from the N.C. Department of Transportation.

Reserved for J.P. Riddie Stadium — portion of fund balance available to pay for the operation of the J.P.
Riddle Stadium.

Reserved for Donations - portion of fund balance that is not available for appropriation because it
represents donor-imposed restrictions.

Reserved for Grant Compliance — portion of fund balance available for appropriation but legally
restricted by external grantors.

Reserved for Debt Service — portion of fund balance that is not available for appropriation because it
represents the portion available to pay for debt service, in accordance with the related debt agreement.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Unreserved

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures - portion of the total fund balance available for
appropriation that has been designated for the adopted 2009 - 2010 budget ordinance.

Designated for special purpose - portion of fund balance identified for specific uses in the general fund
and special revenue funds.

Designated for debt service - portion of fund balance designated to meet future principal and interest
payments on outstanding debt.

Undesignated - portion of total fund balance available for appropriation that is uncommitted at year-end.
F - Reclassification

For comparability, certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to
conform to the current year presentation.

G - Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

H — Pronouncements Implemented in the Current Year

GASB Statement No. 49, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation
Obligations.” This statement provides guidance on how to calculate and report the costs and
obligations associated with pollution cleanup efforts. The requirements of this Statement are effective
for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2007, however there was no material
impact during fiscal year 2009.

| — Upcoming Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 51, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets.” This
statement establishes accounting and financial reporting reguirements for intangible assets including
easements, water rights, timber rights, patents, trademarks, and computer software. The requirements
of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2009.

GASB Statement No. 53, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments.
Statement 53 is intended to improve how state and local governments report information about
derivative instruments—financial arrangements used by governments to manage specific risks or make
investments—in their financial statements. The Statement specifically requires governments to
measure most derivative instruments at fair value in their financial statements that are prepared using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The guidance in this
Statement also addresses hedge accounting requirements and is effective for financial statements for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2009, with earlier application encouraged.
F-13
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The City is currently in the process of evaluating these statements and the impact that they will have on
the City.

Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
A - Deposits

Ali of the City's deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under the
Dedicated Method, all deposits that exceed the Federal Depository Insurance coverage level are
collateralized with securities held by the City's agents in the City’s name. Under the Pooling Method,
which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State
Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary
capacity for the City, these deposits are considered to be held by the City's agents in their names. The
amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing
deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling
Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured
deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the City or the escrow agent.
Because of the inability to measure the exact amounts of collateral pledged for the City under the
Pooling Method, the potential exists for undercollaterization, and this risk may increase in periods of
high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial
stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method.

The State Treasurer enforces standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial
institutions. The City relies on the State Treasurer to monitor those financial institutions. The City
analyzes the financial soundness of any other financial institution used by the City. The City complies
with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating official depositories and verifying that deposits are
properly secured.

The City places its cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions in the United States.
In October and November 2008 the Federal Deposit insurance Corporation (FDIC) temporarily
increased coverage to $250,000 for substantially all depository accounts and temporarily provides
unlimited coverage for certain qualifying and participating non-interest bearing transaction accounts.
The increased coverage is scheduled to expire on December 31, 2013, at which time it is anticipated
amounts insured by the FDIC will return to $100,000.
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City of Fayetteville, North Caroclina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued)
At June 30, 2009, the City's demand deposits had a carrying amount of $25 684,941 and a bank
balance of $28,400,143. Of the bank balance, Federal Deposit Insurance covered $302,753, and
$28,097,390 was covered by collateral under the Poocling Method.

At June 30, 2009, the City had certificate of deposits totaling $32,427,055. Of this amount, Federal
Deposit Insurance covered $750,000, and $31,677,055 was covered by collateral under the Pooling

Method.
The City had $12,130 in the petty cash and change funds.
B - Investments

The funds of the City of Fayetteville are invested in compliance with the provisions of North Carolina
General Statutes 159-30 and 159-31. The City's Investment Policy is a board-approved policy.

At June 30, 2009, the City investment balances were as follows:

Less than 6
Fair Value Months 1-5 Years 5-10 Years
U.S. Govemment Agencies $ 75,090,518 $ - $ B5162484 § 9,928,034
Commercial Paper ] 7,764,955 7,764 955 - -
N.C. Capital Management Trust - Cash portfolio 85,031,130 85,031,130 -
N.C. Capital Management Trust - Term portfalio 214,332 214,332 -
Total Primary Government 168,100,935 93,010,417 65,162,484 9,928,034
Money Market Fund - Fiduciary Funds 3,547,048 3,947,048 - -
Reporting Entity Total $ 172,047,583 $ 96557465 $ 65162484 3 5,928,034

Third-party custodians who take delivery of the investment securities on behalf of the City held
investments of $3,947,048 for the Supplemental PWC Pension Trust Fund.

Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest
rates, the City’s investment policy provides for structuring the investment portfolio so that securities
mature to meet cash requirements for the ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell
securities on the open market prior to maturity. Also the City’s investment policy requires purchases of
securities to be laddered with staggered maturity dates and limits all securities other than Treasuries,
Agencies, and North Carclina state and local bonds to a final maturity of no more than three years.
Treasuries, Agencies, and North Carolina state and local bonds are limited to maturities not exceeding

ten years.
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City of Fayetteville, North Carclina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued)

Credit Risk. The City has no formal policy regarding credit risk; however, the State law limits
investments in commercial paper to the top rating issued by nationally recognized statistical rating
organizations (NRSROs). The City minimizes credit risk by limiting investments to the types allowed by
North Carolina General Statutes 159-30. The City diversifies the investment portfolio to minimize the
impact of potential losses from any one security or from any one individual issuer. Alse, the City pre-
qualifies the financial institutions brokers/dealers and requires them to meet specific financial and
registration conditions. As of June 30, 2009, the City's commercial paper was rated A1 by Moody's
investors Service and P1 by Standard & Poor's. The City’s investments in the NC Capital Management
Trust Cash Portfolio carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard & Poor’s as of June 30, 2009. The
City’s investments in the NC Capital Management Trust Term Portfolio are not rated. The Term
Portfolio is authorized to invest in obligations of the U.S. government and agencies, and in high grade
money market instruments as permitted under North Carolina general statutes 159-30 as amended.
The City's investments in US Agencies {Federal Home Loan Bank, Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and
Federal Farm Credit Bank) are rated AAA by Standard & Poor's and Aaa by Moody's Investors Service.

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of failure of
the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. The City requires that investment securities are in the
name of the City of Fayetteville and are held by a centralized independent third-party custodian. The
City requires that the independent third-party custcdian issue a safekeeping receipt to the Chief
Financial Officer listing the specific instrument, rate, maturity, and other pertinent information as
evidence. All investment security purchases and sales are on a delivery verses payment basis and are
made through the independent third-party custodian by written instruction.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The City places no limit on the amount that the City may invest in any
one issuer. More than 5% of the City’s investments are in NC Cash Management Trust securities,
Freddie Mac securities, Federal Home Loan Bank securities, and Federal Farm Credit Bank securities.
These investments are 49.5%, 16.5%, 16.1% and 7.1%, respectively, of the City’s total investments.
Reconciliation to cash and investments:

Totals per footnote:

Total investments (including escrow) $ 172,047,983
Cash {(demand deposits) 25,684,941
Plus Certificate of Deposits 31,071,555
Fireman's Relief Fund Certificate of Deposit 1,355,500
Petty cash 12,130
Total cash and investments $ 230,172,108
Totals per Statement of Net Assets:
Cash and investments - unrestricted $ 129,395,064
Cash and investments - restricted 93,327,148
Pension trust cash and investments 6,089,530
Private-purpose trust cash and investments 1,360,367
Total cash and investments $ 230,172,109
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

Note 3 - Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

Primary Government

Governmental adtivities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets,
not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Equipment, furniture and fixtures
Vehicles
Total capital assets
being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Equipment, furniture and fixtures
Vehicles
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

Governmental activity capital assets, net

Balance Balance
July 1, 2008 Increases Decreases Transfers June 30, 2009
3 36,111,744 § 594,829 § (409,197) - 36,297,376
3,109,248 177,127 - - 3,286,375
39,220,992 771,856 (409,197} - 39,583,751
444 787,892 4378,913 - - 449,166,805
72,254 333 264,158 - - 72,518,491
21,943,640 2.835,507 {530,818) 3537 24,251 866
35,562,819 4 .952,067 (2,177,190} - 38,337 696
574 548,684 12,430,645 {2,708,008) 3537 584,274,858
(153,754,100} {12,326,598) - - (166,080,698)
{23,555,995}) (2,400,681) - - (25,956,676}
{18,219,006}) (2,009,837) 524,550 (3,154) (19,707,447)
(22,552,973) (3,317,415) 2,141,872 - (23,728,516)
(218,082,074) $ (20,054,531) $ 2,666,422 (3,154) (235,473,337)

356,466,610

$ 395,687,602

348,801,521

388,385,272

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the governmental activities of the primary

government as follows:

Administration

Public safety
Environmental protection
Transportation

Economic and physical development
Recreation and community facilities

$ 221,230
3,622,184
1,607,379

12,717,474
634,837
930,594

Capital assets held by certain intermal
service funds are charges to the various
governmental functions based on the

usage of the funds
Total depreciation expense

320,733
$ 20,054,531
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Note 3 - Capital Assets (continued)

* Disposals in construction in progress are shown as additions to capital assets being depreciated.

Business-type activities:
Electric Fund
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Electric utility system
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and machinery
Computer programs
Vehicles
Office equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Electric utility system
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and machinery
Computer programs
Vehicles
Office equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Eledtric fund capital assets, net

Water and Wastewater Fund

Capital assets not beingdepreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Waslewater system
Water system
Buildings and im provements
Equipment and machinery
Computer programs
Vehicles
Office equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Wastewater system
Water system
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and machinery
Computer programs
Vehicles
Office equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Water and Wastewater fund capital assets, net

_$ 428336,053
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Balance Balance
July 1, 2008 Ineases Decreases * Transfers June 30, 2009
$ 5,235,266 % 40,212 $ - 3 - $ 5,275,478
9,523,684 15,692,593 (8,997,571) * - 16,218,706
14,758,950 15,732,805 (8,997,571) - 21,494 184
340,690,791 10,867,239 (1,754,237) - 349,803,793
37,606,027 48,766 - - 37,654,793
14,852,565 334,857 (96,027 (3,537) 15,087,858
11,125,283 357,901 (35,371) - 11,447 813
5,758,487 1,656,222 (632,361} 33427 6,716,775
1,563,790 - (87,783) (143) 1,475,864
411,586,943 13,164 985 {2.605,779) 29,747 422 185,896
(171,677,035) {(11,319,724) 1,390,948 - {181,605,811)
(12.192,018) (1,247,315) - - (13,439,333)
(7.451,114) (583,453) 93,539 3,154 (7,937,874)
(9/470,596) {797,101} 35,371 ~ (10,232,326)
(3,572, 150) (322,529) 630,708 (44,392) (3,308,372)
(1,386,454} (70,674) 87,784 143 (1,369,201)
(205,749,376) $ (14,340796) § 2,238,350 $ {41,095) {217,892 917}
205,847 567 204,292979
$ 220606,517 $ 225787163
$ 8216,469 $ 324 169 $ (923) 3 - 3 8,539,715
4995 556 24,965,385 (17,057,710} ~ - 12,903,231
13,212,025 25,289,554 (17,058,633) - 21,442 846
369,271,415 7,687,387 - - 376,958,802
234,089,386 8,773630 - - 242873016
4,284 921 44,338 - - 4,329,259
8,447 360 339,998 {217,553) - 8,569,805
10,342,939 316,655 (16,428} - 10,643,166
5,751,351 364,579 {415,888) (33,427) 5666615
761,421 8,493 (79,756} 143 690,301
632,958,793 17,535,080 (729,625} (33,284) 649,730,964
(112,759,703) (8,080773) - - {120,840,476)
(84,217,408) {4,858,824) - - (89,076,232)
(2,157,290} {135,561) - - (2,252,851)
(6.075,308) (444,199) 210,715 - (6,308.792)
(8.774,840) (769,938) 16,428 - (9,528,350)
(3,150,049) (321,063) 415,884 44392 (3,010,836)
{700,167) (9,551) 79,749 {143) (630,112)
(217,834,765) § (14,619909) § 722,776 $ 44 249 {231,687 549)
415,124 028 418,043315

$§ 439,486,261



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 3 - Capital Assets (continued)

Balance Balance June
July 1, 2008 Increases Decreases Transfers 30, 2009
Business-type acfivities (continued): :
Nonmajor funds
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 2,320,593 $ - $ - $ - $ 2,320,593
Caonstruction in progress 5,822254 5,673,250 - (3,939,144) 8,556,360
Total capital assets not being depreciated §,142 847 6,673,250 - (3,939,144) 10,876,953
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 44,061,873 245,937 (27,718) 3,939,144 48,219,236
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2,962,504 183,009 (212,581) - 2,932,932
Vehicles 8,829,115 588,698 (1,585,450) - 7,832,363
Total capital assets being depreciated 55,853,492 1,017,644 {1,825,749) 3,939,144 58,984,531
Less accumulated depredation for:
Buildings and improvernents (27,027,010) (1,464,203) 21,735 - (28,469,478}
Furniture, fidures and equipment (2,311,149) (201,891} 212,581 - (2,300,559)
Vehicles (6,466,717) (403,104) 1,585,450 - (5,284,371}
Total accumulated depreciation (35,804,876) $ (2069,298) . § 1,819,766 $ - (36,054,408)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 20,0481616 22,930,123

Nonmajor fund capital assets, net -5 28,191,463
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 677,134,033

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities of the primary government as follows:

Electric $ 14,340,796
Water and Wastewater 14,619,809
Transit 576,482
Airport 1,492.816
Total depreciation expense $ 31,030,003

533,807,076

$ 699,080,500



City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 4 — Accounts Payable

Unrestricted and restricted accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the foIIowmg as of June
30, 2009:

Recreational Nonmajor Inte mal Water and Nonmajer
Gereml and Cukural _Govemmental Service Subtoial Electric VWastewater Enterprise Fid uctary
Accourts payable $ 4586611 $ 25,038 § 144020 § 264,000 5 5020660 $17/452850 §11,555,217 % 124,108 § -
Incurred but not re ported - - - 2,246 173 2,246 173 832,650 632 650 -
Contrads payable 4,400 75,745 2,310,532 - 2,380 677 - - 3,998,917
Interest payable - - - - - 405,524 2,311,305 -
Retainage payable - - 46,672 - 48 672 - - 589435
Salaries and
benefits payable 2,403,113 - 37,304 118,820 2,560,237 868,931 899,889 96,612 38,481
Total $ 69124 $ 101,779 § 2538528 § 2,629,993 12,264 424 $ 19,358,954 $15,398.841 3 480612 $ 35,461
Adjustment for interest payable 320,794
$ 12,585,218
Reconciiation to accounts payable on the financial state ments:
Unrestricted $ 69124 § 101,779 § 2538528 § 2829993 $ 12264424 $13,726267 $11990713 % 480612 $ 38,461
Restrided - - - - - 5633877 3,408,128 ~ -
$ 694,124 $ 101,779 § 2538528 § 2,029,993 12,264 424  §$19,359,964 $15,398 841 § 4806122 § 38,461
Adjustment for interest payabla 320,754
$ 12,585,278

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations
A - General Obligation Indebtedness

The City has issued general obligation bonds (to include general obligation bonds for the benefit of the
Electric and Water and Wastewater funds) to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith, credit, and
taxing power of the City. They are serviced by the general fund and the water and wastewater fund.
Principal and interest payments are appropriated when due General obligation bonds outstanding for
the year ended June 30, 2009, are as follows:

Governmental activities
$13,800,000 Public Improvement Bonds, Series 1996 due in various
annual installments, through December 1, 2015;
interest at a rate of 5%. $ 5,275,000

$4,900,000 Street Improvement Bonds, Series 1999 due in various
installments beginning March 1, 2000 through March 1, 2017;
interest at vanous rates hetween 4.3% and 4.4%. 2,150,000

$275,000 Public Improvement Bonds, Series 2000
due in various annual installments beginning Apnl 1, 2002
through April 1, 2021; interest at various rates between
5.0% and 5.1%. 182,825

$2,400,000 Street Improvement Bonds, Series 2000 due in
various installments beginning April 1, 2002 through
April 1, 2018; interest at a rate of 5%. 1,700,000




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued)

$5,535,000 Refunding Bonds, Senes 2002 due in various
annual installments through June 1, 2018;
interest at various rates befween 3.5% and 4%.

$3,805,000 Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 due in various
annual installments through May 1, 2010;
interest at a rate of 3%.

$8,450,000 Public Improvement Bonds, Series 2005 due in
various semiannual installments through June 1, 2025,
interest at various rates bhetween 3.4% and 4.25%.

Less: Loss on Defeasance

Total governmental general obligation bonds

Business-type activities

$2,770,000 Street Improvement Bonds, Series 1996
due in various annual installments through December 1, 2014:
interest at a rate of 5.0%.

$2,750,000 Public Improvement Bonds, Series 1999
due in various annual installments through March 1, 2017;
interest at a rate of 4.3%.

$3,335,000 Public improvement Bonds, Series 2000
due in various annual installments through April 1, 2021;
interest at various rates between 5.0% and 5.1%.
$3,625,000 Street Improvement Bonds, Series 2002

due in various annual installments through June 1, 2021;
interest at various rates between 3.5% and 4.5%.

Total business type general obligation bonds

Total genera! obligations bonds
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$ 2,785,000

365,000

6,750,000

19,207,825

(478,907)
__ 18,728,918

1,520,000

1,250,000

2,217,175

2,425 000

7,412,175

$ 26,141,093



City of Fayettevilie, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 5§ - Long-Term Obligations {continued)
B - Revenue Bonds

The City has issued revenue honds, which have been used to finance the defeasance of certificates of
participation and the construction of facilities used in the City's operations. Resources generated by
the facilities’ operations are retiring the bonds. Revenue bonds outstanding for the year ended June
30, 2009, are as follows:

Governmental activities:
$16,390,000 Municipal Building Project Bonds, Series 1996 due in
various annual installments through February 1, 2018; interest
at various rates between 5.6% and 5.7%. $ 2,240,000

$5,835,000 Municipal Building Project Refunding Bonds, Series 2005,
due in various annual instaliments through February 1, 2018;
interest at various rates between 3.5% and 5.25%. 3,905,000

$3,920,000 Municipal Building Project Bonds, Series 2005, for the construction of
Festival Park due in various annual installments through
February 1, 2012; interest at various rates between 3.5% and 5.0% 1,680,000

$2,685,000 Municipal Building Project Bonds, Series 2005, for the construction of
Westover Recreation Center due in various annual installments
through February 1, 2019; interest at various rates between

3.5% and 5.25%. 1,805,000
Total governmental revenue bonds 9,730,000

Business-type activities

$40,755,000 Revenue Bonds, Series 1997 due in various
annual installments through March 1, 2010; interest
at a rate of 4.9%. 1,705,000

$19,325,000 Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 due in various annual
installments through March 1, 2010; interest at a rate of 5.0%. 850,000

$19,175,000 Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2001
due in various annual installments through March 1, 2016;
interest at various rates between 4.25% and 5.5%. 10,275,000

$78,280,000 Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003

due in various annual installments through March 1, 2024,
fixed rate swap at 3.42%. 72,140,000

F-22



City of Fayetteville, North Carclina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued)

$55,150,000 Variable Rate Revenue and Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2003A due in various annual installments through
March 1, 2020; fixed rate swap at 3.74%. $ 53,650,000

$17,025,000 Revenue Bonds, Series 2008 due in various annual installments
through March 1, 2023; interest at various rates between

3.5% and 4.5%. 16,425,000
Total business-type revenue bonds 155,045,000
Less: Loss on Defeasance (7,579,848)
Total revenue bonds $147,465152

Total interest expense related to the revenue and general obligation bonds totaled $10,066,389 for the
year ended June 30, 2009 and of that amount, $120,118 was capitalized during the year.

The City has pledged future electric, water and wastewater customer revenues, net of specified
operating expenses, to repay $229,710,000 in revenue and revenue refunding bonds issued at various
times from 1997 through 2008. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for extensions, additions
and capital improvements to or the renewal and replacement of capital assets of, or purchasing and
installing new equipment for, the electric, water, and wastewater systems. The bonds are payable
solely from water and sewer customer net revenues and are payable through 2024. The total principal
and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $195,865,207. Principal and interest paid for the
current year and total customer revenues were $12,967,122 and $226,977,025, respectively.

C - Notes Payable

Notes payable financed by the Electric/Water and Wastewater Funds are accounted for in the
respective funds.

The City has entered into revolving loan agreements for $7,595,127 and $16,969,848 with the State of
North Carolina. The loans were used for a Wastewater Project. The City has also entered into a loan
agreement with South River Electric Membership Corporation (SREMC) utilizing funds made available
to SREMC by USDA-Rural Development for a water capital project. These notes payable are junior,
inferior and subordinate in all respects to the Revenue Bonds and General Obligation Bonds of the City
of Fayetteville as to lien on and source and security for payment from the revenues and in all other
respects.

Notes payable in the accompanying financial statements are comprised of the following:
Business-type activities
$7,595,127 State revolving loan due in annual

instaliments through May 1, 2021, interest at 2.6% paid
semiannually on May 1 and November 1. $ 4,557,076
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued)

$16,969,848 State revolving loan due in annual
installments through May 1, 2026; interest at 2.66%

paid semiannually on May 1 and November 1. $ 14,424 371

$396,000 SREMC Loan due in 10 annual installments beginning

April 5, 2006; no interest 237,600
Total business-type notes payable 19,219,047
Total notes payable $ 19.219.047

Total interest expense related to the notes payable obligations totaled $529,209 for the year ended
June 30, 2009.

D - Lease Agreements

The City has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing certain equipment, vehicles and
fixtures. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore,
have been recorded at the present value of the minimum lease payments as of the date of their
inception.

Capital lease obligations are comprised of the following:

Govemmental activities
Capital lease obligations payable in various semi-annual
installments of approximately $463,828 in 2010
including interest at rates ranging from 4.19% to 4.55% $ 7,394,665

Capital lease ohligations payable in varicus monthly
installments of approximately $86,057 in 2010
including interest at 3.81% 1,032,684

Capital lease obligations payable in various monthly
installments of approximately $56,724 in 2010
including interest at 3.05% 623,974

Capital lease obligaticns payable in various monthly
installments of approximately $60,852 in 2010

including interest at 3.375% 2,860,049
11,911,372
Less: amount representing interest {1,643 805)

Present value of the minimum lease payments $ 10,267,567




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note § - Long-Term Obligations {continued)

The following is an analysis of leased property under capital leases as of June 30, 2009:

Classes of Property Cost Depreciation Value
Equipment $ 5853709 3 1,794241 § 4,059,468
Vehicles 4,379,638 3,860,818 518,820
Buildings and improvement 16,789,518 2,901,234 13,888,284

Total $ 27,022,865 § 8,556,293 § 18,466,572

Total interest expense related to the capital lease obligations totaled $207,009 for the year ended June

30, 2009.

E - Changes in Long-Term Obligations

The following is a summary of changes in the City’s long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended June

30, 2009:
Balance Balance
July 1, 2008 Increases Decreases June 30, 2009 Current Portion
Gavernmental activities:
General obligation debt $ 22098061 % - % 2890236 §% 19,207,825 §  2,850235
Revenus bonds 11,285,000 - 1,555,000 8,730,000 1,310,000
Capitalized leases 14,343,916 - 4,076,349 10,267,567 2,955,084
Compensated absences 4.979,390 6,001,594 6,077,853 4,903,131 2,929,943
Net OPEB Obligation 5,406,725 1,985 486 - 7,392,211 -
58,113,092 % 7987080 $ 14,599,438 51,500,734 10,045,262
Less: loss on defeasance
(net of amortization) (570,906) (478,907)
Total govemmental activifies $ 57,542 186 % 51,021,827 $ 10,045262
Balance Balance
July 1, 2008 Increases Decreases June 30, 2000 Current Partion
Business-type activities:
General cbligation debt $ 9,041,939 % - % 1629764 § 7412,175 % 734,765
Revenue bonds 167,735,000 - 12,690,000 155,045,000 10,675,000
Notes payable 20,486,896 - 1,267,849 19,218,047 1,267,849
Compensated absences 3,051,196 1,925,931 1,760,713 3,186,414 1,600,755
Net OPEB Otbligation 1,254,162 907,731 - 2,161,893 -
201,569,193 % 2,833662 $ 17,378,326 187,024,529 14,278,369
Less: loss ondefeasance
(net of amortization) (8,892,037) (7,579,848) -
Total business-type activities % 192,677,156 $ 179444681 § 14,278,369

Governmental compensated absences typically have been liquidated in the general fund.
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City of Fayettevilie, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations {continued)

F - Maturities of Long-Term Obligations

The following table summarizes the annual requirements to amortize all general long-term debt

outstanding {excluding compensated absences).

Governmental activities:

Construction and

Year General Ohligation Bonds Revenue Bonds Improvement Leases

Ended Principal Interest Prncipal Interest Principal Interest
2010 $ 2850235 3 809,278 § 1310000 3 491,250 % 678,968 $ 248,687
2011 2060235 694,716 1,330,000 441,000 678,968 218,929
2012 2050235 605,023 1,360,000 373,187 678,968 189,170
2013 2,040,235 514,886 835,000 303,813 678,968 159,412
2014 2035235 424,699 865,000 260,594 678,968 129,653
2015-2019 5641177 1,032,284 4,030,000 592 609 1512334 394,613
2020-2024 2,155,473 349,981 - - 1,058,634 88,393

2025 375,000 15,938 - - - -
19207825 4,446,805 9,730,000 2,462,453 5,965,808 1,428,857

Less: loss on defeasance

{net of amortization) (478,907) - - - - -

$ 18728918 $ 4446805 § 9,730,000 $§ 2462453 §$ 5965808 $ 1,428,857

Year Capitalized Leases Total Debt Due

Ended Principal Interest Principal Interest
2010 $ 2276115 £ 110,768 $ 7115318 $ 1,659,983
2011 672195 58,031 4741,3498 1,412,676
2012 695235 34,990 4784438 1,202,370
2013 658214 11,159 4212417 989,270
2014 - - 3579203 814,948
2015-2019 - - 11,183,511 2,019,506
2020-2024 - - 3214107 438,374
2025 - - 375,000 15,938
4,301,759 214,948 39,205,392 8,553,063

Less: ioss on defeasance

(net of amortization) - - 478907 -

$ 4301759 % 214948 § 38,726,485 $ 8,553,063

The following schedule includes the City’s expected estimated schedule of maturity for the State
Revolving Loans, noted above as well as the annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt

outstanding (excluding compensated absences).
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Note 5 - Long-Term Obligations (continued)

Business-type activities:

Year General Obllgation Bonds Revenue Bonds Notes Payable Total Debt Due
Ended Principal Interest Principal Interest P rinclpal Interest Principal Interest

2010 $ 734,765 $§ 333,503 § 10675000 & 5751,130 $ 1,267849 § 502172 § 12,677814 § 6,588,805
2011 834,764 298,315 11,100,000 5,325,065 1,267,849 469,729 13,202 613 6,093,109
2012 834,765 260,627 11,520,000 4,904,445 1,287 849 437285 13,622 614 §,602,357
2013 834,765 222,439 11,945,000 4,480,210 1,267,849 404,842 14,047 614 §,107,491
2014 834,764 184,250 12,400,000 4,031,402 1,267,849 372398 14,502,613 4,588,050
2015-2019 2,543,823 502,278 64,030,000 12,773,851 6,180,842 1,375,336 72,754 865 14,651,465
2020-2024 794,529 §7,519 33,375,000 3,554,104 5,001,975 593,858 39,171,504 4.205,491
2025-2026 - - - - 1,896 985 67,710 1,686,985 67,710
7412175 1,858,931 155,045,000 40,820,207 19,219,047 4,223,340 181,876,222 46,902,476

Less: Losson

defeasance (net
of amortization} - - {7,579,848) - - - (7,579,848} -
$ 7412175 §& 1,858,931 $ 147465152 $ 40,820,207 § 19,219,047 § 4,223340 $ 174,096,374 § 46902478

G - Legal Debt Margin

The legal debt margin of the City at June 30, 2009, approximated $768,679,902.
H - Authorized But Un-issued Debt

At June 30, 2009, the City had no bonds authorized but un-issued.

| - Restrictive Covenants

The revenue bond indentures contain significant limitations and restrictions on annual debt service
requirements, use of the utility system, and minimum revenue bond coverage’s and requires that a
reserve fund be established and maintained. The reserve fund requirements have been met by the City
through the purchase of surety bonds in the full amount of the bond requirement. The City is in
compliance with all such significant financial limitations and restrictions at June 30, 2009.

J - Interest Rate Swap

Contracts. The City has two interest rate swap agreements in effect at June 30, 2009 for the
$78,280,000 Variable Rate Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2003 ("Series 2003") and the
$55,150,000 Variable Rate Revenue and Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2003A ("Series 2003A”).
The swap discussions below will be referenced to the Series 2003 and Series 2003A bonds,
respectively. As discussed in Note 14, these bonds were terminated on October 21, 2009 and fixed
interest rate swap agreements were issued.
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Note 5§ - Long-Term Obligations (continued)

Objectives. As a means to lower its borrowing costs and increase its savings, when compared against
fixed-rate refunding bonds at the time of issuance in January 2003 and September 2003, the City
entered into an interest rate swap in connection with its Series 2003 and Series 2003A bonds. The
intention of the swap agreement was to effectively change the City’s variable interest rate on the bonds
to a synthetic fixed rate of 3.42% and 3.74%.

Terms, fair values, and credit risk. The terms, fair values, and credit ratings of the outstanding
swaps and cap as of June 30, 2009 are as follows. The notional amounts of the swaps match the
principal amount of the associated debt and decline with the principal amortization on the bonds.

Associated Notional Effective Fixed Variable Rate Fair Termination Counterparty
Bond Issue Amount Date Rate Paid Received " Values Date  Credit Rating®”
Swaps

59% of LIBOR
Series 2003 $ 72,140,000 1/22/03 3.42% +34.5bps ($5526,846)March 2024  A3/A/A+

62.8 % of .
LIBOR + 31 '
Series 2003A 53,650,000 9/11/03 3.74% bps (4,508,110)March 2020  A3/A/A+
$125,790,000 ($10,034,956)

@ LIBOR - London Interbank Offered Rate
@ Counterparty's guarantor

As of June 30, 2009 the negative fair values of the agreements may be countered by reductions in the
total interest payments required under the variable-rate bonds, creating lower synthetic rates. The
counterparty carries a guarantee by an entity ("counterparty guarantor”) rated A3 by Moody's Investors
Service (Moody's), A by Standard and Poor's (S&P), and A+ by Fitch Ratings (Fitch). To mitigate the
potential for credit risk, the fair value of the swap must be collateralized based on a schedule of the
counterparty guarantor credit ratings classifications and exposure thresholds as provided in the
agreements. Such collateral would be government securities posted with a third party custodian.

Basis risk. The swaps expose the City to basis risk should the relationship between LIBOR and Bond
Market Association (BMA) converge, changing the synthetic rate on the bonds. The effect of this
difference in basis is indicated by the difference between the intended synthetic rates of 3.42% and
3.74% and the synthetic rates as of June 30, 2008 of 3.54% and 4.23%. As of June 30, 2009, the rate
on the City's Series 2003 and 2003A bonds were .65% and 1.00%, respectively, whereas the variable
rates from the counterparty were .53% and .51%, respectively.  For fiscal year 2009, the City
experienced an actual synthetic rate of 4.88% and 5.31%, respectively.
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Note 5 - Long-term debt (continued)

Termination Risk. The City or the counterparty may terminate the swap if the other party fails to
perform under the terms of the contract. An additional termination event occurs if the counterparty
ratings fall below the A category by Moody’s, S&P, Fitch, and any other Rating Agency. The swap may
be terminated by the City with 30 days notice and the counterparty can terminate the swap if the City
falls below Baa3 by Moody's, BBB- by S&P, and an equivalent investment grade from any other Rating
Agency, provided however that any termination must have insurer consent. Also, if at the time of
termination the swap has a negative fair value, the City would be liable to the counterparty for a
payment equal to the swap’s fair value.

Swap payments and associated debt. Using rates as of June 30, 2009, debt service requirements of
the variable-rate debt and net swap payments of the Series 2003 and Series 2003A bonds, assuming
current interest rates remain the same for the term of the bonds, were as follows. As rates vary,
variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will vary.

Fiscal year Variable-Rate Bond Interest Rate
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Swap, Net Total

2010 $ 6,250000 $ 1005410 & 3814485 § 11,069,895
2011 9,175,000 952,430 3,621,995 13,749,425
2012 9,525,000 878,618 3,343,301 13,746,919
2013 9,885,000 800,623 3,052,637 13,738,260
2014 10,275,000 715,353 2,746,749 13,737,102
2015-2019 56,290,000 2,182,405 8,596,290 67,068,695
2020-2024 24,390,000 513,088 2,249 438 27,152,526
$125790,000 $ 7,047,927 $27,424,885 § 160,262,822

Note 6 - Defeasance of Debt

In prior years, the City has defeased various bond issues by creating separate irrevocable trust funds.
New debt has been issued and the proceeds have been used to purchase U.S. government securities
that were placed in the trust funds. The investments and related fixed earnings are sufficient to fully
service the defeased debt until the debt is called or matures. For financial reporting purposes, the debt
has been considered defeased and therefore removed from the City's liabilities. As of June 30, 2008,
the amount of prior year defeased debt outstanding and removed from the City's liabilities amounted to
$13,075,000.
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Note 6 - Defeasance of Debt (continued)

Gains and losses from debt refunding must be deferred and amortized over the lesser of the original
remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt. In addition, gains or losses related to debt
refunding are to be used in determining the carrying value of the new debt issued to finance debt
refunding. The carrying values of the 2001 Revenue Refunding Electric/Water and Sewer Bonds, the
2003 Variable Rate Revenue Refunding Electric Water and Sewer Bonds, the Variable Rate Revenue
and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003A, have been adjusted for the loss from defeasance (net of
amortization) of $7,579,848.

Note 7 — Deferred/Unearned Revenues

The balance in deferred revenue on the fund statements and unearned revenues on the government-
wide statements at year-end is composed of the following elements:

Deferred Uneamed

Revenue Revene
Prepaid licenses and fees not yet eamed (Generd) $ 547708 % 547,729
Prepaid retiree insurance premiurms (Intermal Service) 7,300 7,300
Unearmed rert (Proprietary) 285 20.8%
Uneamed grant receipts (Speda Revenue) 201,642 201642
Uneamed receipts (Capital Projects) 36,000 35,000
Uneamed grant receipts (Capital Prgjects) 40938 409,398
Unearmed grant receipts (Recreatioral and Quiturd) 13,665507 13,665,907
Taxes receivabde, net (Gereral) 3150512 -
Taxes receivade, net (Specid Revenue) 60520 -
Acoounts and notes receivable (General) 966448 101,449
Acoounts and nates receivable (Specia Revenue) 7,194.243 -
Acoounts and nates receivable (Capital Projedt) - -
Sreda assessiments receivabie, net (General) 687,549 -
Total $ BAB7W  $ 14988880

Note 8 - Risk Management

The City (excluding the electric and water and wastewater funds) is self-insured (self-funded) with
respect to insurance claims as follows: health insurance (up to $150,000 per individual and
approximately $11,490,726 for all employees for the policy ending June 30, 2009), general liability (up
to $350,000 per occurrence), workers' compensation ($600,000 per occurrence for police and fire
employees, $500,000 per occurrence for all other employees), public officials liability (up to $350,000
per occurrence), law enforcement liability ($350,000 per occurrence), and automobile liability (up to
$350,000 per occurrence). Property insurance on city buildings is insured to replacement value (less
$100,000 self-funded retention). The health insurance plan’s excess coverage allows expenditures by
the City up to .125% of expected claims adjusted for industry standard trend adjustments, and for
expenditures by the City of up to $150,000 per individual. Losses from asserted claims and from
unasserted claims identified under the City's incident reporting system are accrued based on estimates
that incorporate the City's past experience, as well as other considerations including the nature of each
claim and relevant trend factors.

F-30




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 8 - Risk Management (continued)

The City carries commercial coverage for all other risks of 1oss. Claims have not exceeded coverage in
any of the last three fiscal years

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds are self-insured with respect to workers' compensation
{up to approximately $1,000,000) and self-insured with respect to health insurance claims (up to
approximately $2,000,000). !n addition, these funds are self-insured with respect to certain policy
deductible amounts as follows: up to $100,000 per occurrence on public officials’ liability, up to
$1,000,000 per occurrence on liability claims, and up to $250,000 per occurrence on property claims. In
addition, the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds maintain excess liability insurance
{$10,000,000) to cover catastrophic losses and auto liability coverage with a $5,000 deductible per
occurrence. These funds maintain an investment account amounting to $3,500,000 to cover possible
workers’ compensation and other claims. This investment is classified under restricted assets in the
financial statements. No accrual for possible losses attributable to incidents that may have occurred
but that have not been identified under the incident reporting system has been made, because the
amount is not reasonably estimated. Further, a liability for outstanding claims at June 30, 2009 is not
accrued as the amount of outstanding claims is not material to the financial statements.

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds carry commercial coverage for all other risks of loss.
There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage since the prior year, and settied
claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the last three fiscal years.

At June 30, 2009, a liability for incurred but not reported claims of $3,511,458 is included in accounts
payable and accrued expenses on the accompanying financial statements. An analysis of claims
activity for the City and the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds is presented below.

2009 2008
Liability at June 30, $ 3,242,380 $ 2912,656
Current year claims and changes
in estimates 16,168,705 14,553,308
Actual claim payments (15,899,612) {14,223,584)
Liability at June 30, $ 3511473 § 3242 380

The City (excluding the electric and water and wastewater funds) carries flood insurance through the
National Flood Insurance Plan (NFIP) on a particular property; commonly know as the police training
facility located at 671 North Eastern Blvd. This property is covered by a separate insurance policy with
damage limits of $500,000 for building and $250,000 for contents. The City’s insurance carriers
performed an analysis of the flood maps and made a determination that the remainder of the City
facilities was not designated an “A” area (an area close to a river, lake or stream) by the Federal
Emergency Management Agency.

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds carried flood insurance through the commercial
insurance market. The current policy limit is $50 million with a $1 million sublimit applicable for loss in
flood zones that is designated an “A” zone. The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)
defines Zone A as an area close to a river, lake, or stream. The Electric and Water and Wastewater
Funds’ standard deductible is $100,000 with the exception of a $250,000 deductible set for generators.
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Note 8B - Risk Management {continued)

In accordance with G.S. 159-29, City employees (excluding the utility fund) that have access to $100 or
more at any given time of the City’s funds are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond.
The City’s Chief Financial Officer is individually bonded for $100,000. The remaining employees that
have access to funds are bonded under a blanket bond for $100,000.

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Fund employees that have access to $100 or more at any
given time of the Utility funds are insured under the Crime Policy. The policy covers Public Employee
Dishonesty (up to $1,000,000 for the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer (PWC), Director of
Planning and Capital Projects, and the Director of Accounting Systems). Other employees are covered
for money and securities losses (up to $1,000,000), and forgery, alterations and computer fraud (up to
$1,000,000). This crime policy has a $10,000 deductible.

Note 9 - Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which
may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompanying financial
statements for the refund of grant money.

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these proceedings is not presently
determinable, it is the opinion of management that the resolution of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

The City is subject to laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment. While it is not
possible to quantify with certainty the potential impact of actions regarding environmental matters,
particularly any future remediation and other compliance efforts, in the opinion of management,
compliance with the present environmental protection laws will not have a material adverse effect on
the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the City.

The City's bond issues are subject to Federal arbitrage regulations, and the City has elected to review
its potential arbitrage liability annually on the bond issue dates. The arbitrage rebate payments are
payable on the fifth anniversary of the bond issue date and every fifth year subsequent to that date.
Although the actual amount to be paid is not presently determinable, the City believes that an adequate
provision for arbitrage payables has been provided for in the accompanying financial statements.

The City has authorized expenditures totaling approximately $123.0 million for capital additions and
construction of various administration, public safety, recreation, transportation, economic development,
bond improvement, Linear Park, electric, water and wastewater, transit and airport projects. At June
30, 2009, cumulative expenditures to date totaled approximately $80.7 million leaving an unexpended
balance of $42.3 million for projects that are expected to be completed at various dates through the
year ended 2010.

In March 2002, the City entered into a new nine-year purchased power arrangement with Progress
Energy Carolinas, Inc. (PEC) effective July 1, 2003. Beginning in July 2003, the City was committed to
purchasing a minimum load from PEC at a fixed capacity price and an annually determined energy
price. The minimum load requirements range from approximately 275 MW to 300 MW during the term
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Note 9 - Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (continued)

of the contract which ends in June 2012. The remaining capacity and energy will either be produced at
the Butler-Warner Generation Plant or purchased on the open market. The lowest available price will
be used to meet the City's needs. When the market price goes above the price at the Butler-Warner
Generation Plant, the City may permit the marketing of its capacity and energy for sale to the open
market.

In June 2009 the City executed a 20 year full requirements Power Supply and Coordination Agreement
with Progress Energy (PEC) effective July 1, 2012. Under this agreement, PEC will provide the City’s
full power supply requirements except for resources provided by PWC from other sources as permitted
under the agreement, including utilization of the City’s SEPA allocation. The City may terminate this
agreement effective July 1, 2022 with written notice provided by June 30, 2015. Also in June 2009, the
City and PEC executed a 5 year Butler Warner Power Sales Agreement effective July 1, 2012. Under
this agreement, the City will generate and deliver energy to PEC pursuant to scheduled energy
requests provided by PEC. PEC will pay the City for capacity, energy (including any fuel costs) and
start costs. Either party may terminate this agreement by 3 years advance written notice.

During the year ended June 30, 2009, the purchased power cost to PEC was $96,791,513. This cost
was without consideration of savings from the Purchased Power Prepayment Agreement. The City sold
power in the amount of $71,875 on the open market in fiscal year 2009.

Festival Park Plaza Master Lease. On August 22, 2005, City Council adopted a resolution authonzing
the City to enter into a 20-year master lease agreement, subject to LGC approval, with Festival Park
Plaza Office LLC. On September 6, 2005, the LGC approved the City’s master lease application. The
master lease was executed on November 17, 2005. Under the terms of the master lease, the City is
obligated to make certain lease payments if the building is not sufficiently leased to subtenants to cover
debt service and operating expenses on the building throughout the term of the agreement. The
building is 72% leased at June 30, 2009. The City recorded an expenditure of $310,065 under the
master lease agreement for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

The City leases a portion of the office space located in the Robert C. Williams Business Center at
Lafayette Plaza and the Administration Building on Old Wilmington Road to others. These lease
agreements provide for minimum rental and have terms of 3 to 10 years and are due to expire at
various dates from 2010 to 2014. Minimum lease provisions now in force will result in rental income for
future years as follows:

Year ending June 30 Rent

2010 5 439,504
2011 202,437
2012 123,161
2013 93,662
2014 16,264

Total $ 875,028
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Note 10 - On-Behalf Payments for Fringe Benefits and Salaries

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the City has recognized on-behalf payments for pension
contributions made by the State as revenue and an expenditure of $41,800 for the 154 employed
firemen who perform firefighting duties for the City's fire department. These employees elected to be
members of the Firemen's and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund, a cost sharing, multiple-
employer public employee retirement system established and administered by the State of North
Carolina. The plan is funded by a monthly contribution paid by each member, investment income, and
a State appropriation. :

Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems

The City maintains a single-employer, defined benefit pension plan (the Law Enforcement Officers’
Special Separation Allowance System), which covers the law enforcement officers of the City. In
addition, the City continues to participate in the statewide local governmental retirement system, a
multiple-employer, cost-sharing public employee pension plan that covers substantially all employees.

A - Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System
Plan Description

The City contributes to the statewide Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS), a
cost sharing, and muitiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North
Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Article
3 of G. S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North
Carolina General Assembly. The Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System is included in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be
obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller; 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North
Carolina 27699-1410 or by calling (818) 981-5454,

Funding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual covered salary. The City is
required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the City, exclusive of the Electric and
Water and Wastewater funds, the current rate for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for
law enforcement officers is 4.90% and 4.86%, respectively, of annual covered payroll. The rate for the
Electric and Water and Wastewater funds is 10.03%. The contribution requirements of members and of
the City are established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. The City's
contributions to LGERS for all employees, including law enforcement officers and Electric and Water
and Wastewater funds, for the years ended June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007, were $5,881,291,
$5,558,873 and $5,330,791, respectively. The contributions made by the City equaled the required
contributions for each year.
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B — Supplemental Employees’ Retirement Plan of the Public Works Commission of the City of
Fayetteville, North Carolina

The Supplemental Employees’ Retirement Plan of the Public Works Commission of the City of
Fayetteville, North Carolina (“SERP plan") is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the Public Works Commission Employees’ Retirement Plan Board of Trustees. This
plan was established on April 1, 2003 to equalize benefits received under the LGERS plan to those
formerly participating in the Employees’ Retirement Plan (ERP).

The only employees eligible to participate in the SERP plan are those who met the requirements of the
ERP plan. Effective, April 1, 2003 no additional employees will enter this plan. Benefits vest after five
years of credited service. Electric and Water and Wastewater fund employees reaching the defined
retirement age are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal
to 1.8% of their final average compensation times years of credited service. The SERP plan provides
retirement benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Cost-of-living adjustments are provided to
members and beneficiaries at the discretion of the Public Works Commission. Ali benefit payments by
the SERP plan will be offset by the benefits payable from the LGERS plan. The City of Fayetteville City
Council has the authority to establish and amend the retirement plan provisions. The SERP plan does
not issue a separate report. Rather, the financial report of the SERP plan is included as a pension trust
fund.

The contribution requirements of the plan members and the Public Works Commission are established
and may be amended by the City of Fayetteville City Council. There will be no employee contributions
after April 1, 2003. The Public Works Commission is required to contribute at an actuarially
determined rate. The rate for the year ended June 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007 was 0% of annual covered
payroll.

The annual required contribution calculation for June 30, 2009 was determined as part of the July 1,
20009, actuarial valuation using the aggregate actuarial cost method. Because this method does not
identify or separately amortize unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, information about funded status
and funding progress is presented using the entry age actuarial cost method and the information
presented is intended to serve as a surrogate for the funded status and funding progress of the plan.
The actuarial assumptions included a 5% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses).
There is no projected salary increase as the benefits for active employees have worn away in this plan.
All benefits for active employees are covered by LGERS. An inflation component of 3% is included.
The assumptions did not include postretirement benefit increases, which are funded by the
Commission’s appropriations when granted.

The actuarial value of assets was determined by using the market value at June 30, 2009. The value
was determined to be $3,947,048. There was no annual required contribution for the current year
under this ptan. This benefit plan is a contributory, defined benefit retirement plan, which covers all
employees who participated in the ERP plan at April 1, 2003.
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In fiscal year 2008 the Supplemental Employees’ Retirement Plan Board of Trustees voted to liquidate
the Supplemental Employees’ Retirement Plan. This has been approved by the Commission and the
City Council. PWC contemplates that a group annuity will be purchased in fiscal year 2010. This group
annuity will provide all benefits earned under this plan. Aon Investment Consulting will assume fiduciary
responsibility for this transaction. Also, the state of North Carclina has an insurance guaranty fund that
will cover all benefits if the insurance company fails. The limits of this guaranty fund exceed the value of
any participant's benefit.

Between the state guaranty fund and Aon's responsibility, PWC will not be responsible for any
guaranteed benefits in the event of the insurance company's insolvency.

The required schedule of funding progress immediately following the notes to the financial statements
presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

C - Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance
Plan Description

The City administers a public employee retirement system (the “Separation Allowance”), a single-
employer, defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the City’s qualified swomn
law enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of
the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service.
The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be
authorized by the General Assembly. Article 12D of G. S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to
establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Separation
Allowance is reported in the City’s report as a pension trust fund and does not issue separate financial
statements. The Separation Allowance covers all full-time City law enforcement officers.

At December 31, 2008, the Separation Allowance’s membership consisted of:

Retirees receiving benefits 31
Active plan members 349
Total 380

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting: Financial statements for the Separation Allowance are prepared using the accrual
basis of accounting. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and when the City
has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Method Used to Value Investments: Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term debt, deposits,
and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust Investments are reported at cost or amortized cost,
which approximates fair value. Certain longer term United States Government and United States
Agency securities are valued at the last reported sales price.
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Contributions

The City is required by Article 12D of G. S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has
chosen to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned by making contributions based on
actuarial valuations. For the current year, the City contributed $444,528, or 2.56% of annual covered
payroll. There were no contributions made by employees. The City’s obligation to contribute to this
plan is established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly.

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 2007
actuarial valuation using the projected unit cost credit method. The actuarial assumptions included (a)
7.25% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary increases of
4.5% - 12.3% per year. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 3.756%. The assumptions
did not include postretirement benefit increases. The actuarial value of assets was market value. The
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of pay on a closed basis.
The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2007 was 23 years.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

The City's annual pension cost and net prepaid pension obligation to the Separation Allowance for the
current year were as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 420,511
Interest on net pension obligation (33,201)
Adjustment to annual required contribution 27,998
Annual pension cost 415,308
Contributions made 444 528
Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation (29,220)
Net prepaid pension obligation beginning of year {457.951)
Net prepaid pension obligation end of year $ (487.171)

Three-Year Trend Information

Annual Percentage Net Prepaid
Fiscal Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
2007 $324,110 119.08% $ (462,399)
2008 383,772 98.84 (457,951)
2009 415,308 107.04 (487,171)
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Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2009 the plan was not funded. The most recent actuarial valuation was December 31,
2008. The actuarial accrued liability (AAL) for benefits was $5,449,006 and the unfunded actuanal
accrued liability (UAAL) was $3,347,043. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $17,468,170 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 19.16
percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes

to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued)

The fiscal year 2008-2009 combining financial statements for the City’s pension trust funds are as

follows:
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Held in trust for:

Held in trust for benefits and other purposes
Total net assets

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Investment earnings
Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Beneftt payments and premiums
Total deductions

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Total net assets - beginning
Total net assets - ending

Special
Separation PWC
Allowance Supplemental
Pension Pension Total
Trust Fund Trust Fund June 30, 2009
$ 2,142,482 $ 3947048 % 6,089,530
7,214 - 7,214
2,149,696 3,947,048 6,096,744
15,458 23,003 38,461
15,458 23,003 38,461
2,134,238 3,924,045 6,058,283
$ 2,134,238 $ 3924045 % 6,058,283
Special
Separation PWC
Allowance Supplemental
Pension Pension Total
Trust Fund Trust Fund June 30, 2008
$ 444 528 5 - $ 444 528
48,121 (138,336) (90,215)
492 849 (138,336) 354,313
491,541 99,752 591,293
491,541 99,752 591,293
1,108 (238,088) {236,980)
2,133,130 4,162,133 6,295,263
3 2134238 % 3,924,045 % 6,058,283




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 11 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued)
D - Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers
Plan Description

The City contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (the “Plan™), a defined contribution
pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan
provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the City and also those non-law
employees who choose to make their own contributions. Article 5 of G. S. Chapter 135 assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions for the law enforcement officers to the North
Carolina General Assembly. The Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers
is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The
state’s CAFR includes the pension trust fund financial statements for the Internal Revenue Code
Section 401(k) plan that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement
Officers. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service
Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy

Article 12E of G. S. Chapter 143 requires the City to contribute each month an amount equal to five
percent of each law enforcement officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately.
The City does not make any contributions for non-law employees. All employees may make voluntary
contributions to the Plan. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2009, were $1,858,206, which
consisted of $907,679 from the City and $950,527 from employees.

E - Firemen’s and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund

Plan Description

As discussed in Note 10, the State of North Carclina contributes, on behalf of the City of Fayetteville, to
the Firemen's and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund (Fund), a cost—-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan with a special funding situation administered by the State of North
Carolina. The Fund provides pension benefits for eligible fire and rescue squad workers that have
elected to become members of the Fund. Article 86 of G.S. Chapter 58 assigns the authority to
establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Firemen’s and
Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
{CAFR) for the State of North Carclina. The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the Fund. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the
State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919)
981-5454.

Funding Policy
Plan members are required to contribute $10 per month to the Fund. The State, a nonemployer
contributor, funds the plan through appropriations. The City does not contribute to the Fund.

Contribution reguirements of plan members and the State of North Carolina are established and may be
amended by the North Carolina General Assembly.
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 12 - Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 11, the City (excluding the Electric and Water and
Wastewater funds) administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan. For employees hired
on or after February 1, 2008, this plan provides postemployment healthcare benefits to retirees of the
City, up to the age of 65 or until they are eligible to receive medicare benefits, provided they participate
in the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (System) and have at least
twenty years of creditable service with the City. For employees hired prior to February 1, 2008,
employees qualified for similar level benefits after at least five years of creditable service with the City.
The City and retirees contribute to the cost of coverage for these benefits through a self-insured plan.
Also, the City's retirees can purchase coverage for their eligible dependents at the City’s group rates.
The City also provides life insurance through the plan based on the number of years of service at
retirement. The City may amend the benefit provisions. A separate report was not issued for the plan.

Membership in the healthcare and life insurance benefit plan consisted of the following at December
31, 2007, the date of the latest actuarial valuation:

Retirees receiving health and/or life insurance benefits 436
Active plan members . 1,475
Total 1,911

Funding Policy. The City and the qualified retirees share in the cost of healthcare coverage. Also, the
City’s retirees can purchase healthcare coverage for their dependents at the City’s group rates. The
City pays the cost of life insurance coverage.

The current Annual Required Contribution (ARC) rate is 5.38 percent of annual covered payroll as
reflected in the latest actuarial valuation. For the current year, the City contributed $873,174 or 1.65
percent of annual covered payroll. The City is self-insured with respect to healthcare coverage up to
$150,000 per individual and approximately $11,490,726 for all employees and retirees for the policy
ending June 30, 2009. Retiree members contributed $200,204 or 0.38 percent of annual covered
payroll for retiree and dependent coverage. The City offers $100 of life insurance for each year of
service up to a maximum of $3,000. The City's and retiree members’ obligation to coritribute to the
healthcare plan, including the life insurance benefit, is established and may be amended by the City
Manager consistent with the annual budget approved by City Council. The City has chosen to fund
healthcare and life insurance benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Post-employment expenditures are made from the
Insurance Internal Service Fund, which is maintained on the full accrual basis of accounting. The
Insurance Fund charges a monthly rate per retiree to the General Fund, special revenue funds and
enterprise funds {other than the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds) based on the number of
retirees attributed to each fund to pay for post-employment expenditures.




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 12 - Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) (continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City’s annual OPEB cost {expense) is calculated
based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuanally determined in
accordance within the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that,
if paid on an ongoing basis is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The City prospectively
implemented GASB Statement 45 at June 30, 2008. The following table shows the components of the
City's annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the amount actually contributed to the
plan, and changes in the City’s net OPEB obligation for the healthcare and life insurance benefits:

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $2,856,401
Interest on net OPER obligation 223,628
Adjustment to annual required contribution (192,931)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 2,887,098
Contributions Made (873,174)

Increase {decrease) in net OPEB obligation 2,013,924
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of the year 5,590,699
Net OPEB obligation, end of the year $7,604,623

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for 2008 and 2009 were as follows:

For the Year Annual OPEB Percentage of Annual Net OPEB

Ended June 30 Cost QPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
2008 $ 6,585,964 15.11% $ 5,590,699
2009 2,887,096 30.24% 7,604,621

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of June 30, 2009 the plan was not funded. The most recent
actuarial valuation was December 31, 2007. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and, thus, the
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $27,972,680. The covered payroll {(annual payroll of
active employees covered by the plan) was $53,061,647 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered
payroll was 52.72 percent. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare trends. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and
new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for the benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based
on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include
the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of
benefit costs between the employer and plan members at that point. The actuarial methods and
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City of Fayetteville, North Carclina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 12 - Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) (continued)

assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective
of the calculations.

In the December 31, 2007 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used.
The actuarial assumptions included a 4.00 percent investment rate of return which is the expected long-
term investment returns on the employer’s own investments calculated based on the funded level of the
plan at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost trend increase of 9.00 to 5.00 percent annually.
Both rates included a 3.75 percent inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets, if any, was
determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of
investments. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open
basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2007, was 30 years.

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 11, the City's Public Works Commission
administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan for the Electric and Water and
Wastewater funds. This plan provides postemployment healthcare benefits to retirees and their
dependents up to the age of 65. The Commission may amend the benefit provisions.

Membership in the healthcare benefit plan consisted of the following at July 1, 2008:

Retirees 71
Active members 556
Total 627

Funding Policy. The Commission and the qualified retirees share in the cost of coverage. Also, the
Commission’s retirees can purchase coverage for their dependents at the Commission’s group rates.
The Commission has chosen to fund the health care benefits on a pay as you go basis.

The current Annual Required Contribution (ARC) rate is 5.0 percent of annual covered payroll. The
Commission is self insured with respect to healthcare coverage.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The Commission's annual OPEB cost (expense) is
calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The Commission prospectively
implemented GASB Statement 45 at June 30, 2008. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid
on an ongoing basis is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the
components of the Commission’s annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $1,464,968
Interest on net OPEB obligation (11,857)
Adjustment to annual required contribution -
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 1,453,111
Contrbutions Made (673,818)
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 879,293
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of the year 1,070,188
Net OPEB obligation, end of the year $1,949,481
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 12 - Other Postemployment Benefits {OPEB} (continued)

The Commission's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan,
and the net OPEB obligation for 2008 and 2009 were as follows:

For the Year Annual OPEB Percentage of Annual Net OPEB

Ended June 30 Cost OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
2008 $ 1,070,188 0.00% 3 1,070,188
2009 1,464 968 39.49% 1,949,481

As of June 30, 2009 the plan was not funded. The most recent actuarial valuation was August 31,
2009. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and, thus, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability
(UAAL) was $15,772,610. The net OPEB obligation and related OPEB expense are reported in the
Electric, Water and Wastewater and Fleet Maintenance funds as a noncurrent liability and a general
and administrative expense, respectively.

The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $29,452,949 and the
ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 53.6 percent. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan
involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence
of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and
healthcare trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial
statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for the benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based
on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include
the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of
benefit costs between the empioyer and plan members at that point. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective
of the calculations.

In the August 31, 2009 actuarial valuation, the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method was used.
The actuarial assumptions included a 5.25 percent investment rate of return which is the expected long-
term investment returns on the employer's own investments calculated based on the funded level of the
plan at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost trend increase of 10.00 to 5.00 percent annually.
Both rates included a 3.00 percent inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets, if any, was
determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of
investments. The UAAL is being amortized as a level dollar amortization on an open basis. The
remaining amortization period was 30 years. There are no assets set aside for these benefits. The
plan is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis.




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 13 — Interfund Balances and Activity
Balances Due to/from Other Funds

Balances due to/from other funds at June 30, 2009, consist of the following:

Due To:
Waste and
Due From; General Electric Waslewater Total
Airport $ 249,542 $ - % - $ 249542
PWC Fleet Maintenance Fund - 238,169 99,057 337,226

$ 249542  $ 238169 § 99057 § 586,768

The interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the
accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made.

Transfers to/from Other Funds

Transfers due to/from other funds at June 30, 2009, consist of the following:

Transfer in:
Recreational Nonmajor Water and Nonmajor

Transfer out: General and Cultural _Governmental Electric Wastewater Enterprise Total

General $ - § 180,500 $11323328 % 31,085 $ 14258661 $ 2504702 § 15555256
Nonmajor Govemmental - - 328,057 - 1,123,839 - 1,451,896
Electric 7,966,049 25,000 - - - - 7,991,049
Water and Wastewater 63,186 - - 63,186
Nonmajor Enterprise 487,245 - - 487,245
Internal Service - 2,322,100 - 2,322,100
Tolals $ B,516480 $ 205500 $13,973485 % 31,085 $ 2549500 §$ 2594702 §27870,732

Transfers are used to move unrestricted revenues to finance various programs that the government
must account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, including amounts
provided matching funds for various grant programs.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, a total of $8,029,235 was transferred from the electric and
water and wastewater funds to the general fund. This transfer consisted of three components: (1} 3.1%
of electric fund net assets at June 30, 2009 totaling $7,667,957, (2) reimbursement of general fund
street light utility expenditures of $298,092, and (3) reimbursement of excess general fund contributions
for a water project of $63,1886.

Transfers totaling $11,323,328 were also made during the fiscal year from the general fund to non-
major governmental funds. Of this total, transfers for capital projects consisted of: $4,269,336 for
transportation projects including street resurfacing and soil street paving; $4,034,326 for economic
development projects primarily consisting of City contributions for the HOPE VI project; $305,000 for
public safety projects; and $150,848 for general government projects. Additionally, $2,460,818 was
transferred to the City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation for lease purchase payments for city
facilities, and $103,000 was transferred for local matches for Federal and State funded programs.
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 14 — Subsequent Events

On October 21, 2009, the City issued $114,155,000 in Public Works Commission Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2009A to refund all of the outstanding Public Works Commission Variable Rate Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 and Public Works Commission Variable Rate Revenue and Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2003A and to terminate the two associated floating to fixed interest rate swap
agreements. In addition, the City issued $36,710,000 in Public Works Commission Revenue Bonds,
Series 2009B to fund various utility system improvements.

On October 22, 2009, the City issued $12,300,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2009
to refund all or a portion of the following general obligation bonds: Series 1996 Public Improvement
Bonds, Series 1996 Street Improvement Bonds, Series 1999 Public Improvement Bonds, Series 1999
Street Improvement Bonds, Senes 2000 Public Improvement Bonds and Series 2000 Street
Improvement Bonds.

In July 2009, the City also executed a $750,000 Housing and Urban Development Section 108 note to
fund a community development project.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Accrued

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded
Actuarial Value of - Projects Unit AAL
Valuation Assets Credit {UAAL)
Date (a) (b) (b-a)
12/31/1999 $ 958,824 $ 1,435,311 $ 476,487
12/31/2000 1,228,812 2,728,524 1,499,712
12/31/2001 1,382,479 3,074,210 1,691,731
12/31/2002 1,491,666 3,356,167 1,864,501
12/31/2003 1,628,946 3,516,635 1,887,689
12/31/2004 1,657,940 3,902,435 2,244 495
12/31/2005 1,762,344 3,882,639 2,120,295
12/31/2006 2,023,488 4,832,567 2,609,079
12/31/2007 2,092,180 5,062,285 2,970,105
12/31/2008 2,101,963 5,449,006 3,347,043

Funded
Ratio

(a/b)

66.80%
45.04%
44 97%
44.45%
46.32%
42.48%
45,39%
43.68%
41.33%
38.58%

UAAL as a

Covered % of Covered
Payroll Payroll
(c) ({b-a)ic)
$ 9,968,890 4.78%
10,581,205 14.17%
11,197,858 15.11%
11,941,930 15.61%
12,062,456 15.65%
13,501,537 16.62%
14,117,825 15.02%
16,750,277 15.58%
16,792,423 17.69%
17,468,170 19.16%

The annual required contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 was determined as part of the December
31, 2007 actuarial valuation using the project unit credit actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included
(a) 7.25% investment rate of refum and (b) projected salary increases ranging from 4.5% to 12.3% per year. The
inflation component was 3.75%. The assumptions do not include postretirement benefit increases. The actuarial
value of assets was market value. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage
of pay on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2007 was 23 years.

G-1



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance
Required Suplementary Information

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage Actual
June 30 Contribution Contributed Contributions
2000 3 127,606 119.29% $ 152,217
2001 145,228 114.21% 165,864
2002 259,788 104.76% 272,141
2003 286,336 108.65% 311,091
2004 311,445 102.16% 318,169
2005 318,276 99.97% 318,169
2006 361,749 116.76% 418,762
2007 329,564 117.11% 385,957
2008 388,882 97.54% 379,324
2009 415,308 107.04% 444 528

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the
actuarial valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date December 31, 2008
Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method Level percent of pay closed
Remaining amortization period 22 years
Asset valuation method Market value

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate return® 7.25%
Projected salary increases” 45-12.3%
* Includes inflation at 3.75%

Cost-of-living adjustments N/A




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Supplemental Public Works Commission Retirement System
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Accrued

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of - Projects Unit AAL Funded Covered % of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) {b} {b-a) (a/b) {c) ({(b-a)/c)
7/01/03 $ 3,990,343 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
7/01/04 3,952,504 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
7/01/05 4,105,589 NIA N/A N/A N/A N/A
7/01/06 4,149,640 NfA N/A N/A N/A N/A
7/01/07 4,560,792 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
7/01/08 4,187,435 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
7/01/09 3,947,048 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Note that this schedule is provided for informational purposes only and is calculated using the entry age actuarial
cost method. The information presented is intended to serve as a surrogate for the funded status and funding
pregress of the plan, which calculates actuarial valuations using the aggregate actuarial cost method.




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Supplemental Public Works Commission Retirement System
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Y ear Ended - Annual Required Percentage
June 30 Contribution Contributed

There was no pension obligation as of July 1, 2003. Since then, the cost and contributions have been
zero so there is still no net pension obligation.

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial
valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows;

Valuation date July 1, 2009
Actuarial cost method Aggregate
Amortization method N/A
Amortization period N/A

Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:

Market value

Investment rate of return 5%
Projected salary increases*® N/A
Includes inflation at 3.0%
Cost-of-living adjustments Ncne

* Benefits for active emplioyees have worn away in this plan. All benefits for active employees are covered by LGERS.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan
Required Supplementary Information

Scheduie of Funding Progress

Actuarial Accrued
Actuarial Liability {AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of - Projects Unit AAL Funded Covered % of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (@) (b) (b-a) (asb) () {(b-a)ic)
12/31/2005 $ - % 54,434,583  § 54,434,583 0.00% $ 44,476,975 122.40%
12/31/2007 - 27,972,680 27,972,680 0.00% 53,061,647 52.72%
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Ptan
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage of Annual
June 30 Contribution OPEB Cost Contributed
2008 $ 6,585,964 15.11%
2009 2,856,401 30.57%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial
valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date December 31, 2007
Actuarial cost method : Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method Level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis
Amortization period 30

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return® 4.00%
Annual medical cost trend rates* 9% - 5%
* Includes inflation at 3.75%
Cost-of-living adjustments None



Public Works Commission Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Accrued

Actuarial Liabllity (AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of - Projects Unit AAL Funded Covered % of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit {(UAAL) Ratio Payroli Payroll
Date (a) (b) {b-a) (a/b) (c} ((b-a)ic)
212207 $ $ 11,080,476 § 11,080,476 0.00% $§ 27983314 39.60%
8/31/09 15,772,610 15,772,610 0.00% 29,452,949 53.55%




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Public Works Commission Other Post Employment Benefit Retiree Healthcare Plan
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage Net OPEB
June 30 Contribution Contributed Obligation
2008 $1,070,188 0.00% $1,070,188
- 2009 1,464,968 39.17% 1,849,481

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial
valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date August 31, 2009
Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method Level Dollar Amortization on an Open Basis
Amortization period 30

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return* 5.25%
Annual medical cost trend rates* 10% - 5%
* Includes inflation at 3.0%
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Supplemental Financial Information

Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules

These statements/schedules provide a more detailed view of the “Basic Financial

Statements” as presented in the preceding subsection.

Combining Statements are presented where there is more than one fund of a
given type. Individual fund statements are presented if only one fund exists in @

given fund type.
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Governmental Funds

- General Fund
- Recreational and Cultural Fund

- Nonmajor Governmental Funds
- Special Revenue Funds

- Capital Project Funds

The focus of Governmental Fund measurement is upon determination of financial
position and changes in financial position lsources, uses, and balances of financial

resources| rather than upon net income determination.
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(General Fund

The Generdl Fund is the principal fund of the City and is used to account for
the receipt and expenditure of resources that are traditionally associated with
local governments and that are not required to be accounted for in another

fund.

Resources are provided primarily through taxes, intergovernmental revenues
and transfers and are expended for services deemed not susceptible to a user
charge financing method.

The Fund is accounted for on the modified accrual basis of accounting,
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Comparative Balance Sheets

June 30, 2009 and 2008

General Fund

ASSETS

Cash and investments

Taxes receivable

Accounts receivable

Interfund receivable
Assessments receivable
Inventories

Restricted cash and investments

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilifies
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Unearned deposits
Deferred revenues

Total liabilities

Fund balances
Fund batances:
Reserved
By State statute
For encumbrances
For inventories
For downtown
For JP Riddle - Stadium
For county recreation
For donations
Unreserved
Designated
For subseguent year's expenditures
For special purpose
For debt service
Undesignated
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

2009 2008
$ 41,653,341 45,689,040
3,150,513 3,270,102
12,764,126 13,051,069
249 542 283,097
489,373 498,602
79,900 115,378
- 3,305,317
$ 58,386,795 66,212,605
$ 6,994,124 7,683,847
131,418 84,470
5,342,238 5,435,547
12,467,780 13,203,864
11,960,494 12,334,683
4,167,814 2,934,985
79,800 115,378
124,882 234,296
26,523 17,507
1,598,321 1,563,891
27,000 26,166
3,643,174 9,163,213
3,562,081 5,550,563
3,339,367 3,238,353
17,389,459 17,829,706
45,919,015 53,008,741
$ 58,386,795 66,212,605




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Batances
Budget and Actual - General Fund

Year Ended June 20, 2009
With Comparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance
Positive 2009 2008
Budget {Negatlve) Actual Actual
Revenues
Ad valorem taxes
Current year g 54,190,045 (201,966) 53,988,079 52,820,730
Prior year 1,361,575 (108,066) 1,253,508 1,624,600
Penalties 320,475 (9,051) 311,424 320,347
Total ad valorem taxes 55,872,095 (319,083) 55,553,012 54,765,677
Other taxes
Venlcle license tax 651,500 (21,435) 630,065 635,093
Privilege license 985,100 28,820 1,013,929 984,727
Cablevision franchise lax 411,500 (30,556) 380,944 491,902
Gross receipts tax on rental property 416,600 24,781 441,381 416,176
Total other taxes 2,464,700 1,619 2,466,319 2,528,798
Unrestricted Intergovernmental
Local option sales tax 31,096,000 (1,467,958) 29,628,044 31,658,262
Utility franchise tax 3,523,853 524,488 4,048,341 3,395,470
Telecommunications sales tax 2,103,474 (22,173) 2,081,301 1,803,596
Piped nalural gas lax 682,922 (17,166) 665,756 635,276
Video franchise tax 2,362,187 38,903 2,401,090 2,137,726
Beer and wine tax 832,000 (17,099) 814,901 801,099
County - other 283,459 5514 288,973 289,494
Local - public safety 335,072 34 335,108 322,012
Locat - other 92,000 11,549 103,549 23,430
Total unrestricted
intergovernmental 41,310,967 {943,906} 40,367,061 41,167,365
Restricted Intergovernmental
Federal - public safety 157,580 12,912 170,492 50,288
Powell Bill allocation 5,307,500 (37,263} 5,270,237 5,697,369
State - other 29,340 47,171 76,511 27,684
State - public safety 59,000 15,044 74,044 64,473
Solid waste disposal tax - 84,449 84,449 -
County recreation 2,633,911 191,235 2,825,146 2,724,036
County - other 74,000 3,353 77,353 73,641
Total restricted
intergovernmental 8,261,331 316,901 8,578,232 B.637,491
Permits and fees 2,049,970 (160,004) 1,889,966 1,814,879
Sales and services
Property leases 991,997 (566,967} 425,030 407,158
Enginesring/planning services 290172 43,280 333,452 345,822
Public safety services 829,970 117,712 947,682 786,483
Environmental services 71,618 {925} 70,693 73,382
Recreation and cutural services 942 533 135,697 1,078,230 992,842
Parking revenues 135,003 80,159 215,162 181,371
Other fees and services 193,656 27 193,683 91,482
Total sales and services 3,454,949 (191,017) 3,263,932 2,878,540




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expendltures and Changes In Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2009
With Comparatlve Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Varlance
Positive 2009 2008
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Revenues (continued)
Miscellaneous
Refunds and sundry 3 626,586 $ 161,996 $ 788,582 $ 698,429
Indirect cost allocation 987 650 104,256 1,091,906 943521
Special use assessment 181,000 30,681 211,691 204,316
Total miscellaneous 1,795,236 256,943 2,092,179 1,846,266
Interest earmed on investments 1,194,000 146,665 1,340,965 2,500,914
Total revenues 116,403,248 (851,582) 115,651,666 116,139,930
Expenditures
Current
Adminlstration
Leglsiative
Personnel 288,251 21,466 266,785 261,690
Operaling 255,308 70,778 184,530 334,012
543,559 92,244 451,315 595,702
Clty attomey
Personnel 539,680 12,683 526,997 485,535
Operating . 417 284 41,682 375,602 322,965
956,964 54,365 902,599 808,500
Execufive
Parsonnel 906,970 8,617 898,353 1,053,554
Operating 168,413 82,901 85,512 106,670
1,075,383 81,518 983,865 1,160,224
Human resources development
Personnel 831,856 15,956 815,800 838,265
Operating 325,530 109,440 216,090 234,732
1,157,386 125,396 1,031,990 1,072,897
Management services -
Personnel 669,309 6,732 662,577 564,712
Operating 276,467 89,286 187,181 235,574
Assets 5,870 - 5,870 7.150
Inventory 134,840 7,806 126,834 128,559
Cost redistribution (184,000) (11,876} {172,124) (178,325)
902,286 91,948 810,338 757,670
Information technology
Personnel 828,685 12,355 816,340 468,738
Operating 1,677,580 350,592 1,326,988 1,105,051
Assets 335,523 91,459 244,064 77,373
Cosl redistribution (5,707} (5) {5,702) {6,069)
2,836,091 454,401 2,381,690 1,645,093
Human relations 3
Personnel 205,269 . 4,122 201,147 186,210
Operating 49,018 26,309 22,707 25,651
Payments to agencies - - - 3.249
254,285 30,431 223,854 225,110
Finance
Pearsennel 1,195,514 15,435 1,180,079 1,183,876
Operating 1,317,047 139,156 1,177,891 1,142,688
Assels 136,690 50,466 86,224

2,649,251 205,057 2,444,194 2.326,564




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2008
With Comparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Varlance
Positive 2009 2008
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Expenditures (continued)
Current (continued)
Administration (continued)
General government
Personnel $ 108,753 3 706 $ 108,047 100,968
Operating 7,567,286 1,330,727 6,236,559 6,983,824
Assets 14,314 14,314 - 11,720
Inventory 1,790,000 370,539 1,419,461 1,889,451
Cost redistribution {1,855,125) {341,737) {1,513,388) (1,889,029)
Payments to agencies 339,000 - 339,000 264,000
7,964,228 1,374,549 6,589,679 7,350,934
Public buildings
Personnel 800,463 3 800,460 722,001
Operating 1,017,816 57,832 959,984 995,264
Assels 22,105 - 22,105 -
1,840,384 57,835 1,782,549 1,717,265
Project management
Personnel 189,823 2,827 186,996 218,935
Operating 10,564 4,476 6,088 10,205
200,387 7,303 193,084 229,140
Total administration 20,380,204 2,585,047 17,795,157 17,889,199
Public safety
Police
Personnel 32,821,806 687,807 32,133,909 30,410,356
Operaling 5,617,014 1,095,849 4,521,065 4,790,856
Assels 2,110,756 624,808 1,485,948 3,396,945
Payments to agencies 3,000 - 3,000 3,000
40,552,576 2,408,654 38,143,922 38,601,157
Fire
Personnel 17,550,551 36 17,550,515 16,236,064
Operating 2,716,766 475128 2,241,638 2,250,292
Assels 1,283,133 1,000 1,282,133 624,011
Coslt redistribution (75,000 (23,822) (51,178 {75,000)
21,475,450 452,342 21,023,108 19,035,367
Inspections
Personnel 2,279,026 24,412 2,254,614 2.267,195
Operaling 539,863 76,308 463,555 376,720
Assels 87,573 43,910 43,663 -
2,906,462 144,630 2,761,832 2,643,915
Total public safety 64,034,488 3,005,626 61,928,862 60,280,439
Environmental protection
Solld waste
Personnel 4,167,732 86,044 4,081,688 3,614,707
Operating 2,559,339 613,314 1,946,025 3,597,850
Assels 1,381,713 367,402 1,024,311 2,774,295
8,118,784 1,066,760 7,052,024 9,986,952
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NOCRTH CAROCLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2008
With Comparatlve Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Varlance
Poslilve 2009 2008
Budget (Negative) Actual Actual
Expenditures (continued)
Current (continued)
Environmental protection
{continued)
GCemeteries
Personnel $ 101,395 3 844 $ 100,551 $ 122,903
Operating 49,328 9,068 40,260 21,821
150,723 9,912 140,811 144,724
Urban forestry
Personnel 121,474 682 120,792 132,092
Operating 16,595 5,601 10,894 9,027
136,069 6,283 131,788 141,118
Street Sweeping
Personnel 356,163 8,878 347,284 367,887
Operating 217,938 8,785 209,151 224,657
Assets 356,241 - 356,241 -
830,340 17,664 912,676 592 544
Total environmental
protection 9,337,916 1,100,619 8,237,297 10,865,339
Transportation
Streets
Personnel 2,779,513 136,769 2,642,744 2,564,906
Operating 4,595,381 2,323,493 2,271,888 4,487 432
Assets 628,925 140,501 488,424 196,204
8,003.818 2,600,763 5,403.056 7,248,542
Engineering
Personnel 1,392,881 5,608 1,387,273 1,274,084
Operating 233,420 128,007 105,413 135,625
Assets 41,472 90 41,382 16,054
1,667,773 133,705 1,534,068 1,425,763
Parking
Qperating : 238,730 32,222 206,508 198,083
Total transportation 9,910,322 2,766,690 7,143,632 8,872,388
Economic and physical develcpment
Gentral business district
Operating 100,827 - 100.827 66,196
Community development
Persannei 111,917 5 111,912 98,908
Operating 394,708 560,845 433,763 136,642
1,106,625 560,950 545,675 235,551
Pianning and development
Personnel 502,590 9,983 492,607 440,741
Operating 420,388 158,315 262,073 252,735
Payments to agencies 13,599 7,632 6,067 1,301
936,677 175,830 760,747 684,777
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROQOLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2009
With Comparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Expenditures {continued}
Current {continued)
Economlc and physical
development {continued)
Total economic and physlcal
development

Recreation and community facillties
Parks & Recreation
Personnel
QOperaling
Assets

Total recreation and
community facillties

Debt service
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under)
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses}
Appropriated fund balance
Transfers in
Transfers {out)

Sale of assets
Capital leases, bonds and other dabt

Total other financing
sources (uses)

Revenues and other financing
sources (uses) over (under)
expenditures

Fund balance

Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

Varlance
Posltive 2009 2008
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual

2,144,229 736,880 1,407,349 3 996,524
7,374,933 145,778 7,229,154 6,868,580
4,928,782 1,150,998 3,777,786 3,770,846
288,872 57,626 231,246 286,149
12,582,587 1,354,401 11,238,186 10,925 575
12,592,587 1,354,401 11,238,186 10,925,675
8,099,186 81 8,098,105 8,174,491
127,398,932 11,549,344 115,849,588 118,003,955
(10,995,684) 10,697.762 (297,922) {1,864,025)
17,669,398 (17,669,398} - -
8,479,318 37,162 8,516,480 13.215,515
(16,063,032} 507,776 (15,555,2586) (11,572,367)
160,000 86,972 246,972 275,382
750,000 ___(750,000) - 3,303,840
10,995,684 (17,787,488) (6,791,804 5,222,470
- (7.089,726) {7,089,726) 3,358,445
53,008,741 49,650,296

45,919,015 5 53,008,741
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Recreational and Cultural Fund

The Recreational and Cultural Fund is a maijor capital project fund wsed to account
for resources used for the acquisition and construction of facilities such as parks,
recreation centers and museurmns.

Resources are provided primarily through intergovernmental revenues, facility
financing proceeds and transfers from other funds.

The Fund is accounted for on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Comparative Balance Sheets
Recreational and Cultural Fund

June 30, 2009 and 2008

ASSETS

Cash and investments

Accounts receivable

Interfund receivable

Restricted cash and investments

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenues

Total liabilities

Fund balances
Fund batances:
Reserved
By State statute
For encumbrances
Unreserved
Designated
For subsequent year's expenditures
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

H-7

2009 2008
1,439,808 947,410
30,437 12,474
- 265,210
13,712,858 685,276
15,183,144 1,810,370
101,779 1,743
13,665,507 544,370
13,767,286 546,113
30,437 277,684
1,297,621 43,428
87,800 1,043,145
1,415,858 1,364,257
15,183,144 1,910,370




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Scheduie of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Recreational and Cultural Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2009

Project Prier Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Revenues
Restricted Intergovernmental
Federal grants/contributions 3 250,000 $ - 3 - g - g -
State grants/contributions 19,924 045 2,610,835 - 548,068 3,156,703
Total restricted intergovermmoental 20,174,045 2,610,635 - 546,088 3,158,703
Miscellaneous
Other - 05,067 - 13,248 108,313
Donations 300,505 277,505 - 23,000 300,505
Total miscellaneous 300,505 372,572 - 36,246 408,618
Interast sarned on tnvestmente 6,670 118,354 - 210,111 328 465
Total revenues 20,481,220 3,101,561 . 702,425 3,802,086
Expenditurss
Current
Recreational and communlty facliltles
Cape Fear River Park 350,000 279,163 - 1,800 280,963
Open Space Project - 25,000 25,000 - -
Freedom Park 482,175 422,053 - 49,573 471,628
Amtrak Station 663,500 672,344 - 18,116 691,460
Martin Luther King Park - 50,000 50,000 - -
Bonnie Doone Park 554,895 546,657 - 7,608 554,163
EE Miller Recreation Center 2,207,050 2,293319 - 2,641 2,205,060
NC State Veterans Park 2,300,000 1,840,671 - 280,777 2,121,648
Weslem Area Neighborhood Park 800,000 - - - -
NG State Velerans Park #2 14,700,000 - - 452 528 452 526
Playground equipment and improvemenis 150,000 - - 113,835 113,835
Cape Fear River Trail Phase 2 2,645,500 - - 18,450 18,450
Total expendlitures 24,873,120 6,126,307 75,000 046,324 7,000,631
Revenues over (undar) expenditures (4,491,900) (3,027,746) (75,000} {153,800} {3,108,845)
Other financing sources {uses)
Transfers in 2,360,850 2,287,647 75,000 205,500 2,398,147
Capital leases, bonds, end other debt 2,122,050 2,124,358 - - 2,124,356
Total other financing sourcee {Urses) 4,481,900 4,392,003 75,000 205,500 4,522 503
Revenues and other financing aources
{usee) aver (under) expendltures $ - $ 1,364,257 3 - 51,801 $ 1,415,858
Fund balence
Beginning of year - July 1 1,364,257
End of year - June 30 $ 1415858
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2009

Special Capital Total Nonmajor
Revenue Project Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and investments $ 5987616 $ 10393417 % 16,381,033
Taxes receivable 60,520 - 60,520
Accounts receivable 7,595,503 216,259 7,811,762
Restricted asset - cash and investments 1,305,841 2,605,507 3,911,348
Total assets $ 149049480 $ 13215183 % 28,164 663
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 5 530,367 $ 2,008,161 % 2,538,528
Unearned deposits 39,690 - 39,690
Deferred revenues 7,456,405 444 398 7,900,803
Total liabilities 8,026,462 2,452 558 10,479,021
Fund balances:
Reserved
By State statute 814,902 516,789 1,331,691
For encumbrances 2,124,299 3,358,571 5,482,870
For streets - Powell Bill - 1,145,874 1,145,874
For grant compliance 735,767 3,530 739,297
For debt service 354,356 1,046,705 1,401,061
Unreserved
Designated
For subsequent year's expenditures 297,500 5,127,594 5,425,094
For special purpose 1,424,996 - 1,424 996
Undesignated 1,171,198 (436,439) 734,759
Total fund balances 6,923,018 10,762,624 17,685,642
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 149849480 $ 13215183 § 28,164,663




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Special Capital Total Nonmajor
Revenue Project Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
Revenues
Other taxes and fees $ 6851490 - 6,851,490
Restricted intergovernmental 2,620,234 183,695 2,703,929
Miscellaneous 732,621 247 866 980,487
Interest earned on investments 154,967 42 121 197,088
Total revenues 10,259,312 473,682 10,732,994
Expenditures
Current:
Administration - 303,105 303,105
Public safety 1,712,348 1,081,425 2773771
Environmental protection 4,959,427 - 4,959 427
Transportation - 3,084,245 3,084,245
Economic and physical development 2,454 201 B41,089 3,295,290
Recreation and community facilities 12,470 81,895 94,365
Debt service:
Principal 1,650,657 177,900 1,828,557
Interest and fees 549,767 - 549,787
Total expenditures 11,338,868 5,549,659 16,888,527
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under} expenditures (1,079,556) {5,075,977) (8,155,533)
Other finan¢ing sources {(uses)
Transfers in 2,563,818 11,409,667 13,973,485
Transfers out - (1,451,896) {1,451,896)
Total other financing sources (uses} 2,563,818 9,957,771 12,521,589
Net change in fund balances 1,484 262 4. 881,794 6,366,056
Fund balance - beginning 5,438,756 5,880,830 11,319,586
Fund balance - ending $ 6.923.018 10,762,624 17,685,642
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Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources or to finance specific activities as required by law or administrative

regulation.

The following comprise the City’s Special Revenue Funds:
- Emergency Telephone System Fund
- Federal and State Finoncial Assistance Fund
- Storm Water Management Fund
- City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation Fund

Al Special Revenue Funds are accounted for on the modified accrud basis of

acceunting
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2009

Assets
Cash and investments
Taxes receivabie
Accounts receivabie
Interfund receivable
Restricted asset - cash and investments
Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances
Liabifities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

interfund payables

Uneamed deposits

Deferred revenues
Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Reserved
By State statute
For encumbrances
For grant compliance
For debt service
Unreserved
Designated
For subsequent year's expenditures
For special purpose
Undesignated
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Federal
Emergency and State
Telephone Financial Storm Water Total Nonmajor
System Assistance Management Speclal Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Funds
3 670,542 - 5 5317074 5,987,616
- - 60,520 60,520
89,902 7,475,428 30,173 7,595,503
- - 413,641 413,641
. 951,485 - 1,305,841
3 760,444 8,426913 $ 5,821,408 15,363,121
$ 211,952 B6ABE 3 231,929 530,367
- 413,641 - 413 641
- - 39,690 39,690
- 7,395,885 60,520 7,456,405
211,952 7,896,012 332,139 8,440,103
89,502 281,186 443,814 814,902
273,682 730,590 1,120,027 2,124,289
- 735,767 - 735,767
- - - 354,356
- - 297 500 297 500
- - 1,424,996 1,424,996
184,908 {1,216,642) 2,202,932 1,171,198
548,492 530,901 5,485,269 6,923,018
3 760,444 8,426,913 $ 5,821,408 15,363,121
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Federal
Emergency and State Storm Fayettevilie
Telephone Financlal Water Finance Total Nonmajor
System Agsistance Management Corp Special Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
Revenues
Other taxes and fees $ 1,138,897 3 - % 5712593 % - % 6,851,490
Restricted intergovernmental - 2,520,234 - - 2,520,234
Miscellaneous 15 732,106 500 - 732,621
Interest eamed on investments 10,8925 - 140,532 3,510 154,967
Total revenues 1,149,837 3,252,340 5,853,625 3,510 10,259,312
Expenditures
Current:
Public safety 841,680 870,666 - - 1,712,346
Envircnmental protection - - 4,959,427 - 4,959,427
Economic and physical development - 2,447 597 - 6,604 2,454,201
Recreation and community facilities - 12,470 - - 12,470
Debt service:
Principal 70,248 2,581 22828 1,555,000 1,650,657
Interest and fees 1,027 38 334 548,368 549,767
Total expenditures 912,955 3,333,352 4,982,589 2,109,972 11,338,868
Excess {deficlency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 236,882 (81,012) 871,036 (2,106,462) (1,079,556)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in - 103,000 - 2,460,818 2,563,818
Total other financing sources (uses) - 103,000 - 2,460,818 2,563,818
Net change in fund balances 236,882 21,988 871,036 354,356 1,484,262
Fund balance - beginning 311,610 508,913 4,618,233 - 5,438,756
Fund balance - ending $ 548492 % 530901 § 5489269 § 354,356 % 6,923,018
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Emergency Telephone System Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2009
(Wlith Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2008)

Variance
Positive 2009 2008
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Revenues
Other taxes
Wireline 911 tax $ - % - - & 361,922
Wireless/consolidated 911 funds 1,064,600 74,297 1,138,897 560,102
Total other taxes 1,064,600 74,297 1,138,897 922,024
Miscellaneous - 15 15 -
Interest earned on investments
Wireless/consolidated 911 10,000 925 10,925 66,342
Total interest earned on investments 10,000 925 10,925 66,342
Total revenues 1,074,600 75,237 1,149,837 988,366
Expenditures
Current
Public safety
Wireless/consolldated 911
Personnel 53,158 306 52,852 25,745
Operating 684,967 192,683 492 284 357,916
Assets 565,200 268,656 296,544 3,657
1,303,325 461,645 841,680 387,318
Wireline 911
Personnel - - - 22,882
Operating - - - 171,471
Assets - - - 2,992
- - - 197,345
Total public safety 1,303,325 461,645 841,680 584 663
Debt service
Wireless/consolidated 911 71,275 - 71,275 38,709
Wireline 911 - - - 38,709
Total debt service 71,275 - 71,275 77,418
Total expenditures 1,374,600 461,645 912,955 662,081
Revenues over (under) expenditures (300,000) 536,882 236,862 326,285
Other financing sources (uses)
Appropriated fund balance 300,000 {300,000) - -
Transfers out - - - (3,122,577)
Total other financing sources (uses) 300,000 {300,000) - (3,122,577)
Revenues and other financing sources
(uses) over (under) expenditures % - % 236,882 236,882 (2,796,292)
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 311,610 3,107,802
End of year - June 30 548,492 § 311,610
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2009

Project Prior Closed Current
Authaorization Years Projects Year Total
Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental
Federal grants $ 10,169,190 $ 4,411,469 $ - 3 2,165,245 $ 6576718
State grants 1,894,557 1,261,024 76,256 345,172 1,529,940
County 37,680 25,199 - 9,813 35012
Total restricted intergovernmental 12,101,437 5,697,692 76,256 2,520,234 8,141,670
Miscellaneous
Other 2,337,330 1,820,421 20,948 732,106 2,631,575
Total revenues 14,438,767 7,518,113 57,204 3,252,340 10,673,249
Expenditures
Current
Public safety 3,361,039 1,660,475 97 204 870,666 2,433,937
Parks and recreation 300,586 - - 12,470 12,470
Economic and physical development 10,994,609 5,572,087 - 2,447 597 8,019,684
Total current 14,656,234 7,232,562 97,204 3,330,733 10,466,091
Debt service 145,948 72,692 - 2,619 75,311
Total expenditures 14,802,182 7,305,254 97.204 3,333,352 10,541,402
Revenues over (under)
expenditures {363,415) 212,859 - (81.012) 131,847
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 363,415 296,054 - 103,000 399,054
Total other financing sources
{uses) 363,415 296,054 - 103,000 399,054
Revenues and other financing
sources (uses) over (under) .
expenditures $ - 3 508913 & - 21988 3 530,901
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 508,913

End of year - June 30 $ 530,901




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Expenditures by Project
Budget and Actual - Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2009

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Expenditures by project:
Public safety
Federal and State Forfeiture 3 1652722 & 674909 § - 5 506,086 % 1,180,995
P3SN Anti-Gang; Operation Ceasefire 161,588 123,802 - 26,127 149,929
PSN Media Blitz 23,000 19,889 - - 19,889
PSN Gun Tracer - 13,412 13,412 - -
JCPC Gang Vioience Prevention - 1,023 - - 1,023
Gangs across the Carolinas 92,722 83,792 83,792 92,721 92,721
Juvenile Restitution 370,881 227 441 - 79,279 306,720
Gang Prevention 11,000 10,120 - - 10,120
Justice Assistance Gramt 398,984 319,009 - 50,608 369,617
FY 07 Hazmat Equipment 251,571 - - 110,155 110,155
FY 08 Hazmat Equipment 205,714 - - - -
FEMA Firefighter Grant 192,857 187,078 - 5,690 192,768
Total public safety 3,361,039 1,660,475 97,204 870,666 2,433,937
Economic and physical development
Community Development Block Grant 6,222,733 3,297,943 - 1,563,722 4,861,665
Military Business Park 666,750 - - - -
NC Rural Economic Development 47,335 - - - -
Community Garden 28,000 - - 20,088 20,088
HOME 4,029,791 2,274,144 - 863,787 3,137,931
Total economic and
physical development 10,994,609 5,572,087 - 2,447 597 8,019,684
Recreation and cultural
Wayfinding signage 300,586 - - 12,470 12,470
Total recreation and
culturat 300,586 - - 12,470 12,470

Total expenditures by project $ 14656234 § 7232562 § 97,204 3 3,330,733 § 10,466,091




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Storm Water Management Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2009
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2008)

Variance
Positive 2009 2008
Budget (Negative) Actual Actual
Revenues
Other fees

Storm water fee $ 5658622 & 30025 § 5688647 § 5,573,790

Penalties . 15,400 8,546 23,048 18,212
Total other fees 5,674,022 38,571 5,712,593 5,592,002

Miscellaneous - 500 500 -
Interest earned on investments 60,000 80,532 140,532 188,067
Total revenues 5,734,022 119,603 5,853,625 5,780,069
Expenditures
Current )
Environmental protection
Personnel 1,708,681 110,075 1,598,606 1,238,488
Operating 3,199,014 1,279,935 1,819,079 1,151,905
Assets 3,212,910 1,822 346 1,390,564 141,580
Cost redistribution 75,000 23,822 51,178 75,000
Total environmental protection 8,185,605 3,236,178 4,950,427 2,606,973
Debt service 23,162 - 23,162 24,946
Total expenditures 8,218,767 3,236,178 4,982 589 2,631,919
Revenues over (under) expenditures {2,484,745) 3,355,781 871,036 3,148,150
Other financing sources {uses)

Appropriated fund batance 2,484 745 (2,484,745) - -
Total other financing sources {(uses) 2,484 745 (2,484,745) - -
Revenues and other financing sources

(uses) over {under) expenditures 3 - % 871,036 871,036 3,148,150

Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 4,618,233 1,470,083
End of year - June 30 $ 5489269 § 4,618,233
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Clty of Fayetteville Finance Corporation Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2009
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2008}

Variance
Positive 2009 2008
Budget (Negative) Actual Actual
Revenues
Interest earned on investments $ - $ 3,510 $ 3,510 $ 967
Expenditures
Current
Economic and physical development
Operating 358,415 351,811 6,604 5,580

Debt service 2,103,368 - 2,103,368 2,478,143
Total expenditures 2,461,783 351,811 2,109,972 2,484,723
Revenues over {under) expenditures (2.461,783) 355,321 (2,106,462) (2,483,726)

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 2,461,783 {965) 2,460,818 2,483,726
Total financing sources {uses) 2,461,783 {965) 2,460,818 2,483,726
Revenues and other financing sources

{uses) over {under) expenditures 3 - $ 354,356 354,356 -

Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 - -

End of year - June 30 $ 354,356 5 -




Normaijor Capital Project Funds
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Coapital Project Funds

Capital Project Funds account for dll resources used for the acquisition
and corstruction of major capital facilities other than those financed by the

Recreational and Cultural Fund and the Proprietary Funds.

The following comprise the City’s Nonmajor Capital Project Funds:
- Gererd Government Fund
- Public Safety Fund
- Transportation Fund
- Water and Sewer Fund

- Bond lmprovement Fund

- Ecoromic and Physical Development Fund

- Linear Park Fund

All Capital Project Funds are accounted for on

the modified accrual basis of accounting.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Government Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2009

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Revenues § - - - 3 - 3 -
Expendltures
Current
Administration
Information technology - 687,357 687,357 - -
Building maintenance 50,000 - - 48,055 48,055
Parking lol maintenance 50,000 - - 41,783 41,793
Demaolition of City building 73,725 - - 82,758 82,758
Council chambers upgrade 158,453 - - 150,499 150,499
Total expenditures 332,178 687,357 687,357 303,105 303,105
Revenues over (under) expenditures (332,178) (687,357 (887,357) (303,105) (303,105)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 332,178 946 508 756,866 150,848 340,691
Transfers out - (69,309) {68,309) - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 332,178 877,200 687,357 150,848 340,691
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over (under) expenditures $ - 159,843 - (152,257) % 37,588
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 189,843
End of year - June 30 $ 37.588




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Publlc Safety Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2009

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorlzatlon Years Projects Year Total
Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental
State grants/contributions $ 400,000 § - $ - 3 - 3 -
Interest eamed on investments - 72,066 - 7.793 79,859
Total revenues 400,000 72,066 - 7,793 79,859
Expenditures
Current
Public safety
Fire Station #15 2,622,750 2,513,249 - 18,805 2,532,054
Police Dept. server upgrade 180,000 - - 75,118 75,118
Fire Stafion #12 125,000 - - - -
Fire training tower 500,000 - - - -
Fire Station #19 ' 235,000 - - 21,624 21,624
Police Dept. CAD and RMS 2,322,100 - - 945,878 945,878
Total expenditures 5,084,850 2,513,249 - 1,061,425 3,574 674
Revenues over (under) expenditures {5,584,850} (2,441,183} - (1,063,632) {3,494 ,815)
Other financing sources (uses)
Proceeds from capital leases 2,650,000 2,415,000 - - 2,415,000
Transfers in 2,934,850 207,750 - 2,627,100 2,834,850
Total other financing sources (uses) 5,584,850 2,622,750 - 2,627,100 5,249,850
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over (under} expenditures $ - § 181,567 3 - 1,573,468 § 1,755,035
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 181,567

End of year - June 30 § 1755035




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Transportation Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2009

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Revenues
Restrictad intergovernmental
State grants $ 695000 § 107,503 3 -~ % 144,745 § 252,248
Miscellangsous
Owner coniribution 88,775 82,766 - 80,841 183,607
Chher 10,204 30,408 - - 30,408
Total miscetlanous 108,979 113,174 - 80,841 194 015
Intere:st earned on investments - 4,492 - 1.608 6,100
Total revenues 803.879 225,169 - 227,194 452,363
Expenditures
Current
Transportation
Traffic control system 1,628,089 1,251,268 - - 1,251,268
Sldewalks 991,232 22,820 - 65,357 88,177
Transportation improvements 10,884,888 8,674,320 1,823,616 3,018,888 8,089,592
(Gateway beautifications 100,000 58,991 - - 58,991
Total expenditures 13,605,188 8,007,389 1.623.616 3,084,245 9,468,028
Revenues over {under) expanditures {12,801.210) (7.782,230) (1,623,616} {2.857,051) {9.015,665)
Other flnancing sources {uses)
Transfers in 12,951,210 10,602,331 2,018,674 4,517,847 13,301,504
Transfers (out) (150,000} (545,058) (395.058) - (150.000)
Total other financing sources {uses) 12,801,210 10,257,273 1,623,616 4,517 847 13,151,504
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over (under) expendfures 3 - 3 2475043 3 - 1,680,798 § 4,135,839
Fund batance
Beginaing of year - July 1 2,475,043

End of year - June 30 3 4,135,832




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual - Water and Sewer Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2009

Project Pror Closed Current
Authodzation Years Projects Year Total
Revenues
Miscellaneous
Lumbee River Electric Membership
Corporation - Service Terrflory § 3,449,709 § 3448709 3 - § 3,445,709
Interest eamed on Inveetments 272,000 271,303 - 271,303
Total revenues 3,721,708 3,721,012 - 3,721,012
Revenues over (under) expenditures 3,721,709 372102 - 3,721,012
Other financing sources (uses)
Trensfers [out) (3,721,709) {2,873,380) {1,047,622) (3.721,12)
Revenues and ather financing sources
(uses) over (under) expendiures § - 3 1,047 822 3 {1.047622) _§ -
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 1,047,622

End of year - June 30

K-6



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Bond Improvement Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2009

Revenues
Miscellaneous
Owner contribution
Total miscellaneous

Interest earned on investments
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Economic and physical development

Bond adminlstration
Debt service and cost of 1ssuance
Streets
Sidewalks
Drainage

Public Safety
Debt service
F5U Fira Station

Recreational and community facilitles
Debt service and cost of issuance
Westover Recraational Center
Festival Park
Cape Fear River Park

Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Cperating transfers (ouf)
Capilal leases, bonds, and other debt

Total other financing sources {uses)

Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over {under) expendlitures

Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total

5 10,000 10,000 $ - 10,000
10,000 10,000 - 10,000
1,216,807 1,187,758 30,393 1,218,151
1,226,807 1,197,758 30,303 1,228,151
1,119,704 1,119,600 - 1,119,609
121,190 91,011 30,178 121,189
9,580,651 8,633,206 425,505 9,058,711
B0E,066 798,971 - 788,871
625,313 551,826 38,390 590,016
12,232,924 14,192,513 494,073 11,566,586
97,422 - 97,428 o7,428
3,484,187 3,494,183 - 3,404,183
3,591,800 3,494,183 97,428 3,591,600
218,038 167,743 50,296 218,038
2,771,018 2,767,018 - 2,787,918
4,364,832 4,355,004 8,807 4,364,501
978,857 863,540 1,820 885,378
8,332,844 8,175,164 80,732 8,235,928
24,158,377 22,861,890 852,231 23,514121
(22,931,480) (21,664,132) (621,838} (22,285,970)
1,660,548 1,810,000 79,548 1,888,548
(428,950} - (404,274) {404,274)
21,470,884 21,470,864 - 21,470,884
22,031,480 23,280,884 (324,728) 22,956,158

§ - 1,618,752 (946,566) $ 670,186

1,616,752
3 570,186




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Economic and Physlcal Development Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2009

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Revenueas
Rastricted intergovemmantal
State grants 5 2,731,419 5 2,484,218 5 - $ 30,813 H 2,515,134
Total restricted Intergovernmental 2,731,419 2,484,218 - 30,913 2,515,131
Migcellaneous
Private donations 3,058,621 2,761,545 - - 2,761,545
Sale of assets 334,000 245435 - - 2454235
Total miscellaneous 3,392,621 3,006,980 - - 3,006,980
Interest earned on investments 24,253 19,084 - - 19,084
Total ravenues 6,148,293 5,510,282 - 30,913 5,541,185
Expenditures
Current
Economie and physlcal development
Texfi Project 109,376 - - 22,51 22,511
Uptown ravitallzation 2,250,000 - - 198,553 188,553
USO/Amphitheater Demo/Feslival Park 3,891,891 3,930,892 - 17,756 3,848,648
Cape Fear & Yadkln Valley Dapot 3,414,274 3,105,340 - 38,842 3,143,982
300 Block of Hay Street 1,857,475 1,723,897 - 99,732 1,823,729
Total expenditures 11,623,016 8,760,229 - 77,194 9,137 423
Revenues over {under) expanditures (5.474,723) (3,249.847) - {346,281) {3,566,228)
Other financing sourcas (uses)
Transfers In 5,474,723 3,528,524 - 4,034,326 7,582,850
Total other financing sources (uses) 5,474,723 3.528,5624 - 4,034,328 7.562.850
Revenues and other financing
sources {uses) over {under)
expanditures $ - 3 278,517 $ - 3,888,045 H 3,966,622

Fund balance

Beginring of yaar - July 1 278,577

End of year - June 30 $ 3,966 622




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Linear Park

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2009

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorizatlon Years Projects Year Total
Revanues
Restricted Intergovern mental

County grants/comrbutions 3 130,000 $ 112,565 $ - 3 8,037 - & 120,602

Total restricted Intergovernmental 130,000 112,565 - 8,037 120,602
Miscellanecus

Qther {donatlons) 1,363,364 1,196,838 - 167,025 1,363,864
Total mlscellaneous 1,363,364 1,196,839 - 187,025 1.363,864

Interest sarned on Investmente 36,687 39,167 - 2,327 41,494
Total revenues 1,532,051 1,348,571 - 177,389 1,525,980

Expenditures
Current
Recreational and community facilitles

Linear Park 1,582,051 1.307,245 - 71.459 1,378,704
Total expenditures 1,562,051 1,307,245 - 71,459 1,378,704
Revenues over {under) expenditures (50,000) 41,326 - 105,830 147,258

Other financing eources (uses)

Transfers In 50,000 50,100 - - 50,100
Total other finencing sources {uses) 50,000 50,100 - - 50,100
Revenues and other flnancing sources

(uees) over (under) expenditures $ - 3 91,426 3 - 105,930 £ 197,358
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 01,426
End of year - June 30 3 197,358
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Proprietary Funds

- Enterprise Funds

- Internal Service Funds

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net income,
financial position and cash Hlows. The accounting principles used here are generdlly
accepted in the United States of Americo and are applicable to similar businesses

in the private sectar.
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Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds account for operations that are either financed or operated in @
manner similar to private businesses or for operatiors that the City has decided
that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for capital maintenance,

management control, accountability, public policy, or other purposes.

The following comprise the City's Enterprise Funds
- Hectric Fund
- Water ond Wastewater Fund
- Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
- Trarsit Fund
- Airport Fund
- Solid Waste Recydling Fund

All Enterprise Funds are accounted for using the

accrual basis of accounting.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet
Eiectric Fund
June 30, 2009

Uptown Rate
Elactric Revitallzation Stahllization
Fund Speclal Fund Special Fund Total
Asgats
Curent unrestricted aasets
Cash and cash squivalents 3 26.483.881 § - 3 - $  26,483881
Investments 11,578,129 - - 11,678,129
Receivables 23,353.719 - - 23,353,718
Intemal belances 233,169 - - 238,169
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (308,702) - - (306,702)
Invantorias 12,216,757 - - 42,216,757
Other curren] assets 209,338 - - 209,339
Total current unrestricted assets 73,773,282 - - 73,773,292
Current restricted assets
Cash and cash agutvalkents 6,332,451 - 19,634,186 25,968,639
Investments 7,696,722 - - 7,698,722
Collatersl pledged In lieu of deposits 274,501 - - 274,501
Racelvabas 10,635 - - 10.635
Total cumrent restricted assets 14,316,300 - 15,634,188 33,950,497
Total current assets 88,089,601 - 19,834,188 107,723,789
Noncurment assets
Other assets 1,914,954 - - 1,914.954
Capftal assets:
Land 5275478 - - 5,275,478
Construction in process 16,218,706 - . 16,218,706
Eleztric ulliity systerns 168,197,982 - - 168,197,982
Buildings 24,215,480 - - 24,215,480
Equipment and machinery 7,149,984 - - 7,149,984
Computer programs 1.215,487 - - 1,215,487
Vehicles 3,407,403 - - 3,407,403
Office equipment 106.683 - - 108,683
Capltal assots, net 225,787,163 - - 225,787,163
Tetal noncurrent agsets. 227,702,117 - - 227,702,117
Total assets $ 315,791,718 3 - 3 15,634,188 $ 335,425,906
Llablliles and net aseets
Current llablitties to be pald from unrestricted
currant assets
Currem porlion of long-lerm GablEties $ 2,563,626 $ - $ - $ 2,563,626
Accounts payable snd accrued expenses 13,726,287 - - 13,726 287
Total currant Ilabllities to be pald from unrestricted current asseta 16,289,913 - - 16,289,913
Current liablltHes to be pald from
restricted current assets
Accounis payable and 8ceruec axpenses 5633677 - - 6,633,677
Total current Ilabilities to be pald from
rastricted current sssats 5,633,677 - - 5,833,677
Total current [labllites 21,923,590 - - 21,623,560
Noncurrent llablliies
Long-term liablliies 22,243,604 - - 22,243,804
Other Kabilties 842072 - - 842,072
Uneamed deposits 16,150 - - 16,199
Total noncurrent llablitiea 23,901,875 - - 23,101,875
Total llabllites 45,025465 - - 45,025,485
Net asgets
Investad in capital assets, net of related dabt 202,507,367 - - 202,507 367
Restricied for -
Capital Projects 10,635 - - 10,835
QOebl service 2,743 - - 2,743
Unrestricled net assets 68,245.508 - 19,634,188 87,679.896
Total net assets 270,768,253 - 19,634,188 280,400,441

Total liabllities and nat assats $ 315,791,718 3 - $ 19,634.168 $ 335425506




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Electric Fund
Year ended June 30, 2009

Uptown Rate
Electric Revitalization Stebllizatlon
Fund Fund Fund Total
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 169,451,426 % - 3 - $ 160,451,426
Total operating revenuas 168,451,426 - - 160,451,426
Operating expenses
Power supply and generation 104,981,262 - - 104,981,262
Electric operation 11,129,955 - - 11,129,955
General and administrative 11,807,436 - - 11,807,436
Depreciation 14,340,796 - . 14,340,796
Total operating expenses 142,259,449 - - 142,259,449
Operating Income {loss) 27,191,977 - - 27,191,977
Nonoperating revenue (axpense)
Interest earmed on Investments 2077918 - 300,674 2,378,592
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets {337,229) - - (337,229}
{nterest expense (1,391,834) - - {1,391,834)
Amortization (844,010) - - (644,010)
Finance costs (82,192) - - {B2,192)
Total nonoperating revenua (axpensa) (377,347) - 300,674 {76,673)
Income (loss) befora transfers
and contrlbutions 28,814,630 - 300,674 27,115,304
Transfers in 15,456 - 3,000,000 3,015,456
Transfers out {3.000,000) {15,456) - (3.015,456)
Transfers in - City of Fayetieville 31,065 - - 31,085
Transfers out - City of Fayettevllie {7.091,049) - - (7.991,048)
Contributions 1,044,143 - - 1,044,143
Change in net assets 16,814,245 {15,456) 3,300,874 20,199,463
Total net assets - beginning 253,852,008 15,456 16,333,514 270,200,978
Total net agsets - anding 3 270,768,253 $ - $ 19,634,188 5 290,400,441




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Electric Fund

Year ended June 30, 2009
(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2008)

2009
Variance
Positive 2008
Budget {Negative) Actual Actaal
Revenues
Operating revenues
Electric operations
Sale of electriclty 3 164,783,730 H {2,908,800) 3 161,874,930 157,516,722
City Services 2,811,570 {1,747,889) 1,063,681 3,133,542
Non-utility charges 1,508,000 (34,388) 1,473,612 1,606,202
Service charges 1.550,000 418,962 1,968,962 1,984,840
Miscellaneous 2,812,400 257,841 3.070,241 2,658,349
Total operating revenues 173,465,700 (4,014,274} 180,451,426 166,899,655
Non-operating revenues
Galn (loss) on asset disposal - (337,229) {337.229) {117,680}
Interest eamed on investments 1,850,000 227,918 2,077,918 2,547,068
Total non-operating revenues 1,850,000 (109,311) 1,740,689 2,420,388
Contributlons ’
Contribulions 4,900,000 (3,857,152) 1,042,848 405,586
Total contributions 4,900,000 (3.857,152) 1,042,548 405,586
Transfers in
Transfer from City of Fayetteville 31,100 {35) 31,085 -
Transfer from 2003A WaterWastewater Fund - - - 14,282
Transfer from Uptown Revilalization Fund 15,500 {44) 15,456 -
Total transfers in 46,600 {79) 46.521 14,292
Budgetary appropriations
Department of Transportation financing - - - 125,928
Appropriated net assets - 465,020 (465,020 - -
Total budgetary appropriations 485,020 (465,020} - 125,928
Total revenues $ 180,727,320 5 (8,445,836} 3 172,281,484 169,874,849
Expenditures
QOperating expenditures
Electric operations
Power supply and generation $ 106,939,130 3 1,957,868 5 104,981,262 99,426,511
Administration 371,410 120,706 250,704 443,724
Apparatus repair shop 366,620 46,686 319,934 320,983
Electric meter shop 784,000 91 784,809 716,763
Construction and maintenance 6,854,360 346,507 6,507,853 6,066,635
Substation construction 1,054,210 4,565 1,049,645 1,019,840
Engineering 2,270,740 53,730 2,217,010 2,162,440
Totat electric operations 118,641,370 2,530,153 116,111,217 110,156,696
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedute of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual {(Non GAAP) -

Electric Fund

Year ended June 30, 2009
(wlith comparative actuzal amounts for the year ended June 30, 2008)

2009
Varlanca
Posltive 2008
Budgat {Negative) Actual Actual
Expenditures (continued)
General and adminlstrative

Execuiive $ 1,108,205 353,881 754,324 651,378
Intemnal audi 118,140 12,453 106,687 110,324
Public informaticn 562,000 48,108 513.802 528,851
Financial adminigiration 188,350 25,089 162,361 145,078
Adrministralive - administration 168.070 47,427 120,643 100,154
Humen rescurces 462370 89,508 422,862 428,193
Accounting 464,675 14,415 450,260 425,241
Accounts receivable 712,005 4,188 707,920 677,682
Payrall 53,635 4,432 55,203 59,303
Customer sarvice administration 1,892,255 34,730 1,957,525 1,686,871
UHlIiy field services 1,247,420 17,111 1,230,309 1,187,679
Businese planning 276,035 3,969 272,066 256,768
Business developmenl 402.890 48,670 354 220 333,454
Risk menagement 526,455 45,521 480,834 483.510
Cepltal projects 213,100 3,824 200,276 191,480
Rates 150,110 5,252 144,858 94,861
Budget 111,218 4,032 107,183 100,876
Purchasing 231,520 28,154 202,366 244,086
Warehouse 435215 136 435,07¢ 375,861
Business planning, development & loglslica 184,850 2,76 182,674 185,348
Fleel mainlenance 1,227,700 478,166 749,534 857,378
Facilittes maintenance 374,465 53,113 321,362 193,629
Telecommunications systems 553,650 2,296 551,354 449,377
information sysiems 1,084,430 153 1,084,277 1,041,519
Pension expense 5,300 (2,893) 12183 17,420
Medical insuranca 3,024,500 (65,646) 3.090,448 2,319,476
Qther 2,330.500 471,492 1,859,008 1,428,853
Allocaled rent and fiber clearing (2,098.300) (8,081) (2.088,219) (2,091,656)
Qverhead claanng {2,933.500) 64,851 {3.018.351} (2.621,488)

Total general end administrative 13,224,350 1,788,103 11,436,247 9,783,616

Total operating expenditures 131,665,720 4,318,256 127,547 464 119,840,512

Non-operating expenditures

nterest expanse 1,465,000 73,166 1,391,834 1,821,280
Finance cosls 90,000 7.80B 62,192 112,843

Total non-operating expendiures 1.555.000 80,974 1,474,026 1,634,133




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues end Expenditures - Budget and Actual {(Non GAAP} -
Electric Fund

Year ended June 30, 2009
[with comparative actual amounts for the ysar ended June 30, 20048)

2009
Variance
Positive 2008
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Transfers out
Transfers to CRy of Fayatieville % 7,880,800 3 (148} 3 7,981,048 10,006,305
Transfers to Electric Rate Stabliation Fund 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 3,000,000
Total tranefers out 10.890.800 {149) 10,891,048 13,008,305
Budgetary appropriations
Inventory increpse {decreass) 528,000 776,087 (248,067) (95,286}
Wehicle and equipmenl . - (266,466) 265,466 365,634
Debt principal payments 7.866.700 65 7,846,635 51,113,085
NCDOT Project payments - (66,373) 66,373 66,373
Capilal outlay 27,201,000 7,357,561 20,543,419 16,680,717
Prepaid power credit adjustment - - - (38,339,385)
Total budgetary appropriations 36,315,700 7.798.874 28,518,826 31,7831
Total expandHures 5 180,727,320 g 12,185,855 % 168,531,365 186,673,088
Reconelliallon of change In net assels
Total revenues 3 (6,445,836) 3 172,261,484 169,674,840
Tolel expendhures 12,195,955 166,531,365 166,673,086
Subtotal 3 3,750,119 3,750,119 3,201,761
Reconclling ltems:
Budgetary anpropnations 28,516,626 31,667.210
Osvaloper 1,285 -
Depreclalion (14.340.796) (13,993,321}
Amariization (844,010 (1,139,671)
OPEB gxpanse (371,169) (470,683)
Total reconclling itams 13,184,126 16,063,135
Change In net assels $ 16,814,245 19,264,806
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Uptown Revitalization Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Yaar Total
Revenues $ - 3 - % - $ -
Tota! Revenues - - - -
Expendltures
Museum land acquisition - 2,346,547 - 2,346,547
Botanical gardens - 55,705 - 55,705
Cansulting fees - 132,304 - 132,304
Museum construction - 7,153,453 - 7.153,453
Transporialion system - 293,206 - 293.206
Land donation - 175,000 - 175,000
Riverfront development - 79,776 - 79,776
Hydralogy study - 6,705 - 6,705
Eleclric system improvements - 3,329,201 - 3,329,201
Waler and Wastewater improvements - 912,647 - 912,647
Total expenditures 14,484,544 14,484,544 - 14,484,544
Revenues under expanditures (14,484,544) (14,484,544) - (14,4584,544)
Other financing sources
Transfer from Elactric Fund 14,500,000 14,500,000 - 14,500,000
Transfer to Electric Fund (15,456) - (15,456) (15.456)
Total other flnancing sources 14,484,544 14,500,000 {15,456) 14,484,544
Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures 5 - $ 15,456 (15.458) § -
Reconeliing ltems:
Change in net assets $ 515.456!

Capltal Project Fund closed at June 30, 2009.



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Electric Rate Stabliization Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
Revenues
Interest earned on investments $ 2,575,000 2,163,789 $ 300,674 $ 2,484,463
Rate stablllzation transfer 4,169,725 4,169,725 - 4,169,725
Total revenues 6,744,725 6,333,514 300,674 6,634,188
Expenditures - - - -
Total expendltures - - - -
Revenues under expenditures 8,744,725 6,333,514 300,674 6,634,188
Other financing sources
Transfer frorm Electric Fund 16,000,000 15,000,000 3,000,000 18,000,000
Trensfer to Eiectric Fund {5.000,000) {5,000,000) - (5,000,000)
Appropriated net assets (19.744,725) - - -
Total other financing sources (6,744,725) 10,000,000 3.000,000 13,000,000
Revenues and other financlng sources
16,333,514 3,300,674 $ 19,634,188

over expenditures 3 -

Change in net assats

L-7
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual {(Non GAAP} -
Water and Wastewater Fund

Year ended June 30, 2009
(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 3@, 2008)

2009
Variance
Poslitive 2008
Budget {Negativa) Actual Actual
Revenues
Operating revenuas
Water operations
Water Sales $  26.580,400 $  (1,647,264) § 24933136 $ 24790,261
Conneclion feea 420,000 (145,151} 274,849 407,331
City Services 112,000 38,491 150,491 164.163
Total water operations 27,112,400 (1.753,824) 25,358,476 25,361,755
Wastewatar operations
Sewer charges 29,423,100 674,429 30,097,529 28,104,658
Connection fees 335,000 {193,122) 141,878 214587
Clty services 57,000 8,425 65.425 43,692
Total wastewater oparations 29,815,100 469,732 30,304,832 28,362,937
Other operating revenues
Non-utllity charges 900,300 321,536 1,221,836 1,016,233
Service charges 354,000 2,442 356,442 371,377
Miscellaneous 232,100 51,912 284,012 204,730
Total ather operating revenuss 1,486,400 375.890 1,862,290 1,592,340
Total operating revenues 58,413,900 (886,302) 57,525,598 55,317,032
Non-operating revenues
Galn ({kuss) on asset disposal - 172,642 172,642 22,802
intarest earned on investments 1,091,500 1,017,199 2,108,699 1,808,172
Total non-operating revenues 1,091,500 1,189,841 2,281,341 1,830,974
Contributions
Contributions 9,499,900 (4,874,452) 4,625,448 3,523.614
Total contributions 9,499,900 {4,874.452) 4,625,448 3,523,614
Transfoers in
Transfer from Clty of Fayetiavilla 400,000 - 400,000 538,835
Transfer from 2003A Water/Wastewater - - - 49,844
Transfer from Phase IVB - - - 104,001
Transfer from Annexation Capllal Reserve Fund 665,300 (48) 665,254 -
Transfer from Phasa IVB 63,200 i) 63,187 -
Total transfers in 1,128,500 (59) 1,126,441 693,480
Budgetary appropriations
Department of Transporiation financing - 38,361 38,361 1,053,633
Cumberland county nota proceeds 39,600 - 39,600 38,600
Sanes 2008 bond proceeds - - - 17,225,332
Appropriations of net assels 11,292,870 (11,292,870} - -
Total budgatary appropriations 11,332,470 {11,254,508} 77,961 18,318,565
Total revenues 5 81.466,270 § (15.827.481) § 65.636,789 $ 79.683,665
Expenditures
Operating axpenditures
Water operetions
Admintstration and enginearing s 1,154,485 $ 2,541 $ 1,151,954 3 1,042,002
Water meter shop 216.680 89,854 126,826 80,948
Construction and maintenance 3,655,980 26,875 3,629,105 3,574,874
Contract system maintsnance 115,500 22,264 93,236 111,721
P. O. Hoffer water treatment plant 3,980,384 3,11 3977273 2,806,374
Glenvilla Lake walter trmatment plant 1.920,554 172,856 1,747,698 1,523,402
Water Resources anvirpnmental system protection 155,960 3.250 152,710 139,245
Laboratory 240,950 4,870 236,080 226,720
Environmental 08,780 1,508 97,272 92,489
Waiersheds 195,950 35975 159.975 133.350

Total water operations 11.735.233 362.104 11,372,129 9,731,125




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Water and Wastewater Fund

Year ended June 30, 2009
(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2008)

2008
Variance
Positive 2008
Budget {Megative) Actual Actual
Expenditures (continuad)
Operating expenditures {continued
Wastewater oparations

Adminisiration and engineering $ 1,154,495 $ 2,541 $ 1,151,954 $ 1,042,002
Sewer construction and maintenance 4,748,854 118,015 4,630,849 3,617,295
Cantract system maintenance 77,000 14,843 62,157 74,481
Cross Creek WW treatment plant 2,551,844 171,985 2,379,859 2,093 815
Rockfish Creek WW treatment plant 2,076,784 6,014 2,070,770 2,015,808
Rasiduals management 245,810 151 245,659 233,363
Waler resource environmental syslem proleclion 155,360 3,251 152,709 139,245
Laboratory 240,950 4,870 236,080 226,720
Environmental 98,780 1,508 97,272 92 489

Total wastewater operations 11,350,487 323,178 11,027,309 9,535,221

General and administrative

Executive 358,805 60,727 298,078 259,322
Internal audit 117,140 13,412 103,728 109,132
Public information 561,100 38,654 522,446 588,981
Financial administration 189,750 133 189,617 140,801
Administrative adminlstration 141,570 42,351 99,219 91,193
Human resources 471,870 52,708 419,162 425,026
Accounting 495675 8,991 486,684 411,320
Accounts receivable 711,495 4,348 707,147 678,066
Payroll 63,635 6,629 57,006 59,214
Customer service administration 1,567,455 28,000 1,539,455 1,346,825
Utility field servica 1,167,420 161,955 1,005,465 993,756
Business development 301,890 5,295 296,585 282 907
Business planning 276,035 1,896 274,139 266,891
Risk managerment 876,755 128,643 748,112 514,764
Capital projects 206,700 4,143 202,557 186,379
Rates 148,010 16,740 131,270 94,560
Budget 110,915 4,078 106,837 100,375
Purchasing 211,420 6,186 205,234 243,49
Warehouse 348,515 112,147 236,368 243,729
Business planning, development & logistics 183,250 2,131 181,119 181,093
Fieet mainienance 1,444,000 40 1,443,960 1,385,311

Facilities maintenance 374,465 53,123 321,342 191,643




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Water and Wastewater Fund

Year ended June 30, 2009
' (with comparative actual amounts for tha year ended June 30, 2008)

2009
Variance
Posltive 2008
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Expendiures (continuad)
Operating expenditures (continued
General and administrative {continued)
Telecommunications systems $ 553,650 $ 3,023 $ 550,627 $ 446,966
Infarmation systems 1,100,030 179 1,099,851 1,035,479
Penslon expenses 9,200 (2,993) 12,193 14,735
Medical insurance 3,135,700 {46,579) 3,982,279 2,420,574
Other 1,484,200 514,989 969,211 943,195
Overhead clearing (2,961,600) 571,928 {3,533,528) {3,178,546)
Total general and administrative 13,649,050 1,792,877 11,856,173 10,477,610
Total operating expenditures 36,734,770 2,479,159 34,255,611 29,743,956
Non-operating expenditures
Interest expense 7.895 500 560,666 7,334,834 5,430,068
Finance costs 370,000 (333) 370,333 368,053
Total non-operating expenditures 8,265,500 560,333 7,705,167 5,798,121
Transfers out
Transfer to W/WW Rate Stabilization Fund 500,000 - 500,000 500,000
Transfer to Annexation Phase V Project 1 Fund 2,149,500 - 2,149,500 6,466,141
Transfer to 2008 W/WW Bond Fund - - - 10,610,511
Transfer to Rim Road Water Main Fund - - - 188.528
Total transfers out 2,649,500 - 2,649,500 17,765,180
Budgetary appropriations
Invenliory increase - 118,239 {118,239) 428,725
Vehicle and equipment - (1,108,992) 1,108,992 B87,672
Other debl related payments - - - 2,067,459
Deabt principal payments 6,433,200 70 6,433,130 4,786,680
Note payments 1,267,900 51 1,267,849 1,244,241
NC DOT project payments 3,121,400 539,373 2,582,027 1,826,804
Capital outlay 22,344,000 6,159,818 16,184,182 9,774,924
Appropriation of net assets 650,000 - 650,000 -
Total budgetary appropriations 33,816,500 5,708,559 28,107,941 21,016,585
Total expenditures b 81,466,270 S 8,748,051 § 72,718.219 § 74,323,842

L-13




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budgst and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Water and Wastewater Fund

Year ended June 30, 2009
{with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2008}

Total revenue
Total expenditures

Subtotal

Reconclling items;

Reconcillation of change In net assets

Budgetary appropriations

Depreciation
Amortizafion
OPEB expense

Developer and FIF credits

Assessments

Transfer of assets (10) / from Annexation Capital Project Fund Phase V-1
Transfer of assels (to) / from Rim Road Water Main Capital Project Fund

Transfer of assets (to) / from State Revolving Loan Capital Project Fund

Transfer {to) / from 2003A Water and Wastewater Bond Capital Project Fund
Transfer {to) / from Series 2008 Revenua Bond Capital Project Fund
Total reconcillig tems

2009
Vartance
Posltive 2008
Budget {Negativej Actual Actual

$  (15,827,481) § 658638,789 $ 79,683,665

8,748,051 72,718,219 74,323,842

$ {7.079,430) (7,079,430) 5,359,823

28,029,980 2,698,020

(14,619,909) (14,069,673)

(892,260) (925,398)

(441,168) {524,392)

6,431,308 12,719,060

542,105 (1,891,352)

35,217 6,764,178

- 282,341

- (16,958,168)

- 611,133

3.063,261 7,547.250

22,148,534 {3,747.001)

$ 15,069,104 $ 1,612,822

Change in net assets




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation Reserve Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
Revenues
Interest eamed on investments 3 165,254 3 154,644 3 10,610 165,254
Total revenues 165,254 154,644 10,610 165,254
Ravenues under expenditures 165,254 154,644 10,610 165,254
Other financing sources
Transfer from Water and Wastewater Fund 4,000,000 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
Transfer to Annexation Phase IV
Caplial Project Fund (3,500,000) (3,500,000) - (3,500,000)
Appropriated net assels (665,254) - (665,254) {6€5,254)
Total other financing sources {165,254) 500,000 (665,254) (165,254)
Ravenues and other flnancing sources
over expenditures g - 5 654,644 (654,644) -
Reconclling items:
Change in nel assets 3 (654,644)

Capital Project Fund closed June 30, 2009.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Water and Wastewater Rate Stabilization Fund
From inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Total
Project Prlor Current
Authorization Years Year Total
Revenues
Iintarest eamed on investments 3 205,000 5 156,220 3 40,321 $ 196,541
Total revenues 205,000 156,220 40,321 196,541
COther financing sources
Transfer from Water and Wastewater Fund 2,500,000 2,000,000 500,000 2,500,000
Appraprialed net assets (2,705,000} - - -
Total other inancing sources (205,000} 2,000,000 500,000 2,500,000
Revenues and other flnancing sources
over expenditures $ - 3 2,156,220 540,321 3 2,686,541

Chenge in net assets $ 540,321




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation Capital Project Fund - Phase V-Project 1
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Total
Projact Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
Revenues
Interest eamned on invested bond proceeds g 93,470 $ 4,385 $ - $ 4,385
Interast eamed on other investments - 112,367 113,485 225,855
Total revenues 93,470 116,752 113,488 230,240
Expenditures
Construction - 5,557,129 2,265,529 7,822,658
Engineering - 985,499 §7.381 1,072,880
Rights of way - 279,606 5,880 285,486
Other - 361,115 263,588 624,703
Total expendlitures 14,285,816 7,183,349 2,622,378 9,805,727
Revenues under expenditures (14,192,346) (7,066,597) (2,508,890) {9,5675,487)
Dther financing sources
Bond proceeds 4,647,362 4 .547,362 - 4 547 362
Transfer from the City 4,822,492 2,673,390 2,149,500 4,822,890
Transfer from Water and Wastewater Fund 4,522,492 2,673,390 2,149,500 4,822,890
Total other flnancing sources 14,192,346 9,894 142 4,299,000 14,193,142
Revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures $ - $ 2,827,545 1,790,110 $ 4,617 655
Reconciling items:
Capital outlay 2,622,378
Transfer of assets ({o)/from the Water and Waslewater Fund (35,217

Change in net assets $ 4,377,271




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Fort Bragg Interim Water Service Project Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorizatlon Years Year Total
Revenues
Misceltaneous Operaling Revenues $ 21,840,234 3 3,175,362 $ 7,421,764 $ 10,597,116
Total Revenues 21,840,234 3,175,352 7,421,764 10,597,116
Expend!tures
Design, budget and schedule 2,397,125 1.171,513 1,226,977 2,398,490
Initial capital payment 14,864,714 - 4,954,905 4,954,905
Transition costs 274,112 274,112 - 274,112
Interim plant operations 3,346,188 1,642,908 1,168,817 2,811,725
Interim operations major 481,400 86,819 25,565 112,384
Fluoride Spill Remediation 476,695 45,500 45,500
Total expendltures 21,840,234 3,175,352 7,421,764 10,597,116
Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures § - $ - - $ -

Change in net assets [ N




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of 2008 Revenus Bond Capitat Project Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorlzatlon Years Yeaar Total
Revenues
Interest eamed on investiments $ 85,000 67,423 3 17,322 $ B4,745
Total revenues §5,000 67,423 17,322 B4,745
Expenditures
Construction - 8,963,765 1,200,157 10,163,922
Engineering - 91,278 33,255 124,533
Other - 372,993 33.808 406,801
Total expenditures 10,695,511 6,428,036 1,267,220 10,695,256
Revenues under expenditures {10,610,511) (9,360,613} {1,249,898) {10,610,511)
Other financing sources
Bonc proceeds 10,610,511 10,610,511 - 10,610,511
Total other financing sources 10,610,511 10,610,511 - 10,610,511
Revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures $ - 1,249,898 {1,248,898) 3 -

Reconcliing tems:
Capital outlay
Transfer of assets (to) / from the Water and Wastewater Fund
Change in net assels

Capltal Project Fund closed June 30, 2009.

1,249,898

{3,063,261)
3 (3063261)




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Rim Road Water Main Capltal Project Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Yoars Year Total
Revenues
interest earned on invesiments 3 - 3 - § - -
Total revanues - - - -
Expendltures
Consgtruction - 201,002 - 201,002
Enginearing - 45,933 - 45,933
Rights of way - 21,140 - 21,140
Other - 14,266 - 14,266
Total expenditures 282,341 282,341 - 282,341
Revenues under expenditures {282,341) {282,341) - (282.341)
Other financing sources
NCDENR contribufion 56,659 56,659 B 56,659
NC Rural Economic Development Center Grant 45,000 45,000 - 45,000
Transfer from the City 135,200 118,628 - 118,528
Transfer from Water and Wastewater Fund 205,200 188,527 - 188,527
Transfer to City (79,859) - (63,186) (63,186)
Transfer to Water and Wastewater Fund (72.859) - (63,187) (63,187)
Total other financing sources 282,341 408,714 {126,373) 282,341
Revenues and other financing sources over
expendltures 3 - $ 126,373 {126,373) -
Change in nel asseis $ {126,373

Capltal Project Fund closed June 30, 2009.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
June 30, 2009

Assets
Current assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prapaid expenses
Resfricted cash and invesiments
Totat current assets

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Interfund payables
Accrued vacation
Unearned deposits
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Net OPEB Obligation
Deferred revenues
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total fiabilities

Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Capital projects
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

Total Nonma)or

Transit Airport Solid Waste Enterprise
Fund Fund Recycling Fund Funds
$ 451,656 § 5344569 3§ 357538 § 6,153,763

1,088,504 4,982,063 228,711 6,309,278

122,562 2,926 22,960 148,448
3,747 - - 3,747

- 660,950 - 660,950

1,666,469 11,000,508 609,209 13,276,186

4,189,955 29,617,121 - 33,807,076
4,189,955 29,617,121 - 33,807,076
$ 5856424 § 40817629 § 609,209 § 47,083,262
$ 175308 § 4472273 % 158,541 $ 4,806,122

- 249,542 - 249,542

92,199 72,196 - 164,395

- 675 - 675

267,507 4,794,686 158,541 5,220,734
245,608 108,652 - 354,261

660 20,195 - 20,855

246,269 128,847 - 375,116
513,776 4,823,533 158,541 5,595,850
4,189,955 29617121 - 33,807,076

- 660,950 - 660,950

1,152,693 5,416,025 450,668 7,019,386
5,342 648 35,694,096 450,668 41,487,412

$ 5856424 § 40617629 § 609,209 § 47083262
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Other revenue from operations
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Personnel
Maintenance and operations
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income {loss)

Nonoperating revenue (expense)
Interest eamed (expensed) on investments
Federal and State grants
Miscellaneous revenue
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets
County revenue
Vehicle fee revenue
Interest expense
Amortization
Miscellaneous expense
Total nonoperating revenue (expense)

Income (loss) before transfers
and contributions

Transfers in

Transfers out

Capital contributions
Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

Total Nonmajor

Transit Airport Solid Waste Enterprise
Fund Fund Recycling Fund Funds

$ 786,731 $ 3645632 § 2512988 § 6,945,351
15,236 129,370 8,050 152,656
801,967 3,775,002 2,521,038 7,098,007
2,986,740 1,171,187 - 4,157,927
2,411,938 1,371,004 1,919,318 5,702,260
576,482 1,492 816 - 2,060,298
5,975,160 4,035,007 1,819,318 11,929,485
(5.173,183) (260,005) 601,720 (4,831,478)
- 135,006 21,901 156,907
2,249,001 166,023 11,774 2,426,798
- 85,794 3,761 89,565
13,081 3,395 - 16,476
- - 251,296 251,296
432,465 - - 432,465
- {16,073) - (16,073)
- {22,000) - (22,000)
- (250,320} - {250,320)
2,694,547 101,825 288,732 3,085,104
(2,478,646) (158,180} 890,452 (1,746,374)
2,594,702 - - 2,594,702
- - (487,245} {487 245)
681,884 6,293,746 - 6,975,630
797,940 6,135,566 403,207 7,336,713
4,544,708 29,558,530 47,461 34,150,699
$§ 5342648 § 35694096 % 450,668 3 41,487,412

L-22



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to or on behalf of employees for services
Cash paid for goods and services
Net cash provided by (used In)
operating activities

Noncapital financing activities
Transfers in
Federal and State grants
Miscellaneous
Transfers out
Vehicle revenue fees
Net cash provided (used} by noncapital
financing activities

Capital and related financing activities
Proceeds from sale of assets
Contributed capital received
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on debt maturities
Interest paid on debt maturitias
Net cash provided {used) by capital and
related financing activities

Investing actlvities
Interest and dividends
Net cash provided {used) by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents/investments

Cash and cash equivalents/investments
Beginning of year

End of year

Cash and cash equivalents
Total cash and cash equivalents/investments

Unresfricted cash and equivalents/investments
Resfricted cash and equivalents/investments
Total cash and cash equivalents/investments

Total Nonmajor

Transit Airport Solid Waste Enterprise
Fund Fund Recycling Fund Funds
1,842,201 (703,063) & 2202327 % 3,431,485

(2,910,884) {1,138,619) - (4,049,503)

(4,251,699 2,592,849 (1,919,078} (3,577.928)

(5,320,382) 751,167 373,249 (4,185,966)
2,594,702 - - 2,594,702
2,249,001 166,023 11,774 2,426,798

- 85,794 255,057 340,851
- - (487 ,245) (487,245)
432,465 - - 432,465
5,276,168 251,817 {220,414) 5,307,571
13,081 3,395 - 16,476
681,884 6,293,746 - 6,975,630
(809,946) (6,874,965) - (7,684,911}
- (33,555) - (33,555)
- (16,073) - (16,073}
(114,981) (627,452) - {742,433}
- 135,006 21,901 156,907
- 135,006 21,901 156,907
(159,195) 510,538 174,736 526,079
610,851 5,494,981 182,802 6,288,634
451,656 6,005519 % 357538 § 6,814,713
$ 451,656 § 6005519 % 357538 % 6,814,713
$ 451,656 $ 6005518 & 357538 & 6,814,713
451,656 5,344563 % 357538 & 6,153,763
- 660,950 - 660,950
451,656 6,005518 % 357,538 $ 6,814,713




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Reconciliation of operating income (loss}

to net cash provided by

(used in) operating activities

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
fo net cash provided by (used in) operating
actlvities:

Depreciation
Nonoperating payments for goods and services

Change in assets and liabilities

{Increase) decrease in accounts receivable

{Increase) decrease in inventory

(Increase) decrease in prepaid items

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
and accrued ligbillties

Ingrease (decrease) in accrued compensated
absences

Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues

Increase (decrease) in Net OPEB Obligation

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used in} operating activities $

Total Nonmajor

Transit Airport Solid Waste Enterprise
Fund Fund Recycling Fund Funds
$ (5173,193) § (260,005} § 601,720 $  (4,831,478)
576,482 1,492,816 - 2,069,298
- (250,320) - (250,320)
987,068 (4471,121) (228,711) (3,712,764}
53,809 3,104 (22,860) 33,953
{3,747} - - (3,747}
(1.836,014) 4,211,069 23,200 2,308,255
9,320 3,730 - 13,050
(643) (7.619) - (8.262)
66,536 28,838 - 95,374
(147,189) 1.011,172 {228,471) 635,512
{(6,320,382) § 751167 & 373,249 § (4,195,966)
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Transit Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2009
{(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2008)

Variance
Positive 2009 2008
Budget (Negative) Actual Actual
QOperating revenues
Charges for services $ 736,257 % 50,474 $ 786,731 $ 744,684
QOther revenues from operations 51,190 (35,954) 15,236 29,661
Total operating revenues 787,447 14,520 801,967 774,345
Operating expenditures
Personnel 3,022,148 111,264 2,910,884 2,643,631
Maintenance and operations 2,255,605 228,377 2,027,228 2,076,021
Total operating expenditures 5,277,753 339,641 4,938,112 4,719,652
Operating loss (4,490,306) 354,161 (4,136,145) (3,945,307)
Nonoperating revenuss (expenses)
Federal grants 1,260,270 (56,734) 1,203,536 1,183,602
State grants 785,912 {102,661) 683,251 850,068
Vehicle fee revenue 362,000 70,465 432,465 -
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 2,408,182 (88,930) 2,319,252 2,033,670
Revenues under expenditures (2,082,124) 265,231 (1,816,893} (1.911,837)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 2,082,124 (276,125) 1,805,999 2,060,337
Proceeds from sale of assets - 10,894 10,894 1,196
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,082,124 (265,231} 1,816,883 2,061,533
Revenues and other financing
sources (uses} over (under} expenditures $ - 5 - 8 - 3 148,700
Reconciliation of change in net assets:
Total revenues s 4,938,112 $ 4,868,352
Total expenditures 4,938,112 4,719,652
Subtotal - 148,700
Depreciation {576,482) (555,798)
Net OPEB expense (66,536) (179.073)
Change in inventory {22,325) 19,105
Decrease (increase) in acerued vacation (9,320) 22,034
Subtotal {674,663) (693,732)

Change in net assets $ (674,663) $ (545,032)




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of
Transit Capital Project Fund

From Inception and for Year Ended June 30, 2009

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Revenues
Federal grants § 5,564,832 % 2,696,526 % - 8 630,878 § 3,327,407
State grants 907,626 239,682 - 51,006 280,688
Total revenues 6,482,458 2,936,211 - 681,884 3,618,085
Expenditures
FTA Capital 0271 1,238,560 1,238,163 - 364 1,238,527
FTA Capital 0313 1,239,430 1,206,314 - 1,251 1,207,565
FTA Capital 0327 940,000 213,877 - 110,771 324 648
FTA Capital 0357 555,000 307,361 - 225,776 533,137
FTA Capital 0378 20,000 - - - -
FTA Capital 0406 270,209 21,092 - 90,286 111,358
FTA Capital 0425 387,000 324,462 - 27,501 351,963
FTA Capital 0444 117,416 - - 109,359 109,359
FTA Capital 04.002725 1,880,844 - - 204,586 204,586
Multi-Modal Center (nc grant) 500,000 - - - -
FTA Capital 0457 203,422 - - - -
NCDOT Capital 09-AT-004 419,012 - - - -
Total expenditures 7,770,893 3,311,269 - 769,874 4,081,143
Revenues over {under) expendltures {1,278,435) (375,058) - (87,990} {463,048)
Other financing sources (uses}
Proceeds from sale of assels - 29,566 - 2,187 31,753
Transfers in 1,278,435 505,854 - 758,703 1,264,557
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,278,435 535,420 - 760,890 1,286,310
Revenues and other financing
sources (uses) over {(under}
expendltures 3 - % 160,362 § - & 672,900 § 833,282
Reconclliation of modified accrual basis
to full agcrual basls:
Excess of revenues aver expenditures $ 872,800
Capital outlay 768,874
Non-capitalizable tems (9,471)

Change in net assets 5 1,433,303




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of
Transit 1l Capital Project Fund

From Inception and for Year Ended June 30, 2009

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorlzation Years Projects Year Total
Revenues
Intergovernmental

Federal grants $ 618240 § 103043 % - % 321,868 § 425012

State grants 77,405 12,881 - 40,245 53,126

Total intergovernmental 696,645 115,924 - 362,214 478,138
Total revenues 696,645 115,824 - 362,214 478,138

Expenditures
Current .

Transportation 774,050 128,805 - 402,458 531,263
Total expenditures 774,050 128,805 - 402,458 531,263
Revenues over {under})

expenditures (77,405) (12,881) - (40,244 {53,125)
Other financing sources (uses) .

Transfers in 77,405 47,405 - 30,000 77,405
Total other financing sources (uses) 77.405 47,405 - 30,000 77,405
Revenues and other financing

sources (uses} over (under)
expenditures 3 - % 34,524 § - 3 (10.244) % 24,280
Reconclllation of modified accrual basis
to full accrual basls:
Excess of revenues over expenditures 3 (10,244)
Capital cutlay 49,544
Change in net assets s 39,300




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Expenditures by Project
Transit Il Capital Project Fund

From Inception and for Year Ended June 30, 2009

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Yeoar Total
Expenditures by project:
Transportation
FTA 90.2406 $ 292300 $ 118778 § - % 107875 § 226,654
FTA 90.2425 181,750 10,026 - 96,441 106,467
FTA 90.2425 300,000 - - 198,142 198,142
Total transportation 774,050 128,805 - 402,458 531,263
Total expenditures by project $ 774050 $ 128805 § - 8 402458 § 531263
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Airport Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2009
{(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2008)

Variance
Positive 2009 2008
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 3523023 % 122,609 $ 3645632 % 3,079,094
QOther revenues from operations 83,722 45,648 129,370 145,076
Total operating revenues 3,606,745 168,257 3,775,002 3,224,170
Operating expenditures
Personnel 1,173,684 35,065 1,138,619 1,089,093
Maintenance and operations 1,684,388 316,40 1,367,897 1,173,960
Capital outlay 388,615 55,217 333,398 148.670
Total operating expenditures 3,246,687 406,773 2,839,914 2,411,723
Operating income (loss) 360,058 575,030 935,088 812,447
Nonoperating revenues
Interest eamed on investrnents 70,000 {1,851) 68,149 174,149
Miscellaneous 84,297 1,497 85,794 84,297
Federal and State grants 188,716 (22,693) 166,023 146,092
Total nonoperating revenues 343,013 {23,047) 319,966 404,538
Nonoperating expenditures
Interest expense - (16,073) 16,073 18,022
Debt service - principal payment - (33,555) 33,555 31,6805
Public safety reimbursements 250,321 1 250,320 275,143
Total nonoperating expenditures 250,321 (49,627} 299,848 324,770
Revenues over (under) expenditures 452,750 502,356 955,106 892,215
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers (out) (2,061,001} 199,306 (1,861,695) (356,084}
Proceeds from sale of assets - 9,378 9,378 447
Appropriated fund balance 1,608,251 {1.608,251) - -
Total other financing sources {uses) (452,750) {1,399,567) (1,852,317) (355.637)
Revenues and othar financing sources
(uses) over {under) expenditures b - 3% (897,211) % (897,211) § 536,578
Reconciiiation of change in net assets
Total revenues 3 4094968 % 3,628,708
Total expenditures 4,992,179 3,092,130
Subtotal (897,211) 536,578
Depreciation {1,482.816) (1.309,200)
Amortization (22,000) {22,000)
Change in accrued vacation (3,730) (7.517)
Change in inventory (3.104) 822
Capital outlay 333.398 148,670
Gain {loss) on disposal of assets (5,983) -
Principal payment 33,555 31,605
Net OPEB expense (28,838) (79.814)
Subtotal (1,188,518} (1,237,334)

Change in net assets % (2,086,729) 3 (700,756)
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of
Airport Capital Project Fund

From Inception and for Year Ended June 30, 2009

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Revenues
Federal grants $ 13,767,347 § 4,526,685 § - 5 6,259,445 § 10,786,130
Stale granis 1,433,192 676,192 - 34,299 710,491
Local income 294,183 281,782 - - 281,782
Miscellaneous income 262,416 828,003 - - 828,003
Investment income 88,303 213,270 - 66,856 280,126
Total revanues 15,845,441 6,525,932 - 6,360,600 12,856,532
Expendltures
Local match / fulure projects 349,000 - - - -
Renovation of airpori parking 1,600,000 - - - -
AIP-34 Runway 4/22 Rehabilitation 7,171,533 - - 4,582,879 4,562,879
Public seating upgrade 105,000 105,000 - - 105,000
Security screening area 103,000 70,282 - - 70,282
AIP-32 Airport Improvement Projects 708,920 389,426 - 127,138 516,564
West GA Ramp Rehab 872,277 13,424 - 38,764 52,188
AlP-33 Airfield Lighting Vault 2,182,031 - - 1,728,272 1,728,272
Storrnwater improvements 361,114 227,751 - 169 227,920
AlP-30 loop, building, beacon 3,568,108 3,298,249 - - 3,298,249
Securily system installation 43,000 40,801 - - 40,801
Airport Fire Training Facillty 1.250,254 1,178,322 - 70,330 1,246,652
14 Unlt T-Hanger 588,366 561,723 - - 561,723
Total expenditures 18,702,603 5,882,978 - 6,547,552 12,430,530
Revenues over {under) expenditures {2,857,162) 642,954 - (186,952) 456,002
Other financing sources {uses}
Transfers in - 2,853,878 1,059,743 - 1,861,695 2,921,428
Proceeds from sala 3,284 3.284 ~ - 3,284
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,857 162 1,063,027 - 1,861,695 2,924,722
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over (under) expenditures 3 -5 1705981 3% - % 1.674.743 % 3,380,724
Reconclliation of modHied accrual basls
to full accrual basis:
Excess of revenues over expenditures $ 1,674,743
Capital outtay 6,547,652
Change in net assets $ B,222 295
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CiTY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Solid Waste Recycling Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2009
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2008)

Varlance
Positive 2009 2008
Budget (Negative) Actual Actual
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 2509077 § 3911 5 2,512,988 -
Other revenues from operations - 8,050 8,050 -
Total operating revenues 2,509,077 11,961 2,521,038 -
Operating expenditures
Maintenance and operations 2,083,457 164,139 1,919,318 1,945,629
Total operating expenditures 2,083,457 164,139 1,919,318 1,945,629
Operating income (loss) 425,620 176,100 601,720 (1,945,629)
Nonoperating revenues
interest earned on investments - 21,901 21,901 -
Miscellaneous 100 3,661 3,761 -
Federal and State grants 14,064 (2,290) 11,774 -
County revenue - 251,296 251,296 -
Total nonoperating revenues 14,164 274,568 288,732 -
Revenues over (under) expenditures 439,784 450,668 890,452 (1,945,629}
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in - - - 1,993,090
Transfers out {487 ,245) - (487,245) -
Appropriated fund balance 47 461 (47,461) - -
Total other financing sources (uses) {439.784) {47.,461) {487.245) 1,893,090
Revenues and other financing sources
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ - $ 403,207 $ 403,207 47 461
Reconciliation of change in net assets
Total revenues $ 2,809,770 1,993,090
Total expenditures 2,406,563 1,945,629
Subtotal 403,207 47 461
Change in net assets $ 403,207 47 461

L-31




A
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Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds account for the financing of services provided by ore
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City on a cost

reimbursement basis.

The following comprise the City's Internal Service Funds:
- Warranty Fleet Fund

- Insurance Fund

- PWC Fleet Maintenance Fund

All Internal Service Funds are accounted for wsing the accrual basis of accounting.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet
Internal Service Funds
June 30, 2009

PWC
Warranty Fleet
Fleet insurance Maintenance
Fund Fund Fund Total
Assets
Current assets
Cash and investments $ 958,631 $ 14,174,761 § - § 15,133,392
Accounts receivable 3,043 50,616 985,129 1,038,788
Prepaid expenses - 81,384 - 81,384
Total current assets 961,674 14,306,761 985,129 16,253,664
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets 399,056 - 1,827,140 2,226,196
Total noncurrent assets 399,056 - 1,827,140 2,226,196
Total assets $ 1360,730 $ 14306761 § 2812269 § 18,479,760
Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 10556 § 2,339,801 § 279636 $ 2,629,993
Current portion of long term debt - - 109,351 109,351
interfund payables - - 337,226 337,226
Accrued vacation ' - 12,922 - 12,922
Total current liabilities 10,556 2,352,723 726,213 3,089,492
Noncurrent liabilities
Net OPEB Obligation - 38,080 141,849 179,929
Deferred revenues - 7,300 - 7,300
Long-term debt - - 63,705 63,705
Total noncurrent jiabilities - 45,380 205,554 250,934
Total liabilities 10,556 2,398,103 931,767 3,340,426
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 399,056 - 1,827,140 2,226,196
Unrestricted 951,118 11,908,658 53,362 12,913,138
Totat net assets 1,350,174 11,908,658 1,880,502 15,139,334
Total liabilities and net assets $ 1,360,730 $ 14306761 $ 2,812,268 $ 18,479,760




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Internal Service Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2009

PWC
Warranty Fleet
Fleet Insurance Maintenance
Fund Fund Fund Total
Operating revenues
Other revenue from operations $ - % 323,022 % 2205 % 325,317
Interfund charges and employee contributions 288,210 14,401,076 6,275,923 20,065,209
Total operating revenues 288,210 14,724,098 6,278,218 21,280,526
Operating expenses
Personnel - 424,142 - 424,142
Maintenance and cperations 138,755 12,981,827 6,181,586 19,302,168
Depreciation 185,437 21,408 113,888 320,733
Total operating expenses 324,192 13,427,377 6,295,474 20,047,043
Operating income (loss) {35,982) 1,296,721 (17,256) 1,243,483
Nonoperating revenue {expense)
Interest earned {expensed) on Investments 20,907 343,638 - 364,545
Miscellaneous revenue - 2 - 2
Gain (loss) on disposal of capilal assets 6,300 110 17,256 23,666
Total nonoperating revenue (expense) 27,207 343,750 17,256 388,213
income (loss) before transfers
and contributions (8.775) 1,640,471 - 1,631,696
Transfers out - {2,322,100) - (2,322,100)
Change in net assets {8,775} (681,629) - (690,404)
Total net assets - beginning 1,358,949 12,580,287 1,880,502 15,829,738

Total net assets - ending $ 1350174 3 11908658 §$ 1,880,502 § 15,139,334




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2009
~ PWC
Warranty Fleat
Fleet Insurance Maintenance
Fund Fund Fund Total
Operating activities
Cash received from customers $ 288,756 % 14,382,741 § 6255448 % 20,926,915
Cash paid to or on pehalf of employees for services - (409,843} (1,807,340} {2,217,283)
Cash paid for goods and services {142,180} {12 875515) (4.341,022) (17,358,717)
Net cash provided by {(used in)
operating activities 146,576 1,420,275 107,086 1,673,937
Noncapltal financing acfivitles
Miscellansous - 2 - 2
Transfers out - (2,322,100} - {2,322,100)
Net cash provided (used) tiy noncapital
financing activities - (2,322,098) - (2,322,098)
CaplHtal and related financing activitles
Proceeds from sale of assets 6,300 110 17,256 23,666
Acguisition and construction of capitat assets (45,733) - {124.342) (170,075)
Net cesh provided {used) by capital and
related financing activities {39,433) 110 {107,086) {146,409}
Invasting actlvities
Interest and dividends 20,907 343,638 - 364,545
Net cash provided {used) tiy investing activities 20,907 343,638 - 364,545
Net increase In cash and cash
equlvalents/investments 128,050 {558,075) - {430,025)
Cash and cash equivalents/investments
Beginning of year 830,581 14,732,836 - 15,563,417
End of year 3 958,631 § 14,174,761 § - % 15,133,392
Cash and cash equivalents 3 958631 § 14174761 § 5 15,133,392

Total cash and cash equlvalents/iinvestments

Unrestricted cash and equivalents/investments
Total cash and cash equivalentsfinvestments

Raconclliation of opéerating incomes (loss)

to net cash provided by

(used in} operating activities

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income {loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:

Depreciation

Change in assets and liabilities

{Increase} decrease in accounts receivable

(Increase) decrease in prepaid items

{Increase) decrease in intemal balances

Increase (decraasa) in accounts payable
and accrued liabilitles

Increase (decrsase} in accrued compensated
absances

Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues

Increase (decrease) in Nat OPEB Obligation

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by {(used In) operating activities §

$ 958631 5 14174761 § - § 15133392
i) i) El E - r ]

$  (35982) § 1206721 § (17.256) § 1243483

185,437 21,408 113,868 320,733

546 (13,665) (22,770) (35,880)

- 63.280 - 63,280

- - (1,682) (1,682)

(3,425) 43,032 20,540 60,147

- 3,515 14,366 17,881

- {4,700) - {4,700)

- 10,684 . 10,684

182,558 123,554 124,342 430,454

146,576 $ 1,420,275 $ 107,086 § 1,673,937




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Warranty Fleet Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2009
{With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2008}

Variance
Positive 2009 2008
Budget (Negative) Actual Actual
Operating revenues

Interfund charges and employee contributions 3 306,088 § (17,848) % 288210 § 319,330

Total operating revenues 306,058 {17,848) 288,210 319,330
Operating expenditures

Maintenance and operations 150,492 11,737 138,755 164,519

Capital outlay 45,734 1 45,733 216,141
Total operating expenditures 196,226 11,738 184,488 380,660
Operating income (loss) 109,832 (6,110) 103,722 {61,330)

Nonoperating revenues {expenditures)

Interest earmned on investments 10,000 10,907 20,907 31,101

Miscellaneous (321,832) 321,832 - -

Proceeds from disposal of capital assets 2,000 4,300 6,300 26,362
Total nonoperating revenues (expenditures) (309,832} 337,039 27,207 57,463
Revenues over (under) expenditures (200,000} 330,929 130,929 {3,867)

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 200,000 (200,000) - 200,000
Total other financing sources {uses}) 200,000 (200,000) - 200,000
Revenues and other financing sources

(uses} over (under) expenditures 3 - % 130,929 % 130,928 § 196,133
Reconciliation to change in net assets:

Total revenues 5 315417 & 576,793

Total expenditures 184,488 380,660
Subtotat 130,929 196,133

Depreciation (185,437} (159,687}

Capital outlay 45,733 216,141
Subtotal (139,704) 56,454

Change in net assets $ {8,775) § 252,587




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROCLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Insurance Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2009
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2008)

Variance
Positive 2009 2008
Budget (Negative) Actual Actual

Operating revenues
Interfund charges and employee contributions  $ 15,676,959 § (1,275,883) § 14,401,076 § 14,295,708

Other revenues from operations 79,558 243,464 323,022 487,878
Total operating revenues 15,756,517 {1,032,419) 14,724,098 14,783,586
Operating expenditures
Personnel 415,684 5,741 409,943 377,477
Maintenance and operations 14,785,788 2,086,819 12,698,969 11,848,603
Total operating expenditures 15,201,472 2,092,560 13,108,912 12,226,080
Operating income (loss) 555,045 1,060,141 1,615,186 2,557,506
Nonoperating revenues (expenditures)
Interest eamed on investments 243,000 100,638 343,638 595,310
Miscellaneous - 2 2 -
Total nonoperating revenue {expenditures) 243,000 100,640 343,640 595,310
Revenues over (under) expenditures 798,045 1,160,781 1,958,826 3,152,816
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers out {2,322,100) - (2,322,100) -
Sale of capital assets - 110 110 -
Appropriated fund balance 1,524,055 (1,524,055) - -
Total other flnancing sources {uses) (798,045) (1,523,945} {2,321,990) -
Revenues and other financing sources
(uses) over (under) expenditures $ - 8§  (363,164) % {363,164) § 3,152,816
Reconciliation to change in net assets:
Total revenues § 12,745,748 § 15,378,896
Total expenditures 13,108,912 12,226,080
Subtotal (363,164) 3,152,816
Depreciation (21,408) (28,544)
Decrease (increase) in accrued vacation (3,515) 6,085
Change in net OPEB expense (10,684} (27,396)
Decrease (increase) in insurance liability {282,858} (131,683)
Subtotal {318,465} (181,538}

Change in net assets $ (681,629) § 2,971,278




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Scheduie of Revenues and Expendlitures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP}

PWC Fleet Maintenance Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2009

{With Comparative Actual Amounts for Year Ended June 30, 2008)

2009
Varlance
Posltive 2008
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Operating revenues

Cily services 4,530,410 % (374,157) $ 4,156,253 $ 4,062,685

PWC sarvices 2,035,700 83,970 2,119,670 2,104,527

Other revenus - 2,285 2,295 3,548
Total operating revenuas 6,566,110 {287,892) 6,278,218 6,170,760

Oparating expendifures

Fleet maintenance 6,450,110 {335,460} 6,114,650 5,778,083
Total operating expenditures 6,450,110 {335,460) 6,114,650 5,778,083
Operating income (loss) 116,000 47,568 163,568 392,677

Nonoperating revenues {expendttures)

Capital outlay {116,000) (10,629} (126,629) {169,185)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenditures) {116,000) {10,629} {126,629) {169,185)
Revenues over (under) expendlturas - 36,939 36,939 223,492

Other financing sources (uses)

Gain (loss) on asset disposal - 17,258 17,256 -
Total ether financing sources {uses) - 17,256 17,256 -
Revenues and other financing scurces

{uses} over {under) expandifures - g 54,195 £ 54,195 ] 223,492
Reconclilation of changes in net assets

Total revenues 3 6,295,474 $ 6,170,760

Tolal expanditures 5,241,279 5,947,268
Subtotal 54,195 223,492

Reconclling ltems:

Capital outlay 126,629 169,185

Depraciation {113,888) {114,681)

OPEB expense (66.936) {74.913)
Total reconciling items (54,195) {20,409)
Change in net assets $ - 8 203,083
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Fiduciary Funds

- Pension Trust Funds

- Private-purpose Trust Funds

The focus of Fiduciary Fund measurement differs among the various types of funds
that may be encompassed by this classification.
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Trust Funds

Trust Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity.

The following comprise the City’s Trust Funds:
- Persion Trust Funds
- Special Separation Allowance Trust Fund
- PWC Supplemental Persion Trust Fund
- Private-purpese Trust Funds
- Police Benefit Trust Fund
- Firemen's Relief Trust Fund
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City of Fayetteville, North Caroclina

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Pension Trust Funds
June 30, 2009

Special
Separation PWC
Allowance Supplemental
Pension Pension
Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
Assets
Cash and investments
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2142482 % - 2,142,482
Money market funds - 3,947,048 3,947,048
Total cash and investments 2,142,482 3,947,048 6,089,530
Accounts receivable 7,214 - 7,214
Total assets 2,149,696 3,847,048 6,096,744
Liabilities
Accounts payable 15,458 23,003 38,461
Total liabilities 15,458 23,003 38,461
Net assets
Held in Trust for:
Pension benefits 2,134,238 3,924,045 6,058,283
Total net assets $ 2134238 $ 3,924,045 6,058,283
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Pension Trust Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Special
Saparation PWC
Allowance Supplemental
Pension Pension
Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
Additions
Employer contributions $ 444528 § - % 444,528
Investment eamings 48,121 (138,336) {90,215}
Total additions 492,649 (138,336} 354,313
Deductions
Benefit payments and premiums 491,541 99,752 591,293
Total deductions 491,541 99,752 591,293
Change in net assets 1,108 (238,088) (236,980)
Total net assets - beginning 2,133,130 4,162,133 6,285,263

Total net assets - ending $ 2134238 § 3924045 §$ 6,058,283




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Private-purpose Trust Funds
June 30, 2009

Police Fireman's
Benefit Benefit
Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 366 $ 1,360,001 § 1,360,367
Accounts receivable 2 5,841 5,843
Total assets 368 1,365,842 1,366,210
Liabilities
Net assets
Held in Trust for pension benefits and other
purposes 368 1,365,842 1,366,210
Total net assets 3 368 $ 1365842 $§ 1,366,210
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Private-purpose Trust Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Police Fireman's
Benefit Benefit
Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
Additions
Other revenue from operations $ - % 41901 § 41,801
Other contributions 3965 97,201 97,596
Investment earnings 2 33,729 33,731
Total additions 397 172,831 173,228
Deductions
Benefit payments and premiums - 157,249 157,249
Total deductions - 157,249 157,249
Change in net assets 397 15,582 15,979
Total net assets - beginning (29) 1,350,260 1,350,231

Total net assets - ending § 368 § 1,365842 $ 1,366,210
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Other Supplemental Financial Data

Other supplemental data is presented to provide a more detailed view of the
current tax levy and taxes receivable. These schedules are not funds and do not

measure results of operations.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Current Tax Levy

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Property
Excluding
Total Rate Registered Registered
Property Per Amount Motor Motor
Valuation $100 of Levy Vehicles Vehicles
Original Levy:
General Fund $ 10,588,986,162 $ 0.530 $ 56,121,627 $ 49,287,708 $ 6,833,919
Late Listing Penaities:
General Fund 37,227 37,227 -
Subtotal 56,158,854 49,324,935 6,833,919
Discoveries:
General Fund 45,393,492 0.530 240,586 230,589 9,997
Late Listing Penalties:
General Fund 42 438 42,438 -
Subtotal 283,024 273,027 9,997
Releases:
General Fund (202,923,200) 0.530 (1,075,493) (341,134) {734,359)
Late Listing Panalties:
General Fund {16,508) (16,508) -
Subtotal (1,092,001) (357,642) {734,359)
Adjusted Tax Levy 55,349,877 49,240,320 6,109,557
Uncollected Current Year Taxes at 6/30/2009 (1,448,778) (265,218} (1,183,560)
City-wide Current Year's Taxes Collected $ 53,901,099 $ 48,975,102 5 4925997
City-wide Current Levy Collection Percentage 97.38% 99.46% 80.63%




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Taxes Receivable

June 30, 2009

Uncollected Uncollected
Balance Additions Balance
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008 & Releases Collections June 30, 2009

2009 $ - $ 55349877 $ 53,901,099 $ 1,448,778

2008 1477723 (144,238) 978,575 354,910

2007 366,587 (12,218) 69,238 285,131

2006 Annexation 147,952 1,082 123,655 25,379
All Prior 1,677,993 {168,344) 81,362 1,428,287
3,670,255 $ 55,026,159 $ 55,153,929 3,542,485

Less: Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes

General Fund (801,167) {803,140)

$ 2,869,088 $ 2,739,345

General Fund Taxes Receivable $ 3,150,513
Less: CBTD Taxes Receivable T {1,194)
Less: Vehicle License Fee Receivable {409,874)
General Fund Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable $ 2,739,345

Reconclliations of collections and credit
with revenues

Ad Valorem Taxes per the fund financial statements $ 55,653,012
Less Penalties & Interest (311,424)
Less Taxes - CBTD (87.659)

General Fund Ad Valorem Taxes $ 55,153,929




CIEVILLp

;

-
= S
VNITONVD HLoC

Dmye

THE CITY OF Jy
D
Dw

Statistical Section

: 7 2
z‘Hf‘fZ’l’_- AR Lt —




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
STATISTICAL SECTION
{Unaudited)

This part of the City of Fayetteville's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding how the information in the financial statements,
note disclosures, and required supplementary information depicts the government's

overall financial health.

CONTENTS

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the government’s financial performance has changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader assess the City's
most significant local revenue source.

Debt Capacity
These schedules contain trend information 1o help the reader assess the affordability
of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to
issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City's financial activities
take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the City's financiai report relates to the services
the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the relevant year. The City implemented GASB
Statement No. 34 in 2002; schedules presenting government-wide information include information
beginning in that year.
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Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS &
CONSULTANTS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

We have audlied ihe financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type aclivities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Cily of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (the “City”) as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and have
issued our report thereon dated Oclober 30, 2009. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the Unlted States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained In
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audlt, we consldered the City's financlal reporting as a basis for designing our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our oplnions on the financlal statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's Internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Clty's internal control over financial
reporting. :

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a controf does not allow management or employees, in
the normai course of performing thelr assigned funclions, to prevent or detect misstataments on a timely basls, A
significant deficlency is a control deficiency, or combination of centrol deficlencles, that adversely affects the
City’s abllity to Inltlate, authorize, record, process, or report financlal data reliably in accordance with generally
accepted accounting princlples such that there Is more than a remote likelthood that a misstatement of the Clity's
financial statements that is more than Inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the Cily’s internal
control.

A material weakness is a significant deficlency, or combination of significant deficiencles, that results in more than
a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financlal statements will not be prevented or detected by
the City’s internal cantrol.

Qur consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficlencies In intemal control over financial
reporting that might be significant deficlencles or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of abtalning reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financlal statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of Its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, centracts and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and materlal effect on the determination of
financlal statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audlt and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instarices of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing
Standards.




This report is intended solely for ihe Infarmatlan and use of the audit committee, management, others within the
organization, members of the City Councll, and federal and State awarding agencles and pass-through entilles,
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone ather than these specified parties.

CHERRY, BEKAERT & HOLLAND L.L.P.

Chasity Bekasst HHioload

Fayetteville, North Carolina
Oclober 30, 2009




CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS &
CONSULTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM
AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE
STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the Cily Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Fayeftevile, North Carolina, {the "Clty") with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget {OMBY Circular A-133
Compllance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors In North Carglina, issued by the Local
Government Commission, thal are applicable to each of Its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2009. The City's major federal programs are Identified In the summary of audltor's results section of the
accompanylng schedule of findings and questioned costs, Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants applicable to each of s major federal programs Is the responsibility of the City's
management. Our responsibllity Is to express an opinion on the City's compliance hbased on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepled In the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financlal audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
I[ssued by the Comptroller General of the United Statss; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of _States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit implementation Act. Those standards,
OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basls, evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We belleve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Qur audit does not provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with
those requirements.

in our oplnicn, the City complied, in all materlal respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2008.

Internal Centrol Over Compliance

The management of the City Is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control aver
compllance with requlrements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with requirements
that couid have a direct and material effect on & major federal program in order to determine our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compllance, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinlon on
the effectiveness of the City's Intarnal contral over compliance.




A control deficiency In an entity’s internal contral over compliance exists when the desigin or operation of a contral
does not allow management or employees, In the normal course of perfarming their assigned functions, to prevent
or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requiremeni of a federal program on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a contral deficlency, or combination of controt deflclenclas that adversely affects the
entity's abliity to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that
noncompliance with a type of compllance requirement of a federal program that Is more than mconsequenhal will
not be prevented or detected by the City’s Internal control.

A materfal weakness is a significant deficiency, or combinatlon of significant deficiencies, that resuits in more than
a remote likelihood that materlal noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented or detected by the City's Internal control.

Our consideration of Internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficlencles In Internal control that might be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that
we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Thls report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, others within the
organization, members of the City Councll, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities,
and Is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified partles.

CHERRY, BEKAERT & HOLLAND L.L.P.

Chiney bekst #ioliond Jf

Fayetteville, North Carolina
October 30, 2009




CERTTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS &
CONSULTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR STATE PROGRAM
AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF
OMB CIRCULAR A-~133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

The Honarable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
Clty of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, {the “Clty”) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors In North Carolina, Issued by
the Local Government Commission, that are applicable to each of Its major Stale programs for the year ended
June 30, 2004. The Clty's major State programs are identified in the summary of audltor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
cantracts and grants applicable to each of its major State programs Is the responsibility of the City’s management.
Our responslbllity Is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Govemment Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; applicable sections of OMB Clrcular A-133 as described
in the Audit Manual for Governmental Audltors In North Carolina, and the State Single Audit implementation Act.
Those standards, applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and materlal effect on a major State
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Clty's compllance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considersd necessary In the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides & reascnable basis for our opinien. Qur audit does not provide a legal
determination on the City's compliance with those requlrements.

In our opinion, the Clty complied, in all material respects, with the requirements refered to above that are
applicable to each of its major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2009,

Intemal Contrel Qver Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of [aws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to State programs. In
planning and perfarming our audlt, we consldered the City's internal control over compliance with requirements
that could have a direct and materlal effect on a major State program in order to determine our auditing
procedures far the purpose of expressing our opinlon on compllance, but net for the purpose of expressing an
opinlen on the effectiveness of Intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.




A contrgl deficiency In an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the deslgn or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing thelr asslgned functions, to prevent
or detect noncompliance with a type of compllance requirement of a State program con a timely basls. A
significant deficiency Is a control deficlency, or combination of control deflclencies that adversely affects the
entity’s abllity to administer a State program such that there Is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance
with a type of a compllance requirement of a State program that is more than inconsequential will not be
prevented or detected by the City's internal control,

A material weakness Is a significant deficlency, or combination of significant deficiencles, that resutts in more than
a remote llkellhood that material noncompliance with a type of campliance requirement of a State program will not
be prevented or detected by the City's Internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over compllance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies In Intemal control that might be significant
deficiencles or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiancies in Internal control over compliance that
we conslder to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit commitee, management, others within the

organization, members of the City Councll, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities,
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

CHERRY, BEKAERT & HOLLAND L.L.P,

ok tlollmd 4P

Fayetteville, North Caralina
October 30, 2009




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2009

SECTION I. Summary of Auditor's Resuits
Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued: Ungualified
Internal control over financlal reporting:
- Materlal weakness{es) identified Yes X No
- Significant Deficiency(s) identified
that are not considered to be

material weaknesses Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to financial
slatements noted Yes X No

Federal Awards
internal control over major federal programs:
- Malterlal weakness(es) identified Yes X No
- Slignificant Deficiency(s) identiflad
that are not considered to be

materlal weaknesses Yes X None reported

Noncompllance material to federal
awards Yas X No

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal pragrams: Ungqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance
with Sectlon §10(a) of Clrcular A-133 Yes X No

ldentlfication of major federal programs:

CFDA Numbers Names of Federal Program or Cluster
20.507 Federal Translt Formula Grants

16.000 Federal Forfeiture Funds

Daollar threshold used to distingulsh
between Type A and Type B Programs i 328,381

Auditee gualified as low-risk auditeg? X  Yes No




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2009

State Awards
Internal control over major State programs;
- Materlal weakness(es) identified Yes X No

- Significant Deficlency(s) identiflad
that are not considered to be
material weaknesses Yes X MNone reported

Noncompliance material to State awards Yes X No

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for malor State programs: Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are

required to be reported In accordance

with the State Single Audit

Impiementation Act Yes X  No

Identification of major State programs:

Program Name
Fowell Bill
Slate Maintenance Assistance Program

Section ll. Financlal Statement Findings

None reportad.

Section lll. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.

Section IV, State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reparted.




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

Year Ended June 30, 2009

None reported.
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Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

Clty of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Year Ended June 30, 2008
State/
Fadaral Pass-through
GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH CFDA Grantor's
GrantoriProgram Title Numbar Number
DEPARTMENT 1 DEVELOPMENT
Commiunity Development Block Grant
FY2006-2007 14218 B-06-MC-37-0005
FY2007-2008 14218 B-07-MC-37-0005
FY2008-200% 4213 B-06-MC-37-0005
HOME Investment Partnership Program
FY1996-1%57 14239 M-02-MC-37-0203
FY2091.2002 14233 M-03-MC-37-0203
FY2004-2005 14235 M-04-MC-37-0203
FY2005-2006 14239 M-05-MC-37-0203
FY2006-2007 14239 W-06-MC-37-0203
FY2007-2008 14233 WM-07-MC-37-0203
FY2008-2009 14239 W-08-MC-37-0203
US DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Office of Justice Programs
Justice Asgistance Granl 16,570 20050BX0487
Justce Assismnce Granl 16579 2008DJBX0352
Jusiice Assistance Granl 16,728 20070JBX037%
Justice Assistance Granl 16.738 2008018X0492
FBI Overime Reimbursements 16.000
Alcocho!, Tobacco. and Fireasmns Overtme Relmbursements 16.000
Organized Crima and Drug Enforcement Task Force 16.000
US Marshall Service 16.000
Dnsg Enforcement Administration 16.000
Federal Forfelure Fund - {CE : 16.000
Federal Forfeiture Fund - DEA 16.000
1.8, DEPARTMENT OF HEAL TH AND HUMAN SERVICEE
Speclal Programs for the Aging
Pass Thru NC Depariment of Health & Human Services
Senlor Chizens Service Center 93.044 N/A
US DEPARTMENT OF TRANBPORTATION
‘aderal Avliatiol tnl
Airport Improvement Program
Terminel Renowvation Phess |1l 20.108 FAA-3-37-0021-30
Alrpon Fire Training Facllity 20.106 FAA-3-37-0021-31
Almporl Improvermant Projects 20.108 FAA-3-37-0021-32
Alrpon Alrfiedd LighBng Vault Improvements Phase Il - Construction 20.106 FAA-3-37-0021-33
Almpori Runway 4/22 Rehablltation Phase Il - Construction 20.108 FAA-3-37-0021-34
Passed through NC Dept of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction
Enhancament Agreement - Depot 20.205 E-4118
Fedsrs! Transportation Ad n
Preventative Malntanance & Amercan with Oisabililes Act 20.507 NC.80.X444
Preventalive Maintanance & Amartan with Olseblifles Act 20,507 NC 90.X425
Caplis| Grants: Capital 20.507 NC 90.0274
Caplal 20,507 NC 80.0313
Capltal 20.507 NC 80.0327
Capltal 20,807 NC 90.0357
Gapllal 20.507 NC 900406
Capltal 20.507 NC 80.0425
Capital 20.507 NC 900444
Capital 20.507 NC.04.0027
Planning Grants: Planning 20507 NC 80.2406
Planning 20.507 NC 902425
Planning 20.507 NC.90.2453
DEPARTMENT RITY
Hazmat {Equipment Grart) 2006 97.067 2006-GE-TE-0010
Hazmat {Equipment Grant} 2007 97.073 2007-GE-T7-0048
Staffing for Adequats Fire and Emergancy Response {SAFER) FY2008 07.044 EMW-2008-FF-01043
Law Erdorcement Officer Reimbursement Agraement Pragram 67.090 HSTS0208HSLR141

10

Federal [Direct
& Pass-throughl] Stata Toual
_Expenditures _Expendiures _Expenditures
$ 183,503 . 3 193,503
651,460 - 861,460
4,737 . 4,737
1.049.700 - 1.049,700
124,050 - 124,060
38,564 - 38,564
(28,481) - (26.481)
(50,529) - {60,628)
59,392 - 59,392
36,164 - 36,154
305,018 . 305,018
484,168 484,168
10,140 - 10,740
1,250 - 1,290
7.300 - 7,300
31,879 - 31,879
50,600 - 50,609
4,567 - 4,567
12,879 - 12,879
3.727 - 3727
11,485 - 11,485
8,062 - 8,062
96,526 - 96.526
484,245 - 484,245
580,771 580.771
23,6208 . 23.926
103,693 - 103,693
5,904 . 9,904
120,782 - 120,782
1,648,754 - 1,849,764
4,375,312 - 4,376,312
_8.259.4456 - 6268445
- 30,913 30,813
- 30.913 30,913
1,164,889 . 1,154,889
48,847 - 48,847
252 - 292
1.014 - 1,014
88,816 - 88,616
187,385 - 187,305
74,686 - 74,686
22,032 - 22032
87,487 - 87,487
169,356 - 169,356
86,302 - 86,302
77,153 - 771153
158.574 - 158,514
2.156.383 - 2,158,383
- 16.390 16,390
- 95,455 99,455
129,772 - 129,772
186,023 - 166,023
295,798 116,848 411,640




Chty of Fayatteville, North Carolina
Scheduie of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2009
State/
Faderal Pass-through Fadaral {Direct
GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH CFDA Grantor's & Pass-through} State Total
Granter/Program Tite Number Number Expendhuras Expenditures Expenditures
P T RIOR
Pasged through NC Dept OF Cultural Rasources
Passad through State Hiatarlec Preservaton Office
Cross Creek Cemalery 15,904 NiA § 4.500 3 - § 4,500
4,500 - 4.500
STATE GRANTS:
NC DEPARTMENT QF TRANSPORTATION
Avigtlon Division
Stormwaler Improvements. NiA 36244275 - 162 1582
‘West GA Ramp Rahabllitabon N/A 362442784 - 34.147 34,147
- 34,293 34,239
Public Transpnrtlﬁon Diviglon
Malntenance Assistance N/A 9.9051698 - 683.251 583,251
Capltal NIA 36223.7.2.1 - 16 16
Capital N/A 36223.7.53 - 11.077 11,077
Capltal N/A 36221.3.1.2 - 18,062 18,062
Capltal NiA 35231.3.2.2 - 6.684 5,594
Capltal N/A 3623222.1,3/4 - 16,667 16,667
Pianning NiA 36231.326 - 10.786 10,789
Planning N/A 36231.3.36 - 9,644 9,644
Pianning NiA 362322213 . 18,814 18.814
- 775913 775,913
Powell BII NiA - §.130.187 5,130,187
Rail Divislon
Ralrpad Cross Improvemnents o Vilage Dnve NIA Z-3806H - 5,830 5.830
Raltroad Craoss Improvemnents el Levy Drive NIA Z-3606E - 5,008 5,808
Raltroad Cross Improvements el Femcreek Drive NIA Z-4406AT - 17,946 17,945
Glilespie & Franklin/ Ottis Jones Pkwy Signal Syslem NA Y-4808A - 144,746 144,745
Amirak N/A 03-5T-009 - 17,206 17,295
- 191,633 191.833
NC DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL RESOLURCES
Dhvialon of Wasle Managemant
Community Wasie Reduction and Recycling Grant N/A 1334 - 11.774 1.774
- 11,774 11,774
Clean Water Managemeant Trust Fund .
Glenville Lake Stormwater Managemenl N/A 2006A-701 51,575 51,575
- 51,575 51,575
NC DEPARTMENT OF CRIME CONTRDL & PUBLIC SAFETY
Hazmat {(RRT Grent) Nia RRT 3 2008 - 56,383 56,363
Pass through from Governor's Crima Commission
Gangs Acrass the Caralinas FYD9 . N/A, 026-1-04-024-AD-872 - 63,541 63,541
PSN Anti-Geng: Operation Ceassfire N/A 026-1-07-001-Bl-226 - 13,526 13,626
PSN And-Gang: Operation Ceasefire NiA 026-1-06-001-A2-076 - 12,600 12,600
- 95,667 95667
C DEP. MENT OF NILE TICE AND DELINQGUENCY PREVENTION
Pass through from Cumbertand County
Juvenlle Restitution FYE 2008 N/A - 35,732 35,732
NC D
Pass through from Cal Ripken, Sr. Foundatlon
Badges for Besebail Program N/A 2008-JU-FX-0016-NC-B4B-005 - 17,000 17,000
- 17,000 17.000
NG OFFICE OF THE STATE CONTROLLER
NC Unauthorized Substance Tax NiA - &§7.827 87,827
NC VETERANS AFFAIRS DIVISION
NC Velerans Parks Phage #2 NiA NGGA Senale BIl 1611 - 257,160 257160
NC Veterans Parks N/A 1301-536980-17717 711 - 271.682 271,662
- 526,662 528,862
$ 10,945,019 $ 774,710 $  18.110.729
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Clty of Fayetteville, North Carolina
Schedule of Expendltures of Federal and State Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2009

State/
Fadaral Pasg-through Fadarail {Direct
GRANTOR/PASE-THROUGH CFDA Grantor's & Pass-through) State Tetal
Granter/Program Title Number Numb Expendhures Expenditures. Expanditras

THE S LE OF EXP) F FED D STATE AWARDS:

1. The accompanying schedule of expandilures of Federal and State swerds includes tha Fadersl and State grant activity of tha Clty of Fayettevlle and Is presened on the madified accrual basts of
accountiig. The Infarmation In this schedule is presented In accordanca with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. “Audlts of States, Local Gavernmerits, and Non-Proilt Orpanizations.*
Therefore, soma amounts presented In this schedule may differ from amounts presented (n, or used In the preparallon of the basic financial statements.

2. The total local match requirements for the Federal and Stete Transh operating assistance grants was $984,135. The aciual Iocal match which the Clty of Fayetteville axpended tor the operations of
the ranslt system was $884,135.

3. The fotal local contribulions for the State Powell Bill assistanca amounied 16 $121.217 {this represents Inlares! aemed and assesements received lfirough 0630:08).
4. The amguni of HOME Investment Partnerships providad 1o CHDO's 1s $342.629 as of Juna 30, 2008.

5. Powell Bill expenditures as repored abova represant gligible expendiures reporied 10 the Nonth Carolina Departmant of Transporiation for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009. The Clty Is regulred
tx report annually to the North Camlina Department of T rtation on the sccumulated ur ded Powall Bl funds. Unenpended Powell Bill funds are accounted for and mainwained within the:

P

transportation fund. The total unexpended balance on-hand at June 30, 2000 Is $1,145,874.
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Passenger Facility Charge
Compliance Section

- Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to the Passenger
Facility Charge Program and Internal Control Over Compliance in
Accordance with the Passenger Facility Charge Program Audit Guide

- Schedule of Findings and Qluestioned Costs

- Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

- Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges
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OLLAND

CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS &
CONSULTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE PASSENGER FACILITY
CHARGE PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANGCE WITH THE
PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE PROGRAM AUDIT GUIDE

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, Norih Caralina

Compliance
We have audited the compllance of the City of Fayetteville, Norih Caroling, {"the City") with the compliance

requirements described in the Passenger Facllity Charge Audlt Guide for Public Agencles, Issued by the Federal
Aviation Administration {Guide), for Its passenger facility charge program for the year ended June 30, 2009.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to ifs passenger facility
charge program is the responsibility of the Clty’s management. Our responsibllity is to express an oplnion on the
City's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing slandards generally accepted In the Unlted
States of Amerlca; the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government Auditing Standards,
Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Guide. Those standards and the Gulde require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the passenger facility
charge program occurred. An audit includes exemlning, on a test basis, evidence about the Gity’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumslances. We believe Lthat our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinton. Our audit does not provide
a [egal determination on the City's complliance with those requirements.

In our opinlon, the City complied, In all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to its passenger facility charge program for the year ended June 30, 2008.

Intemal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compllance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to the passenger facility
charge pregram. in planning and performing our audit, we considered the Clty's Internal control over compllance
with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the passenger facility charge program in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing aur opinion on compliance and to test and report
on the Intemnal control over compliance In accordance with the Guide, but not for the purpose of expressing an
oplnion on the effectiveness of intemal confrel over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City's Internal control over compliance.
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A control deficlency in an entity’s Intemal contro! over compliance exists when the design or operation of & contral
does not allow managsment or employees, In the normal course of performing thelr assigned functions, to prevent
or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the passenger facliity charge program on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or comblnatlon of control deficlencles that adversely
affects the entity's ability to administer the passenger faclity charge program such that there is more than a
remote llkellhood that noncompilance with a type of compllance requirement of the passenger facllity program that
is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the City's internat control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deflciencies, that results In more than
a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the passenger facility
charge program wlll not be prevented or detected by the Clty's Internal control.

Our conslderation of Intemal control over compliance was for the limlted purpose described In the first paragraph
of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficlencies in Internal control that might be significant
deficiencies or materlal weaknasses. We did not identify any deficiencles In intemal control over compliance that
we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report Is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, others within the
arganization, members of the City Councll, the Federal Aviatlon Administration, and federal awarding agencies

and pass-through entities and is not Intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

CHERRY, BEKAERT & HOLLAND L.L.P.

Choeny Bobaat lalln Y

Fayettevllie, North Carolina
October 30, 2009
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2009

SECTION I. Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Ungquallfied
Internal contrel over financial reperting:
- Materlal weakness(es) identified Yes X No
- Significant Deficiency(s) identified
that are not consldered to be

material weaknesses Yes X None reporied

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted Yes X No

Passenager Facillty Charge Program

Interna! control over passenger facllity charge program:
- Materlal weakness(es) identified Yes X No
- Significant Deficiency(s) identified

that are not consldered to be

rnaterial weaknesses Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to passenger
facility charge program Yes X No

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for passenger facliity charge program:
Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed Yes X No

Section ll. Financial Statement Findings
None reported.

Section lli. Passenger Faciiity Charge Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

Year Ended June 30, 2009

No findings in the prior year.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Expendltures of Passenger Facllity Charges
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Impose Use Cumulative Approved Amount PFC Revenua PFC Revenue Total PFC
Effactive Effective  Expenditures  Expenditures of Use Used in Used In Revenues
FProject Date Date Actual for PFC's Approval Prior Years Cwrent Year Used
APPLICATION 1 ( # 00-01-C-04-FAY & 02-02-U-02-FAY)
Local share reimbursemant AIP-12, Construcllon of
a Fire Training Facility and Rehabilitation of a 1500-
Gallon ARFF Vehicle 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 $ 3,830,753 § 3830753 § 191538 & 191538 & - $ 191,538
Locel share rembursamant AlP-12, Install Security
Accass Control System 11/01/2000 41/01/2000 757,595 757,598 37,880 37,880 - 37,880
Local share reimbursamant AlP-13, Update Airport
Master Plan 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 135,020 67,510 6,751 6,751 - 6,751
Local share reimbursamani AlP-13, Dasign
Highway 301 Connaclor 11/01/2Q00  11/01/2000 184,655 194,655 9,733 9,733 - 9,733
Local share reimbursemeant AlP-t4, Insiallabon of
Taxiway Guldance Signs and Runway End
Identification Lights 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 196,191 168,192 9910 9,910 - 9,910
Local share reimbursemani AIP-14, Lang
Acquisition 11/01/2000 1141/2000 134,612 134,462 8,731 6,731 - 6,731
Locel share reimbursement AlP-14, Improve
Terminal Buiiding 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 31,224 31,224 1.474 1,474 - 1.474
Local share reimbursement AIP-15, Design New
Ganerel Aviation Area 11/01/2000 1%/01/2000 206,286 205,286 10,314 10,314 - 10,314
Local share reimbursement AlP-15, Foreign Objact
Demage Swaeper 11/01/2000 14/01/2000 15,632 15,632 782 782 ~ 782
Local share reimbursement AlP-15, Design Taxway
K +1/01/2000 11/01/2000 16,841 18.641 842 842 - 842
Local shara reimbursement AIP-15, Rehabilitata
Genaral Aviation Apron 10172000 11/01/2G00 29,875 29,875 1.494 1,494 - 1,484
Lotal share rembursemant AIP-15, Land for
Devalopment 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 49,001 4B.476 2424 2,424 - 2.424
Lacal share reimbursemanl AIP-16, Terminal
Loacding Bridges 11/01/2000 11/04/2000 179,808 176,808 8,990 8,980 - 8,990
Loce! share reimbursemant AlP-17, New General
Aviation Construction 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 2,362,280 2,242,376 114,860 114,860 - 114,660
Local share reimburseament AIP-18, Acquire
Handicap Lift Device 110172000  11/1/2000 35,680 35,680 1,784 1,784 - 1,784
Lecal share reimbursemenl AIP-18, Rehabilitate
Tarminal Building 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 1,820.477 1,820,478 B3,367 83,367 - 83,367
Local share reimbursemant AYP-19, Aircraft Rescus
& Firefighting Vehicle 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 318,768 319,766 15,988 15,688 - 15,988
Local share raimbursement AIP-20, Design Non-
licensed Vehice Road 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 31,819 30,545 1,527 1.527 - 1527
Local share reimbursemean AlP-20, Design of
Taxiway "K' (Revised} 11/04/2000 11/01/2000 13,287 12,887 B44 544 - 644
Local share reimbursement AlP-20, Installation of
Water Main 11012000 11/01/2000 78,585 76,299 3915 3,915 - 3915
Local shara reimbursement AIP-21, Airport
Ertrance Road 11/01/2000 11/01/2000 380,018 350,000 17,500 17,500 - 17,500
Lacal shere reimbursemert AIP-21, Jetway Bridge
Madifications 110172000 11/01/2000 38,887 46,195 1,944 1,844 - 1,944
Local share reimbursemearnt AlP-21, Security Systen
Upgrede 110172000 11/01/2000 81,512 70,815 3.541 3,541 - 3,541
Local share reimbursement AlP-21, Preplan
Runway Safely Areas 11/01/2000 114172000 108.600 109,600 5,430 5430 - 5,430
North GA Ramp Cansiruction 11/01/2000 08/18/2002 1,554,453 1,404,170 70,209 70,209 - 70,209
Securlty Systemn Upgrade Phese Il 41/01/2000 06/18/2002 144,216 139,340 6,967 8,967 - 8,967
Design & Construct R8A, Runway 4 11/01/2000 06/18/2002 858,872 949,000 42,943 42,943 - 42,843
Renovata Terminal, Pnase )i 11/01/2000 06/18/2002 2,224,052 2,475,430 111,203 111,203 - 111,203
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Imposse Use Cumulative Approved Amount PFC Ravarue PFC Revenue Total PFG
Effective Effective  Expsandituras Expendltures of Use Used In Used In Revenues
Project Date Date Actual for PFC's Approval Prior Years  Currert Yaar Used
RSA Construction, Runway 4, Phase I 11/01/2000 06/18/2002 § 858,872 § 949,000 § 40,000 § 40,000 % - $ 40,000
Renovate Temminal, Phase NI 11/01/2000  0BM18/2002 2,498,526 2,475,430 116,250 118,250 - 116,250
RSA Construction, Runway 22 11/01/2000 081 8/2002 1,865,200 1.2683,890 86,389 86,284 - 86,389
NLVR Construciion 11/01/2000 0611872002 540,322 180,000 25,567 25,567 - 26,587
Taxiway K Construction 11/01/20C0 06/18/2002 483,002 225,000 22,500 22,500 - 22,500
TOTAL IMPOSE AND USE APPLICATION 1 § 22054880 % 20%1_4 $ 1,061,391 § 1,061,321 $ - 3 1,061,391
APPLICATION 2 { # 05-03-C-01-FAY)
Terminal Loop Roadway{Dasign/Constr.) 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 § 560,077 & 814,800 & 30,740 § 28,004 % - $ 28,004
Obsiruction Ramoval 10/01/2005  10/01/2005 1,477,695 1,531,500 76,575 72,885 - 73,885
Updale Airport Master Plan 10/01/2005  10/01/2005 305,587 295,000 14,760 14,750 - 14,750
Snow Plow(s) Purchase 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 50,972 51,120 2,556 2,549 - 2,549
Handicap Lifi Device 10/01/2005  10/01/2005 24,495 24,500 1,225 1.225 - 1,225
Fire Training Facillly Evaluation/Study 10/01/2005  10/04/2005 4,995 4,985 4,995 4,995 - 4,995
Stormmwater Management Evaluation/Sludy 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 9,844 10,400 1,040 984 - 984
PFC Application {Original Program) 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 12,787 12,866 12,866 12,787 - 12,787
PFC Application {Program 2) 10/04/2005  10/01/2005 7,788 8,000 8,000 7,789 - 7,789
Terminal Roof Replacement 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 123,770 123,770 61,885 61,885 - 61,885
Runway Crack Repair and Paint 10/01/2005  10/01/2C05 56,073 90,540 9,054 5,807 - 5,607
Pavament Condition index Study 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 6,110 100,000 5,000 4,608 - 4,806
Airporl Beacon Replacemen 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 173,095 250,000 12,500 8,655 - 8,855
Jetoridge Modificatiens (Getas B-2 and B4} 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 - 180,000 2,500 - - -
Runway 4/22 Rehabiiliation - Design 10/01/2005  10/01/2005 274,883 80,000 80,000 42,900 832 13,732
GeneratorVault Upgrade 10/01/2005  10/01/2005 114,778 570,000 28,500 5242 497 5,730
AREE Expansion 10/01/2005  10/01/2005 113,650 820,000 31,000 948 4,734 5,682
Runway 4/22 Rehabilitation - Construction 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 4,582,879 515,000 25,750 - 25750 25,750
Replacament Jatbridge for B4 1040172005 10/01/2005 - 475,000 23,750 - - -
Rehabilltate Alrfield Lighting 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 7.590 200,000 10,000 380 - 380
Pavement Rahabllitation (par PCI study) 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 - 750,000 37.500 - - -
Pave ARFF & Surveillanca Roed 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 - 750,000 37,500 - - -
Fire Training Facllity Upgrade 10/01/2005  10/01/2005 1,246,653 500,000 25,000 25,000 - 25,000




CITY QF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facllity Charges

Year Ended June 30, 2009

Impose Use Cumulative Approved Amount PFC Revenue PFC Revenue Total FFC
Effective  Effective  Expendhiures Expeanditures of Use Used In Used In Revenues
Progject Date Date Actual for PFG's Approval Prior Years  Cusrent Year Used
Security Cameras System 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 § 40,801 $§ 20,000 § 20,000 % 20,000 § - 1 20,000
Replace ARFF Vehicle 10/01/2005  10/01/2005 - 700,000 35,000 B - -
PFC Pragram Consulting 10/01/2005 10/01/2005 . - 10,000 10,000 - - -
TOTAL IMPOSE AND USE APPLICATION 2 3 9,284,303 § BA4974H § 614,886 § 282,391 % 31812 % 324,204

APPLICATION 3 {#09-04-C-00-FAY)

AlP 26 - Terminal Phase Il Q7/01/2009 07/01/2009 § - $ 1674340 § 83,717 § - 5 - L3 -
Employee Parking (non revenue} 07/01/2009 O7/31/2009 - 60,000 §0.000 - - -
West GA Ramp Rehebilitalion 07/01/2009 07/01/2009 - 615,000 61,500 - - -
AP 28 - Land Acquisllion 07/01/200¢ 07/01/2009 - 60,823 60,823 - - -
Handicap Access to Namow Body Jets 07/01/200¢ 07/01/2008 - 35,818 35,818 - - -
AP 31 - Fire Training Facillty Rehab. Q710172009 O7/01/2008 - 1,186,740 50,337 - - -
AlP 32 - Runway 4/22 Rehab. Design 07/04/2008 07/01/2009 - 283,340 14,667 - - -
AP 32 - ARFF Renab. Design 07/01/2008 07/01/2009 - 138,260 6.013 - - -
AlIP 32 - Snow Removal Equipment Building Design

and Censiruction OT/0/2069 07/01/2009 - 165,400 8,270 - - -
AlP 32 - Electrical Vault Upgrades Dasign and

Generator Ingtall 07/01/2008 07/01/2009 - 113,920 5,696 - - -
State Grant Siomwaier Improvemeant QF/01/2008 07/01/2008 - 330,000 33,000 - - -
ARFF Renabilitation (2/3 of amount allowed per

FAA) (AP 35) 07/01/2009 07/01/2009 - 1,340,000 87,000 - - -
Veult Construction (AIP 33) (Atrfield Lighis) 07/01/2008 07/01/2009 - 5,003,800 250,180 - - -
Runway 4/22 Construction {AIP 34) Q7/1/2009 07/01/2009 - T171.540 358,577 - - -
Stale Grem Security Fence Galss 07/0%/2009 07/01/2008 - 200,000 20,000 - - -
Repiace ARFF Truck 07/01/2009 07/01/2009 - 700,000 700,000 - . -
Aur Carrier Asphalt Rehab Apron Design 07/01/2008 07/01/2009 - 70,000 3,500 - - -
Texiway A Daslgn, Shoulder, Overlay, Lights 07/01/2009 07/01/2009 - 195,000 9,750 - - -
Extand Taxiway A Design 07/01/2009 07/01/2009 - B5.000 4,250 B - -
Construclion Taxiway A Shoulders, Overiay, Lights  07/01/2009 07/01/200% - 3,000,000 150,000 - - -

TOTAL MPOSE AND USE APPLICATION 3 $ - § 22438001 § 1,992,808 % - s - $ -

Reptace B4 Jet Bridge 07/01/2009 N/A 3 - % 475,000 3 -8 - s - 5 -
Const Alr Carrier asphell - Rehab apron 07/01/2009 NA - 749,220 . - - .
Construct TX A Extansion 07/01/2008 N/A - 850,000 - - - -
Alr Carrier Cancrete - apron repair design Q7012009 WA - 85,000 - - - -
Terminal Phase IV 07/01/200% N/A - 1,000,000 - - - -
Alrline Concrete apron repair - Const 07/01/2008 N/A - 580,000 B - - .

RW 4722 paved shoulders - destan 07/01/2009 NIA - 120,000 - - - -




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Faclility Charges
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Impose Use Cumulative Approved Amounlt PFC Revenue PFC Revenue Total PFC
Effective  Effective  Expenditures Expendltures of Use Used In Used In Revenues
Project Date Date Actual for PFC's Approval Prigr Years Cumrent Year Used

Land acquisittan RW4 RPZ 07/01/2009 N/A 3 - 3 1,884,220 3 s H -8 -
Construct RW 4/22 paved shoulders 07/01/2009 N/A - 1,800,000 . - - -
GA-auta parking - non-evenue Q7/01/2009 N/A - 150,000 - - - -
TOTAL IMPOSE ONLY APPLICATION 3 $ - $ 7,883,440 5 - $ - $ - 3 -

TOTAL APPLICATION 2 $ - $ 30330421 § 1992908 § - $ - [ -

GRAND TOTAL $§ 31339192 § 59817120 § 3B869B5S § 1353782 % 31813 § 1,385 595
TE E SCHEDULE QF EXPENDITURES QF PASSENGER ILITY CHARGES:

1. The accompanying schedule of expanditures of passenger facilly charges Is presented on the full accrual basls of accouniing
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